
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

NOVEMBER 10, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

November 10, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Kensington Community Church 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program 
(September), Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a 
check in the amount of $520.00 to Michael Silverstein for Troy Foundation for 
Educational Excellence ........................................................................................ 1 

b) America Recycles 2008 Proclamation Presented to Pam Brady .......................... 1 

c) MML Education Award Presented by Mayor Schilling to Council Member 
Mary Kerwin .......................................................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2009 Application 1 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Postponed Items 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown 
Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory 
Board; and Troy Daze Committee 3 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: Planning Commission (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Study Committee; and 
Parks & Recreation Board 4 

E-3 Acceptance of Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program:  Arts and Culture General 
Support Grant of $40,000.00 5 

E-4 Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive Programs 6 

E-5 Proposed 2009 City Council Meetings 8 

E-6 Donation of the Old Stone School Property to the City of Troy – Section 6, Sidwell 
#88-20-06-101-001 9 

CONSENT AGENDA: 10 

F-1a Approval of ―F‖ Items NOT Removed for Discussion 10 

F-1b  Address of ―F‖ Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 10 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 10 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 10 

a)  America Recycles 2008 ..................................................................................... 10 



 

 

 -  -  

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 11 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Troy Hall of Justice 
HVAC Upgrade of Major Mechanical Systems ................................................... 11 

F-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Rochester Road Improvements, 
Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #59 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-
044 – ALIF Corporation 11 

F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 
Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #28 – Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026 – Dennis E. 
Bushon and Mary Josephine Bushon 11 

F-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #1 – Sidwell 
#88-20-23-303-001 – Rochester Development Group, LLC 12 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 
Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #45 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043 – Gordon P. 
Meldrum and Carol A. Meldrum 12 

F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 
Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #27 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-018 – Trombly 
Investment Company 13 

F-10 Request from Smith Middle School to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 13 

F-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 14 

F-12 2008 Request to Waive Recapture Form 14 

F-13 Private Agreement for Tim Horton’s – Project No. 08.915.3 15 

F-14 Contract Amendment:  Extended Warranty In-Car Video System 15 

F-15 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Lawrence Feld, 
Secretary of the Benevolent Association of AFSCME – Local 574 15 



 

 

 -  -  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 16 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Scheduled 16 

G-2 Memorandums: 16 

a) Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance – November 24, 2008 ...................... 16 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 16 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 16 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 16 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 16 

REPORTS: 16 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 16 

a) Cable Advisory Committee/Final – April 17, 2008 .............................................. 16 

b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 15, 2008 ............................... 16 

c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – August 26, 2008 ................................... 16 
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – September 2, 2008.................................. 16 
e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – September 3, 2008 ............................... 16 

f) Library Advisory Board/Final – September 11, 2008 .......................................... 16 
g) Special Joint Meeting Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning 

Commission – September 22, 2008 ................................................................... 16 
h) Youth Council/Final – September 24, 2008 ........................................................ 16 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 1, 2008 .................................. 16 
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 14, 2008 .................................... 16 

k) Planning Commission/Draft – October 14, 2008 ................................................ 16 
l) Planning Commission/Final – October 14, 2008 ................................................ 16 
m) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 16, 2008 ........................................ 16 

n) Youth Council/Draft – October 22, 2008 ............................................................. 16 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) Troy Historical Museum Annual Report 2007-2008 ............................................ 16 
b) Troy Public Library Annual Report 2007-2008 ................................................... 16 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 



 

 

 -  -  

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Michael Farrug Commending the Professionalism of 
Officer Christina Giovannoni ............................................................................... 16 

b) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from Dale Dawkins Regarding the 
Support of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise .................................................. 16 

c) Letter to Jennifer Lawson from SEMCOG Regarding Participation with the 
Low Impact Development (LID) Manual ............................................................. 16 

d) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft and Staff for Participation in the CREST 
Radiation Exercise .............................................................................................. 17 

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Gary Mayer from Terry Nerbonne Regarding 
the Assistance with the Ferris State University Criminal Justice Summer 2008 
Internship Program ............................................................................................. 17 

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from the Royal Oak Police Department 
Regarding the Support of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise ........................... 17 

g) Letter of Thanks to Officers Rockafellow and Raymer from Denise Geromette . 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None 17 

J-5  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding the City of Troy 
Master Plan 17 

J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes – September 18, 2008 17 

J-7 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Inter-Modal Transit 
Facility Project Scope – Concept and Preliminary Engineering Design Services to 
Construction 17 

J-8  Unofficial Results – November 4, 2008 Election 17 

STUDY ITEMS: 17 

K-1 Preliminary Discussion of the 2009/10 Budget 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 18 

CLOSED SESSION: 18 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 18 

ADJOURNMENT 18 



 

 

 -  -  

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 18 

Monday, November 24, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 18 
Monday, December 1, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................. 18 

Monday, December 15, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 18 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Kensington Community Church 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (September), 
Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a check in the amount of 
$520.00 to Michael Silverstein for Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence 

b) America Recycles 2008 Proclamation Presented to Pam Brady  

c) MML Education Award Presented by Mayor Schilling to Council Member Mary Kerwin 
 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2009 Application 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to meet application 
requirements for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other 
Community Planning and Development (CPD) programs; 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG-eligible projects from participating 
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan; 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Troy has duly advertised and conducted a public hearing on 
November 10, 2008 for the purpose of receiving public comments regarding the proposed use 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

of PY 2009 Community Development Block Grant funds (CDBG) in the approximate amount of 
$158,321.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy found that the following projects meet the federal objectives of the 
CDBG program and are prioritized by the community as high priority need: 
 

Account Number  Project Name   Amount 
172170-730744    Flood Drain Improvements  $84,811.00 
172160-732170  Public Services (Yard Services) $71,010.00 
172140-730789  General Program Administration $  2,500.00 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City of 
Troy CDBG application be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in Oakland County’s 
Annual Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts 
which result from this application to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown 

Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 

Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory 

Board; and Troy Daze Committee 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Downtown Development Authority  
Appointed by Mayor (13-Regular) 4-Year Term 
 
Laurence G. Keisling Term Expires 09/30/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

Angela Done Term Expires 11/01/2011 

 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 

 
Lisa Martinico Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 2 & 3 Year Terms  
 

Aries Tao                                                       Student Term Expires 07/01/2009 

 

Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Jim Hattan Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Alison Miller Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Robert S. Preston Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Yes: 
No: 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: Planning Commission (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory 

Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Study Committee; and 

Parks & Recreation Board    

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor  (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term Expires 12/31/2010 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council  hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
 

 Term Expires 11/01/2011 

  

Alternate Term Expires 11/01/2009 

 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 Ad Hoc 

 

Parks & Recreation Board  
(7-Regular) 3-Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) 1-Year Term; (1-Troy Daze Committee) 1-Year 
Term; (1-Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens) 1-Year Term 
 

*Troy Daze Rep. Term Expires 11/30/2009 

*Rec’d recommendation from Troy Daze Committee  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 Acceptance of Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program:  Arts and Culture General 

Support Grant of $40,000.00 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Historical Museum to 
receive the Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program: Arts and Culture General Support Grant, for 
$40,000.00, to be distributed over a two-year period from July 1, 2008—June 30, 2010. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive Programs 
 

a)  Voluntary Separation Defined Contribution (DC) to Defined Benefit (DB) Program 

for Retirement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012;  
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness;  
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire;  
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 13 Troy Command Officer Association (TCOA) employees will meet 
the eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of December 31, 2008; and   
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Voluntary Separation Defined Contribution (DC) to Defined Benefit 
(DB) Program for Retirement has been reviewed and is recommended by City management as 
a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create position vacancies, and provide City 
management with the opportunity to reduce costs, reorganize and restructure operations; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for Retirement to be 
offered to TCOA DC bargaining unit retirement system members who will be eligible to retire on 
or before December 31, 2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for 
Retirement may be offered during a 45-day window of opportunity beginning November 15, 
2008 and ending December 30, 2008; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for 
Retirement shall be obtained from the funds contained in the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That interested employees meeting eligibility requirements must 
accept the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for Retirement offer and written application 
to retire must be filed with the City on or before December 30, 2008.  In no event will the 
retirement date be later than December 31, 2008; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to collectively bargain participation in the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for 
Retirement with the TCOA union who represent members of the Defined Contribution Plan. 
 

AND 
 

b) Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 

 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2009, 2010 and 2011;  
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 70 City of Troy employees will meet the eligibility criteria for a direct 
retirement and approximately 24 City of Troy employees meet the early retirement eligibility 
criteria from City employment as of December 31, 2008; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement has been 
reviewed and is recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce 
levels, create position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce 
costs, reorganize and restructure operations; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement to be 
offered to non-represented retirement system members, represented retirement system 
members whose collective bargaining agreement provides for a ―me, too‖ and to all other 
collective bargaining unit members who will be eligible to retire on or before December 31, 
2008; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement 
may be offered during a 60-day window of opportunity beginning November 1, 2008 and ending 
December 30, 2008, with said incentive being a lump sum payment of one week of base salary 
plus service increment, determined as of December 31, 2008 for each full year of retirement 
service as of December 31, 2008; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for 
Retirement shall be obtained from surplus funds available in the existing City of Troy 
Employees’ Retirement System retirement account; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees on the Defined Benefit and Defined 
Contribution retirement plans desiring to participate in the Voluntary Separation Incentive 
Program for Retirement must file written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of 
their requested retirement date which shall be no later than December 31, 2008 with the 
Employees’ Retirement System on the appropriate form, but in no event shall the application 
form be filed later than November 30, 2008; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive 
pay shall not be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the 
Defined Benefit Plan.  Contributions will be made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan 
by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement with 
represented Employees’ Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Proposed 2009 City Council Meetings 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings in 2009 according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 PM: 
 

Monday, January 5 & 26 
Monday, February 2 & 16   
Monday, March 2 & 16 
Monday, April 6 & 20 
Monday, May 11 & 18 
Monday, June 1 & 15 
Monday, July 6 & 20 
Monday, August 3 & 17 
Monday, September 14 & 28 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

Monday, October 5 & 19 
Monday, November 9 & 23 
Monday, December 7 & 21 

 
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
 

Wednesday, February 11 7:30 PM  
Wednesday, February 18 7:30 PM   

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council MAY SCHEDULE Special Meetings as 
needed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Donation of the Old Stone School Property to the City of Troy – Section 6, Sidwell 

#88-20-06-101-001 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to donate the Old 
Stone School property by Finn and Mary Louise Bergishagen to the City of Troy, having Sidwell 
#88-20-06-101-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to sign the Donation Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
reimbursement of expenses to the donors as stated in the Agreement in an amount not to 
exceed $9,950.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete the transfer 
of ownership not to exceed $500.00; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed conveying title of the property to the City with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

  

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of October 20, 2008 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 

a)  America Recycles 2008 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Troy Hall of Justice HVAC 

Upgrade of Major Mechanical Systems                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide HVAC System 
Upgrades for the Troy Hall of Justice including Alternate #1, the gun range, to the highest rated 
bidder, Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. of Auburn Hills, MI, as a result of a best value process 
at prices contained on the tabulation opened October 1, 2008, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and to MCMI of Sterling Heights, MI for the 
temperature controls for a combined total project cost of $1,385,689.00, as detailed in 
Appendix I; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and 
all other specified requirements. 
 

F-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Rochester Road Improvements, 

Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #59 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-044 

– ALIF Corporation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between ALIF Corporation, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-401-
044, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road Improvements, 
Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $1,400.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 

Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #28 – Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026 – Dennis E. Bushon 

and Mary Josephine Bushon 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Dennis E. Bushon and Mary Josephine Bushon, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $38,100.00 plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $2,700.00 from Dennis E. Bushon and Mary Josephine 
Bushon, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road 

Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #1 – Sidwell #88-

20-23-303-001 – Rochester Development Group, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $15,000.00 from Rochester Development Group, LLC, owner of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-23-303-001; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 

Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #45 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043 – Gordon P. 

Meldrum and Carol A. Meldrum 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Gordon P. Meldrum and Carol A. Meldrum, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $15,100.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $4,000.00 from Gordon P. Meldrum and Carol A. Meldrum, 
owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – 

Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #27 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-018 – Trombly 

Investment Company 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Trombly Investment Company, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-22-401-018, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $57,700.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $3,700.00 from Trombly Investment Company, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-22-401-018; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Request from Smith Middle School to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on Donaldson 
from Square Lake to Cotswald on November 12 and 13, 2008, between the hours of 12:30 PM 
and 3:30 PM, and 6:30 PM and 9:30 PM, March 6, 2009, between the hours of 6:30 PM and 
8:30 PM,  March 12, 2009, between the hours of 12:30 PM and 3:30 PM, and 6:30 PM and 
9:30 PM,  and June 16, 2009, between the hours of 9:00 AM and 12:00 Noon. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

F-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request that the City transfer 
Municipal Credit funds in the amount of $76,084.00 and Community Credit funds in the amount 
of $110,732.00 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service for senior 

citizens and persons with disabilities, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-12 2008 Request to Waive Recapture Form 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28

th
);  

 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation;  
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2006 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2008; 
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2006 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver; and  
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2006 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
Friday, December 15, 2008; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS to waive 
recapture of 2006 CDBG funds as follows: 
 

Account Number   Project Name    Amount 
  
731815    Special Assessment  $93,816.00 
 
732170    Yard Services   $35,023.05     



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

 

F-13 Private Agreement for Tim Horton’s – Project No. 08.915.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy Rochester 
Properties, L.L.C., for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer manhole, concrete right turn 
lane, approach, and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-14 Contract Amendment:  Extended Warranty In-Car Video System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, On October 16, 2006, a contract to purchase a digital in-car video system 
including hardware, software, installation and training from International Police Technologies 
was approved for an estimated total cost of $291,000.00, (Resolution #2006-10-392-F2);  
 
WHEREAS, On December 17, 2007, a contract to purchase an additional twelve (12) in-car 
digital video cameras including hardware and software from International Police Technologies 
was approved for an estimated total cost of $67,068.00 (Resolution #2007-12-359-E2); and 
 
WHEREAS, The units are either out of warranty or will be out of warranty in April 2009, and 
require an extended warranty to cover all costs for any repairs;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the contract to 
purchase the extended warranty program for the in-car digital cameras directly from the 
manufacturer, International Police Technologies at an estimated total cost of $68,900.00 to be 
paid over five years.    
 

F-15 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Lawrence Feld, 

Secretary of the Benevolent Association of AFSCME – Local 574 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from The Benevolent 
Association of AFSCME Local 574, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization 
operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Scheduled 
      

G-2 Memorandums:   

a) Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance – November 24, 2008   
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 

  

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Cable Advisory Committee/Final – April 17, 2008 

b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 15, 2008 

c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – August 26, 2008 

d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – September 2, 2008  

e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – September 3, 2008  

f) Library Advisory Board/Final – September 11, 2008  

g) Special Joint Meeting Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning Commission – 
September 22, 2008 

h) Youth Council/Final – September 24, 2008  

i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 1, 2008  

j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 14, 2008  

k) Planning Commission/Draft – October 14, 2008  

l) Planning Commission/Final – October 14, 2008  

m) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 16, 2008 

n) Youth Council/Draft – October 22, 2008  
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Troy Historical Museum Annual Report 2007-2008  

b) Troy Public Library Annual Report 2007-2008 
  

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Michael Farrug Commending the Professionalism of Officer 
Christina Giovannoni  

b) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from Dale Dawkins Regarding the Support 
of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise  

c) Letter to Jennifer Lawson from SEMCOG Regarding Participation with the Low Impact 
Development (LID) Manual  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

d) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft and Staff for Participation in the CREST Radiation 
Exercise  

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Gary Mayer from Terry Nerbonne Regarding the 
Assistance with the Ferris State University Criminal Justice Summer 2008 Internship 
Program   

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from the Royal Oak Police Department Regarding the 
Support of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise  

g) Letter of Thanks to Officers Rockafellow and Raymer from Denise Geromette    
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None 
 

J-5  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding the City of Troy 

Master Plan 
 

J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes – September 18, 2008 
 

J-7 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Inter-Modal Transit 

Facility Project Scope – Concept and Preliminary Engineering Design Services to 

Construction   
 

J-8  Unofficial Results – November 4, 2008 Election 

   

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Preliminary Discussion of the 2009/10 Budget 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 10, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 

satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, November 24, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 1, 2008 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 15, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

AMERICA RECYCLES 2008 
 

WHEREAS, The world has changed a lot in the past century.  From individually packaged food 
servings to disposable diapers, more garbage is generated now than ever before.  The average 
American discards 7.5 pounds of garbage every day.  Our garbage, our solid waste stream, all goes to 
landfills, where it’s compacted and buried; and 
 
WHEREAS, To focus the nation’s attention on the importance of recycling, businesses, industries, 
government agencies, nonprofit organizations, and individuals have joined together to celebrate 
America Recycles 2008 and are encouraging their employees, staff, customers, membership, and all 
citizens to pledge to buy more recycled-content products starting today; and 
 
WHEREAS, Participating in America Recycles 2008 is one way our citizens can help raise 
awareness about the need to reduce waste by reusing, recycling and buying recycled products; and 
 
WHEREAS, The more we recycle, the less garbage winds up in our landfills and incineration plants.  
By reusing aluminum, paper, glass, plastics and other materials, we can save production and energy 
costs, and reduce by up to 75% the negative impacts that the extraction and processing of virgin 
materials has on the environment. Plastics, made from precious and nonrenewable petroleum, and 
aluminum, which is mined from bauxite, are especially important to recycle; and  
 
WHEREAS, Recycling helps protect our resources, our environment, and our quality of life. The entire 
loop: Reduce, Reuse, Recycle is completed when we buy products made from recycled material; and 
 
WHEREAS, From July 2007 to June 2008, the City of Troy recycled 4,223 tons of glass, paperboard, 
cardboard, newspaper, metal, tin, and plastic and 10,753 tons of compost; and  
 
WHEREAS, State and community leaders need to spread the word about the excellent programs they 
have established, the growth of markets for recyclable materials, and the importance of buying 
recycled products; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Troy City Council hereby proclaims America 
Recycles 2008 in Troy, Michigan, and urges all Troy residents to Reduce, Reuse and Recycle; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That America Recycles 2008 is celebrated year-round to encourage 
people to recycle and buy products made from recycled materials. The theme for America Recycles 
2008 is "It All Comes Back To You."  
 
Presented this 10th day of November 2008. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



campbellld
Text Box
A-01c



 

 
 
October 27, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT:               Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2009 Application 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Oakland County has advised the City of Troy to use $158,321.00 as our planning estimate for the 

program year 2009. 
 
 The following projects are being recommended for the 2009 CDBG program: 

o Flood Drain Improvements:  
Lovington Storm Sewer – Minnesota to Dequindre  $  84,811.00 

o Home Chore Program:           71,010.00 
o Administration:                          2,500.00                                  

          
o TOTAL:                      $158,321.00 

 
 Federal regulations require Oakland County as an “urban county” grantee to execute an annual 

Subrecipient Agreement with each participating community. We must submit the signed 
Agreement with our application.  

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Oakland County will allow participating communities to spend a maximum of 45% of their annual 

allocation on public services.  We are currently at 44.9%.  
 Oakland County will allow participating communities to allocate a minimum of $2,500 for each 

activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 CDBG improves the quality of life and property to qualified residents in the City of Troy.  

(Outcome Statement II) 
 
 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council approve the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2009 

application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 11.10.08 – CDBG 2009 Application  



LC/KresgeGrantAcceptance2008.doc 

 

 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance & Administration 
    Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
    Loraine M. Campbell, Museum Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Acceptance of Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program: Arts and Culture  
    General Support Grant of $40,000   
 
Background: 
 
 The Kresge Foundation instituted the “Detroit Program: Arts and Culture Grants” to provide 

general operations grants to not-for-profit and government funded organizations that strengthen 
Detroit and regional neighborhoods, reinvigorate the regional economy, and promote arts and 
culture. The Kresge Foundation maintains that arts and cultural organizations enrich the fabric of 
daily life, nurture individual development, and strengthen communities. 
 

 The Troy Museum & Historic Village applied for and was awarded a General Support Grant of 
$40,000 for general operating support of the Museum for the period of July 1, 2008 through  
June 30, 2010. The first payment of $20,000 is scheduled for November 26, 2008. The second 
$20,000 payment will be provided in July 2009, predicated on receipt and approval by the Kresge 
Foundation of the May 2008 annual report.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The general operating funds awarded will enhance the Museum’s fiscal sustainability and the 

staff’s ability to develop and implement strategic planning.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The City of Troy and the Troy Museum can meet the reporting requirements and grant conditions 

as provided by the Kresge Foundation. 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



LC/KresgeGrantAcceptance2008.doc 

 

Policy Considerations: 
 
 This recommendation addresses the following Outcome Statements: 

Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 
venues;  
Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world.  

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends acceptance of the Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program: Arts and 

Culture General Support Grant of $40,000 awarded to the Troy Museum & Historic Village for the 
period of July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2010. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





































































 
 
November 4, 2008                             
 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT: Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive Programs 
 
 
The preliminary projections for the 2009/10 City budget show an approximate $5 million 
short fall in revenues versus expenditures.   As one means to address this situation City 
management recommends City Council approve two Voluntary Separation Retirement 
Incentive Programs.  The goal in offering this type of incentive is to realize permanent 
efficiencies in staffing through re-assignment of remaining employees; combining like 
services; and helping to fund highly rated services while at the same time addressing 
some of our budgetary concerns. 

 
The cost benefit analysis attached to this report covers different scenarios based on the 
number of employees retiring under the incentive programs.  The first year’s savings 
takes into consideration actual savings of not replacing a given number of retiring 
employees, the time other positions will likely remain vacant and the cost to the 
retirement system. The 2

nd
 – 5

th
 yearly savings reflects the savings of not replacing a 

given number of employees vs. the cost to the retirement system. The 6
th

 – 30
th

 yearly 
savings reflects the savings of not replacing a given number of employees vs. the cost 
to the retirement system for health care. 

 
City management recommends a five-year funding recovery for pension benefits and 
thirty-year funding recovery for retiree health care benefits in line with our Other Post 
Employment Benefits (OPEB) report. Even though we have an over-funded pension 
plan, we are following the Government Finance Officers Association’s recommended 
practice of not allocating any actuarial surplus to finance the incremental costs of the 
retirement incentive.    
 
Following is a description of the two Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive 
Programs. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL    

AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive Programs 
November 4, 2008 
Page Two 
 
 
Voluntary Separation Defined Contribution (DC) to Defined Benefit (DB) Program for 
Retirement 
 
The City of Troy has seen a reduction of taxable value of real estate which is adversely 
affecting the operating revenues.  City management predicts significant budget short-
falls for fiscal years 2010, 2011, and 2012. Operational expenses need to be reduced 
while continuing the effectiveness of City services. 

 
In order to reduce operational expenses and simultaneously restructure the City’s 
operations, it is suggested to provide a voluntary separation DC to DB program for 
those who are eligible to retire.   
 
City management has come up with a plan supported by the Troy Command Officers 
Association (TCOA) bargaining team on a retirement incentive program that would 
permit current TCOA DC members who are eligible to retire as of December 31, 2008 
to revert back to the DB plan with their pension based solely on their accumulated DC 
account balance, as long as they retire by December 31, 2008.  Approximately 13 
TCOA employees are eligible to retire as of December 31, 2008. 

 
During contract negotiations with the TCOA the topic of retirement incentives was 
discussed and the DC to DB conversion and the Voluntary Separation Incentive 
Program are two measures City management would like to offer to meet the goals of 
reducing expenditures and re-organizing the department. 
 
The cost associated with the implementation of this program will be funded by 
employee DC funds (see the attached report from Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company). 
 
Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement 

 

In order to reduce operational expenses and simultaneously restructure the City’s 
operations, it is suggested to provide a Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for 
Retirement for those who are eligible to retire.  Approximately 69 City of Troy 
employees are eligible to retire and 24 are eligible for early retirement.  
 
The cost associated with the implementation of this program will be absorbed by the 
Employee Retirement System.  See attached report from Gabriel Roeder Smith & 
Company. 
 

As always, if Council has any questions or requires further clarification, please contact 
us. 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA\2008\11.10.08 –Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentives Programs 



























 TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager  
 
FROM: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Proposed 2009 City Council Meetings  
 
DATE:  November 6, 2008 
 
 
The Community Affairs Department is working on a number of projects for 2009.   We need your 
assistance regarding dates for the 2009 City Council meetings for inclusion on the City website 
calendar and in future Troy Today issues.  The following dates take into account all holidays and 
election days, and are submitted for your approval: 
 
Monday, January 5 & 26 
Monday, February 2 & 16   
Monday, March 2 & 16 
Monday, April 6 & 20 
Monday, May 11 & 18 
Monday, June 1 & 15 
Monday, July 6 & 20 
Monday, August 3 & 17 
Monday, September 14 & 28 
Monday, October 5 & 19 
Monday, November 9 & 23 
Monday, December 7 & 21 
 
 
Dates submitted for Liquor Violation Hearings: 
 
Wednesday, February 11 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 18 7:30 pm   
 
 
 
 
 
 
CS 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



campbellld
Text Box
E-06

























































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 20, 2008, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Pastor Pennington of Community of Christ Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 

CALL TO ORDER: 

  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a. On behalf of Oakland County, Oakland County Clerk Ruth Johnson recognized Tonni L. 

Bartholomew, City Clerk by presenting her with a proclamation for her contribution to the 
countywide Voting Opportunities Through Education (V.O.T.E.) Program. 

b. On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Rhonda 
Hendrikson, Maria Hunicag and Tom Krent, representatives of the Friends of the Troy 
Public Library, in recognition of their 50

th
 Anniversary Celebration.  

c. Jay Wiencko, Executive Director of Your PEG Funds at Work for the Public provided a 
Community Media Network Update. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application – Rescinding of Concept Development Plan Approval – The 

Oasis at Centennial Park Planned Unit Development, South Side of Long Lake and 

West Side of John R, Section 14 – From Current Zoning of PUD-006 Back to 

Previous R-1C (File Number PUD-006)   
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 

 
Resolution #2008-10-317 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from PUD-006 to R-1C, File Number 
PUD-006, as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of 
Troy and as illustrated in the attached Certified Survey; 
 
WHEREAS, The application is consistent with the Master Plan, and is compatible with 
surrounding zoning districts and land uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The rezoning is recommended for approval by the Planning Commission; 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed 
rezoning from PUD-006 to R-1C; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Zoning District Map. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Scott Walker 
Marvin Reinhardt 
Tom Krent 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 

Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with 

Disabilities 

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – None Scheduled  
 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution #2008-10-318 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Broomfield   
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities: 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Kelly Clark Term Expires 11/01/2011 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations:  Downtown Development Authority (b) City Council Nominations: 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; and Troy Daze Committee   

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Resolution #2008-10-319 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Downtown Development Authority  
Appointed by Mayor (13-Regular) 4-Year Term 
 
Laurence G. Keisling Term Expires 09/30/2012 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Resolution #2008-10-320 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Kerwin  

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council  hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
 
Angela Done Term Expires 11/01/2011* 

 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

Lisa Martinico Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by  (#of Members) – # years 
 
Aries Tao - Student Term Expires 07/01/2009  

 

Troy Daze Committee  
(9-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Jim Hattan Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Alison Miller Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Robert S. Preston Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-3 Frank Lawrence v. City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2008-10-321 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Frank Lawrence 
v. City of Troy, and to retain any necessary expert witnesses or pay any necessary costs to 
adequately represent the City.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
  

CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-09-322 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item F-12, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-2  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of October 6, 2008 as amended. 
 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
a. Friends of the Troy Public Library 50

th
 Anniversary Celebration 

   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Home Chore Lawn 

and Yard Services                     
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On December 3, 2007, a contract for seasonal requirements of Lawn and Yard 
Services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year was awarded to the low bidder, Zimmerman Lawn and Snow of Roseville, 
Michigan at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 18, 2007, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting (Resolution #2007-12-345-
F4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Zimmerman Lawn and Snow has agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew their contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
option to renew the contract with Zimmerman Lawn and Snow to provide seasonal 
requirements of Lawn and Yard Services for Troy residents using the Home Chore 
Program under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring December 31, 2009.    
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Snow Removal 

Services – Home Chore Program                     
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-4b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for the Home Chore Program with an option to renew 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

for one (1) additional year to the low total bidders, Meticulous Maintenance of Hazel Park, as 
primary contractor and O’Neal Father & Sons of Clinton Township, as secondary contractor, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened August 29, 2008, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of May 1, 2009; 
and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Bare Root Street Trees                     
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-4c 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide and install bare 
root residential ROW trees for the 2008/2009 planting season to the low bidder, Marine City 
Nursery of Marine City, MI, at $71.70 per tree installation for an estimated total cost of 
$358,500.00, in accordance with the bid tabulation opened October 9, 2008, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and 
all other specified requirements.  
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Award to Low Bidders Meeting Specifications 

– Ice Melt Compounds                     
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-4d 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one (1) year 
requirements of ice melt compounds with an option to renew for one (1) additional year for the 
City of Troy and participating MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Purchasing 
Cooperative Members by proposal to the lowest acceptable bidders:  John Deere Landscapes, of 
Madison Heights, MI, Proposal A and Colman Wolf Supply, of Roseville, MI, Proposal B, at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 8, 2008, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring October 31, 2009. 
 

F-5 Approval to Purchase Property from the Oakland County Drain Commission – 

McCullough Drain District, Part of Sidwell #88-20-22-101-012 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council APPROVES the purchase of a portion of land measuring 
175.5’ front x 288’ deep with the 60’ right-of-way located in the City of Troy and owned by the 
Oakland County Drain Commission – McCulloch Drain District, being part of Sidwell #88-20-22-
101-012 in the amount of $8,064.00; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this 
purchase. 
 

F-6 Acceptance of a Warranty Deed for Right-of-Way and Four Permanent Easements 

– Sidwell #88-20-15-380-026 and -024 – RWT Building, LLC 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed for right-of-way and 
four Permanent Easements for drainage, public utilities, sidewalk and a public walkway from 
property owner RWT Building, LLC, owners of the property having Sidwell # 88-20-15-380-026 
and -024; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a 

copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #11 – 

Sidwell #88-20-23-100-065 – 3800 Place, LLC  
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between 3800 Place, LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-
065, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road Improvements, 
Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $75,300.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $1,900.00 from 3800 Place, LLC, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-23-100-065; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #48 – 

Sidwell #88-20-22-226-040 – Terri L. Carter  
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-8 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Terri L. Carter, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-040, 
and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road Improvements, 
Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $15,600.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $2,200.00 from Terri L. Carter, owner of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-22-226-040; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Wattles Road Improvements, 

Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #11 – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-

062 – James C. Bracewell   
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $2,900.00 from James C. Bracewell, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-
14-351-062; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Contract Renewal – Snow Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-10 
 
WHEREAS, On November 19, 2007, contracts to provide seasonal requirements of snow 
removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) additional 
season was awarded to Florence Cement Company, Deano Mac’s Services, DiPonio 
Contracting, Sterling Topsoil and Grading, and Agra Landscaping, as a result of an informal 
quote process at the hourly rates contained in Appendix A, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting (Resolution #2007-11-332-F6); and 
 
WHEREAS, The following three (3) companies have agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew their contracts under the same pricing, terms, and conditions: 
 

COMPANY NAME LOCATION 
Florence Cement Company Shelby Township, MI 
DiPonio Contracting   Shelby Township, MI 
Sterling Topsoil and Grading Fraser, MI  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts with Florence Cement Company, DiPonio Contracting, and Sterling Topsoil 
and Grading  under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring April 15, 2009, 

CONTINGENT upon contractors’ submission of properly executed contract documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to 
extend the hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the awarded vendors have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 
 

F-11 Announcement of Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

 2009 Application 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-11 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing on November 10, 
2008 at 7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing 
public comments on the adoption of the Community Development Block Grant 2009 
application. 
 

F-13 Approval of MDOT Construction Contract No. 08-5406 – Congestion Mitigation and 

Air Quality (CMAQ) and Safety Projects 

 Project No. 07.103.5 – Coolidge at Golfview Traffic Signal Upgrade 

 Project No. 07.108.6 – Livernois Southbound At Big Beaver Right Turn Lane 

 Project No. 07.109.6 – Livernois Northbound at Wattles Right Turn Lane 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-13 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Contract No. 08-5406 between 
the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation for the Safety Project at 
Coolidge and Golfview and CMAQ Projects at Livernois and Big Beaver and Livernois at 

Wattles; Project No. 07.103.5, 07.108.6, 07.109.6, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk 

to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-14 Application for New SDM License for Embassy Suites 
 

a. New License 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-14a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Hospitality Ventures, LLC and RBHV Troy, LLC, co-licensees for a new SDM License to be 
held in conjunction with 2008 licensed business with Dance Permit, Official Permit (Food), 
Outdoor Service (1 Area) Direct Connection-1, 3 bars and 251 rooms located at 850 Tower, 
Troy MI 48098; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 

 

b. Agreement 
 
Resolution #2008-10-322-F-14b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Hospitality Ventures, LLC and RBHV Troy, LLC, co-licensees for a new SDM License to be 
held in conjunction with 2008 licensed business with Dance Permit, Official Permit (Food), 
Outdoor Service (1 Area) Direct Connection-1, 3 bars and 251 rooms located at 850 Tower, 

Troy MI 48098; and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-12 William Beaumont Hospital Parking Agreement 
 
Resolution #2008-10-323 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Addendum to the agreement 
between the City of Troy and William Beaumont Hospital for the use of Flynn Park Roadway for 

a period of three years and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, 

a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: All-7  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
    

G-2 Memorandums:  None Submitted 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments  
 
Mayor Schilling reported that Pastor Pennington requested that she announce that the Detroit 
Concert Choir will be presenting America Sings, at Community of Christ Church located at 3830 
Crooks Road in Troy on Saturday, October 25 at 7:00 P.M. She added that a second concert 
will take place at First English Lutheran Church at 800 Vernier Road in Grosse Pointe Woods 
on Sunday, October 26, 2008 at 3:00 P.M. 
 
Council Member Kerwin reported that a Community Coalition’s chief fund raiser, Celebrity Night 
Dinner, will be held this Thursday and noted that tickets are still available. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reported that the Michigan Municipal League’s ethics publication is 
now available on their website. She continued by stating that another publication was made 
available to her when she attended the MML’s convention of the top twenty-five cases since the 
development of the Legal Defense Fund. She noted that Troy is represented in the listing and 
stated that it is interesting the kinds of cases that have impacted municipal law over the last 
twenty-five years. She commended City Attorney Lori Bluhm’s involvement as an active 
member of the Legal Defense Fund and the Michigan Association of Municipal Attorney’s 
board. 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a. Historic Commission/Final – June 24, 2008 
b. Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – July 9, 2008  
c. Downtown Development Authority/Final – July 23, 2008 
d. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – September 3, 2008  
e. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – September 3, 2008  
f. Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – September 3, 2008  
g. Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 8, 2008 
h. Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 10, 2008  
i. Historic District Commission/Final – September 16, 2008  
j. Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – September 23, 2008 
k. Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – September 23, 2008  
l. Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – October 1, 2008  
m. Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 7, 2008 
n. Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 7, 2008  
o. Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 13, 2008 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a. Council Member Mary Kerwin’s Travel Expense Report – MML 110

th
 Annual Conference 

on October 1-4, 2008   
b. Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of September 2008  
c. City Attorney’s Office – 2008 Third Quarter Litigation Report 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a. Letter of Thanks to Chief Nelson and Staff for Participation in the CREST Radiation 

Exercise  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes from August 24, 2008 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Completion of 

Section 4 Weir Flood Control Structure Project and Status of Sylvan Glen Golf 

Course Wetlands 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7  Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Communications 

Plan for Updated Flood Insurance Rate Maps to be Effective January 16, 2009 – 

Five (5) Restudied Locations 
 
Council Member Eisenbacher appreciated staff’s work on providing this information in GIS but 
expressed concern because the extent is different than what he anticipated. Council Member 
Eisenbacher indicated that there are new properties included and a lot of the properties that he 
believed would be removed were not.  
 
Council Member Eisenbacher asked how is a buyer made aware of a flood plain status. Steven 
Vandette, City Engineer understands that the buyer is notified at the time of purchase by the 
real estate agent and the lender providing the mortgage for the purchase. 
 
Council Member Beltramini asked if this information is required to be disclosed when a property 
is listed. Lori Bluhm, City Attorney replied that maps would indicate whether a property is 
located in a flood plain and that insurance is required prior to closing. 
 
Council Member Beltramini worries about this, but does not know if this is an issue that they 
can resolve. 
 
Mayor Schilling suggested that staff inquire with real estate agents to determine when the flood 
plain status has to be disclosed. 
 
Council Member Beltramini asked whether any of the increases in flood plain could be 
attributed to new development. Mr. Vandette understands that these types of increases are 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  October 20, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

generally not related to new development although there may be some isolated and rare 
instances. 
 
Ms. Bluhm added that the Sellers Disclosure Act indicates that the seller is required to identify 
whether or not they have flood insurance on their property at the time of listing. 

 

J-8  Designation of City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm as a Michigan Super Lawyer for 

2008 
Noted and Filed 

 

The meeting RECESSED at 8:42 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 8:54 PM. 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Budgeting for Outcomes – Output Weighting 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:16 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

AMERICA RECYCLES 2008 
 

WHEREAS, The world has changed a lot in the past century.  From individually packaged food 
servings to disposable diapers, more garbage is generated now than ever before.  The average 
American discards 7.5 pounds of garbage every day.  Our garbage, our solid waste stream, all goes to 
landfills, where it’s compacted and buried; and 
 
WHEREAS, To focus the nation’s attention on the importance of recycling, businesses, industries, 
government agencies, nonprofit organizations, and individuals have joined together to celebrate 
America Recycles 2008 and are encouraging their employees, staff, customers, membership, and all 
citizens to pledge to buy more recycled-content products starting today; and 
 
WHEREAS, Participating in America Recycles 2008 is one way our citizens can help raise 
awareness about the need to reduce waste by reusing, recycling and buying recycled products; and 
 
WHEREAS, The more we recycle, the less garbage winds up in our landfills and incineration plants.  
By reusing aluminum, paper, glass, plastics and other materials, we can save production and energy 
costs, and reduce by up to 75% the negative impacts that the extraction and processing of virgin 
materials has on the environment. Plastics, made from precious and nonrenewable petroleum, and 
aluminum, which is mined from bauxite, are especially important to recycle; and  
 
WHEREAS, Recycling helps protect our resources, our environment, and our quality of life. The entire 
loop: Reduce, Reuse, Recycle is completed when we buy products made from recycled material; and 
 
WHEREAS, From July 2007 to June 2008, the City of Troy recycled 4,223 tons of glass, paperboard, 
cardboard, newspaper, metal, tin, and plastic and 10,753 tons of compost; and  
 
WHEREAS, State and community leaders need to spread the word about the excellent programs they 
have established, the growth of markets for recyclable materials, and the importance of buying 
recycled products; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Troy City Council hereby proclaims America 
Recycles 2008 in Troy, Michigan, and urges all Troy residents to Reduce, Reuse and Recycle; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That America Recycles 2008 is celebrated year-round to encourage 
people to recycle and buy products made from recycled materials. The theme for America Recycles 
2008 is "It All Comes Back To You."  
 
Presented this 10th day of November 2008. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03a



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
November 3, 2008 
 

TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Steven A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director 

 

SUBJECT:      Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award-Troy Hall of Justice HVAC    
Upgrade of Major Mechanical Systems  

 

Background 

 The Building Operations Department has been servicing and maintaining the original 1976 Trane 
heating and air conditioning equipment units in the basement of the Troy Hall of Justice. These 
units have well out performed the equipment life cycle of 25 years and due to the age of all the 
units and high cost of operation, these units need to be replaced. 

 On April 21, 2008, Troy City Council approved a contract for Architectural Services for HVAC 
Design to the highest rated bidder, DiClemente Siegel Design Inc. of Southfield, Michigan as a 
result of a best value process. (Resolution 2008-04-142F-4a) 

 DiClemente Siegel Design Inc. along with the City of Troy worked on preliminary design, 
schematic design, specification and design development review, and final City review.  Drawings 
and specifications were developed to be used in bidding the upgrade/replacement portion of the 
project.   

 The project requires all HVAC System Upgrades to be added to the already in place building 
automation system that was installed by MCMI. MCMI is the Andover Controls Corporation 
representative for the State of Michigan and was the contractor that installed the original systems 
currently used at the Community Center, Police/ Fire addition, and Public Library.   

 All new equipment was designed and engineered with L.E.E.D. building standards for optimum 
energy savings. This will reduce the current utility usage for these units by 27%. 

 On August 20, 2008, requests for proposals (RFP) were published on the Michigan Inter-
Governmental Trade Network (MITN) website for upgrading the HVAC system in the Troy Hall of 
Justice building.   

 On September 10, 2008, a mandatory pre-proposal meeting with a complete walk through was 
conducted.  A follow-up walk through was held on September 17, 2008, to allow the contractors 
the opportunity to have their subcontractors visit the site.   

  On October 1, 2008, Request for Qualifications/Proposals were received and opened for the 
HVAC System Upgrade Project.   

 One-hundred Eighty (180) vendors were notified via the MITN system, with six (6) bidders 
responding, one (1) of which did not meet minimum pass/fail requirements.   

 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
November 3, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:     Best Value Award – Troy Hall of Justice HVAC Upgrade of Major Mechanical Systems  
 

Background - continued 

 Three (3) committee members consisting of Steven Pallotta, Building Operations Director, Mark 
Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning and Mark Riley, Inspector Supervisor independently 
evaluated and rated all five (5) proposals.  

 All five (5) firms were interviewed by the full committee on Monday, October 27, 2008. 

 Based on the final scoring and selection criteria of 30% Proposal Score, 40% Price Score, and 
30% Interview Score, the committee recommends awarding the contract as a result of a best 
value process to Heights Heating and Cooling, Inc of Auburn Hills, Michigan.   

 

Financial Considerations 

 The entire HVAC project, including the architectural design and replacement/upgrade portions fall 
within the budget of $1,500,000 that has been allocated for this project.     

 Funds for the Troy Hall of Justice HVAC replacement project were allocated over two years to 
the Capital Budget Reserve.  

 Funds are available in the Building Operations Capital Budget for Buildings & Improvements - City 
Hall HVAC #401.264.265.7975.040. 

 Projected utility cost savings over existing units is estimated at $35,000.00 per year.  
 

Legal Considerations  

 RFQ/RFP-COT 08-26 HVAC System Upgrade was competitively bid and opened with six (6) 
bidders responding, as required by Chapter 7 of the City Code. 

 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest to provide HVAC 
System Upgrades for the Troy Hall of Justice. 

 The contract award is contingent on the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and 
supplemental documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all other specified 
requirements.  

 

Policy Considerations 

 Moving this work forward will improve the overall air quality, and reduce liability for the City. 
(Outcome Statement I) 

 Provides the public with up-to-date energy savings equipment and a healthier environment, in 
accordance with the City’s high standards.  (Outcome Statement II). 

 

Options 

 City management recommends awarding contracts to perform the HVAC System Upgrade for the 
Troy Hall of Justice including Alternate #1, the gun range, to the highest rated bidder, Heights 
Heating & Cooling, Inc, of Auburn Hills, Michigan, as a result of a best value process at prices 
contained on the tabulation dated 10/1/2008; and to MCMI of Sterling Heights, Michigan for the 
temperature controls at a total cost of $191,700.00 for a combined total project cost of 
$1,385,689.00. 

 
 
G:/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Best Value SR8 – RFP – BO – HVAC System Upgrade 11.08



 

 

Appendix I 
 

 

Troy Hall of Justice HVAC System Upgrade – Project Total  

Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc.:  

     HVAC Upgrade - Base Bid  $1,078,843.00 

     HVAC Upgrade - Alternate # 1 – Gun Range Unite Replacement   $115,146.00 

Subtotal:  HVAC Upgrade $1,193,989.00 

  

MCMI – Building Automation System:   

    Temperature Controls - Base bid $189,800.00 

    Temperature Controls -  Alternate #1 - Gun Range Unit Replacement  $1,900.00 

Subtotal:  Temperature Controls $191,700.00 

  

  

PROJECT TOTAL: $1,385,689.00 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 3 of 3 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

HVAC SYSTEM UPGRADE 
 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 One-hundred eighty (180) companies were notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Six (6) proposals were received 

 
 Five (5) companies met the pass/fail criteria 

 
 Interviews were conducted with all five (5) companies 

 
 Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. received the highest score as a result of a best value 

process  
 
The following Five (5) companies received the indicated final scores as a result of 
the criteria for selection:  proposal, pricing and interview scores.  All five (5) rated 
firms were invited to participate in an interview.   
 
   
Company SCORE 
Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. 93 
Engineered Comfort Systems, Inc 90 
Mechanical Services, LLC 79 
R.W. Mead & Sons, Inc. 78 
Arctic Air, Inc.   76 
  
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – COMPANY ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER 
CONSIDERATION (BASED ON PASS/FAIL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS) 
 

 Delta Temp  
 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Proposal, Price and Interview  
 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 
HVAC SYSTEM UPGRADE 

 
Final Score Calculation: 

 
40% x Price Score 
30% x Interview Score 
30% x Proposal Score 
100%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in the order of their summary score for both 
the price and proposal, from highest to lowest.  For the interview, vendors are listed in the order of their 
score, from highest to lowest.  For the final score the vendors are listed in the order of rating from highest 
to lowest.   
 
Weighted Average Score for Price: 40% 
 Weighted Criteria -

[1-(Proposal Price – Lowest Proposal) / lowest 
proposal] x available points 

Final Weighted 
Score (x .40) 

Vendors:   
Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. [1 – (1,078,843.00 -1,062,934.20)/ 1,062,934.20] x 100  =  99 39 
Engineered Comfort Systems, Inc [1 – (1,062,934.20 -1,062.934.20)/ 1,062,934.20] x 100  =100 40 
R.W. Mead & Sons, Inc. [1 – (1,299,200.00 -1,062,934.20)/ 1,062,934.20] x 100  =  78 31 
Mechanical Services, LLC [1 – (1,191,892.00 -1,062,934.20)/ 1,062,934.20] x 100  =  88 35 
Arctic Air, Inc.   [1 – (1,345,120.00 -1,062,934.20)/ 1,062,934.20] x 100  =  73 29 
 
Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 30%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score (x .30)
Vendors:    
Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. 98 74 85 86 26 
Engineered Comfort Systems, Inc 86 59 83 76 23 

R.W. Mead & Sons, Inc. 100 83 77 87 26 
Mechanical Services, LLC 73 76 53 67 20 

Arctic Air, Inc.   100 59 76 78 23 

 
Summary:   Proposal and Price Scores   
 Price Score Proposal Score Score
Vendors:    
Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. 39 26 65
Engineered Comfort Systems, Inc 40 23 63 
R.W. Mead & Sons, Inc. 31 26 57 
Mechanical Services, LLC 35 20 55 
Arctic Air, Inc.   29 23 52 

All five (5) companies were invited to participate in an interview.         
 (Maximum # of points – 30) 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Weighted Average Score for Interview:  30% 
RATERS 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score (x .30)
Vendors:  
Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. 99 88 92 93 28 
Engineered Comfort Systems, Inc 92 90 86 89 27 
R.W. Mead & Sons, Inc. 78 73 62 71 21 
Mechanical Services, LLC 96 78 70 81 24 
Arctic Air, Inc.   92 81 72 82 24 
 

 
FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  Heights Heating & 

Cooling, Inc. 
Engineered 
Comfort 
Systems, Inc 

Mechanical 
Services, LLC 

R.W. Mead & 
Sons, Inc. 

Arctic Air, Inc.  

Proposal 
Score 26 23 20 26 23 

Price Score 39 40 35 31 29 
Interview 
Score 28 27 24 21 24 

FINAL 
SCORE 

93 90 79 78 76 

**HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/ Bid Award 08-09 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – BO – HVAC System Upgrade – WeightedRatingSummary 11.08.doc 



 
SELECTION PROCESS 

 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The identified Committee will review the proposals.  The City of Troy reserves the right to award this 
proposal to the company considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors including but 
not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength and capacity of the firm 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
Companies will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of 
the process.   

 
Phase 2: Evaluation of Proposals 
Each Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the proposals; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process.   

 
Phase 3:  Interview Score 
The City will invite at least the top three (3) rated companies to participate in an interview.  If less than 
three (3) candidates remain in the process, all will be interviewed.  Each Committee Member will 
independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the Interview; each Committee Member will 
calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for 
each company for this phase of the process.  Those being interviewed may be supplied with further 
instructions and requests prior to the interview.  Persons representing the company at the interview must 
be the personnel who will be assigned to this project.  

 
Phase 4:  Price 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 

 
        FORMULA:     {1 – (Proposal Price – Lowest Proposal) / lowest proposal} x available points 

 
Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection  
The company with the highest final weighted score will be recommended to the Troy City Council for 
Award.   
 
 30% Proposal Score (100 point base)  
 40% Price Score       (100 point base) 
  30% Interview Score (100 point base)  
              100%       
 
Note:  The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 
deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 
 
 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-26
Opening Date -- 10/1/08 TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 10/21/2008 jh/sl HVAC SYSTEM UPGRADE

FIRM NAME: Engineered Comfort Heights Heating & Cooling Mechanical Services 
Systems, Inc. (ECS) Inc. LLC

Check # 696942673 9171000391 731135413
Amount 50,000.00$                         50,000.00$                        50,000.00$                           

PROPOSAL:    TO PROVIDE HEATING, VENTILATION,  AND AIR CONDITIONING UPGRADE OF THE MAJOR MECHANICAL SYSTEMS
FOR THE TROY HALL OF JUSTICE BUILDING 

FOUR (4) COPIES (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No) Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL:    Schedule of Values NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED
Cost for Scope of Work as Specified:
Architectural/Civil 41,115.80$                         43,260.00$                        66,376.00$                           
HVAC Demolition 24,043.00$                         18,540.00$                        42,726.00$                           
HVAC New Equipment 682,701.80$                       590,108.00$                      704,175.00$                         
HVAC New Installation 53,030.50$                         98,675.00$                        66,876.00$                           
Electrical 41,532.70$                         63,500.00$                        69,406.00$                           
Sheet Metal & Piping 221,110.40$                       265,760.00$                      250,733.00$                         

LESS: Salvage (600.00)$                             (1,000.00)$                         (8,400.00)$                            
              PROJECT TOTAL:     1,062,934.20$                    1,078,843.00$                    1,191,892.00$                      

ALTERNATE 1 (Option)   GUN RANGE
Cost for Scope of Work as Specified:
Mechanical Demolition 2,304.00$                           6,180.00$                          5,700.00$                             
Air Handling Unit - New Equipment 85,675.00$                         76,735.00$                        80,994.00$                           
Air Handling - Installation 50,620.71$                         32,731.00$                        71,735.00$                           

LESS: Salvage (90.00)$                               (500.00)$                            (1,500.00)$                            
       ALTERNATE 1 TOTAL:     138,509.71$                       115,146.00$                      156,929.00$                         

MANDATORY MEETING Did attend XX XX XX
10% Mobilization; 40% Subs

Completion; 40% Upon 50% Equipmt Delivery
PROGESS PAYMENTS: Completion, 10% Approval Monthly - 25th 30%Installation; 20%Completion

COMPLETION DATE:
Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

LICENSES: Marked as: EX-A "X" "L"

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

TERMS: Blank Blank Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDA #1, #2, & #3 Y or N No Yes Yes

DMS
Delta Temp, Inc:  Project Cost $1,565,100 - failed to provide required insurance documents with proposal 

ATTEST:
Mary Ann Hays
Diane Fisher Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director
G:/RFP 08-26 HVAC System Upgrade

APRIL 15, 2009

SEPTEMBER 10, 2008



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-26
Opening Date -- 10/1/08 TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 10/21/2008 jh/sl HVAC SYSTEM UPGRADE

FIRM NAME: R.W. Mead & Sons, Inc Arctic Air, Inc.

Check # 731150498 609393671
Amount 50,000.00$                        50,000.00$                          

PROPOSAL:    TO PROVIDE HEATING, VENTILATION,  AND AIR CONDITIONING UPGRADE OF THE MAJOR MECHANICAL SYSTEMS
FOR THE TROY HALL OF JUSTICE BUILDING 

FOUR (4) COPIES (Yes or No) Yes Yes

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: (Yes or No) Yes Yes

PROPOSAL:    Schedule of Values NOT TO EXCEED NOT TO EXCEED
Cost for Scope of Work as Specified:
Architectural/Civil 63,500.00$                        65,720.00$                          
HVAC Demolition 37,800.00$                        30,000.00$                          
HVAC New Equipment 652,500.00$                      728,960.00$                        
HVAC New Installation 166,800.00$                      120,840.00$                        
Electrical 51,900.00$                        57,600.00$                          
Sheet Metal & Piping 330,000.00$                      347,000.00$                        

LESS: Salvage (3,300.00)$                         (5,000.00)$                           
              PROJECT TOTAL:     1,299,200.00$                   1,345,120.00$                     

ALTERNATE 1 (Option)   GUN RANGE
Cost for Scope of Work as Specified:
Mechanical Demolition 4,500.00$                          5,730.00$                            
Air Handling Unit - New Equipment 89,400.00$                        96,230.00$                          
Air Handling - Installation 26,400.00$                        21,140.00$                          

LESS: Salvage (500.00)$                            (1,200.00)$                           
       ALTERNATE 1 TOTAL:     119,800.00$                      121,900.00$                        

MANDATORY MEETING Did attend XX XX

Monthly for work completed By the 10th of the Month
PROGESS PAYMENTS: 10% Retention for Work Completed

COMPLETION DATE: Can Meet XX XX

Cannot Meet
LICENSES: Marked as: Ex "A" "Licenses"

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed Y or N Yes Yes

TERMS: Monthly Progress Paymts. Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes

ADDENDA #1, #2, & #3 Y or N Yes Yes

G:/RFP 08-26 HVAC System Upgrade

SEPTEMBER 10, 2008

APRIL 15, 2009



campbellld
Text Box
F-05













campbellld
Text Box
F-06

















campbellld
Text Box
F-07









campbellld
Text Box
F-08

















campbellld
Text Box
F-09

















 
October 20, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police   
   William Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions  
 
Background: 
 

• Smith Middle School is requesting that the parking restrictions on Donaldson street from 
Square Lake Road to Cotswald street, so that they may host school activities on the following 
dates: 

 November 12 and 13, 2008, between the hours of 12:30 pm and 3:30 pm, and 6:30 pm 
and 9:30 pm (Parent Teacher Conferences) 

 March 6, 2009, between the hours of 6:30 pm and 8:30 pm (Family Fun Friday) 
 March 12, 2009, between the hours of 12:30 pm and 3:30 pm, and 6:30 pm and 9:30 

pm (Parent Teacher Conferences) 
 June 16, 2009, between the hours of 9:00 am and 12:00 noon (8th Grade Promotion) 

• Both sides of Donaldson are posted no parking areas and parking at Smith Middle School is 
limited.   

• The waiving of the restrictions would allow attendees to park on Donaldson but would not 
significantly impact emergency vehicle traffic. 

• Smith Middle School makes such requests and is granted a variance regularly; no problems 
have ever been reported.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 N/A 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Ordinance prohibits parking on Donaldson; therefore, City Council action is required to grant 

a variance. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Troy has enhanced the safety and health of the community.   

 
Options: 
 
 Approve or deny the request. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-10



 

 
 
October 22, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Carol Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT:  Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are given directly to the Suburban Mobility 

Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) to be divided among every city, township and 
village in Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita basis.  Community credits are a 
direct result of the SMART millage that provides opt-in communities with additional funds.  

 
 Troy’s municipal and community credit dollars have been used to support the community based 

Troy Medi-Go Plus service.  Medi-Go Plus provided over 11,000 rides to 322 unique senior and 
disabled riders in 2007.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There is neither expense nor financial implications to the City for this program.  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There is no change to format and content of previous agreements with Medi-Go. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 These funds must be used for local public transportation.  Medi-Go provides door-to-door service 

and wheelchair accessible vehicles.  For these reasons, Medi-Go is well suited for our frail elderly 
and disabled population.  (Outcome Statement 1 and 2 )  

 
 
 
 
 
Options: 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-11



 
 The City can transfer Municipal Credit funds in the amount of $76,084 and Community Credit 

funds in the amount of $110,732 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service 
for senior citizens and persons with disabilities. 

 
 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 







 

 
 
October 24, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director   
 
SUBJECT:   2008 Request to Waive Recapture Form 
 
Background: 
 
 The Community and Home Improvement Division of Oakland County has advised us, as a 

standard practice, to submit a waiver request to protect year 2006 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds from recapture for one additional year.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Absent a waiver all unobligated 2006 funds would be recaptured December 31, 2008. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends submitting the 2008 request to waive recapture form. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 11.10.08-Request to Waive Recapture  
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-12



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT  
2008 REQUEST TO WAIVE RECAPTURE FORM 

 

 
 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current program year 
allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th).  To help 
comply with the regulation, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy 
allowing communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years.  Therefore, 
all unobligated 2006 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2008. 
 
A community may protect unobligated 2006 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver.  Submittal of the following information and a governing body 
resolution from the community requesting a one year deferral of recapture constitutes the 
Request to Waive Recapture.  A separate form must be submitted for each 2006 line 
item.  

 
Community Name: City of Troy 
 
Date request submitted: November 14, 2008 
 
2006 CDBG Project Title: Special Assessment (Sanitary Sewer Benefit Use Fee) 
 
Amount of funds to be retained: $93,816.00 
 
Description and Location of activity: Pay special assessment (Sanitary Sewer Benefit Use 
Fee) for Sanitary Sewer Construction in Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6.  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason for NOT completing project as specified on original 2006 application: 
Fewer residents than anticipated qualified per income limits for funds. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Provide a corrective action plan and specific project implementation plans scheduled for the 
next calendar year.  Projects must be completed by December 31, 2009 
 
Date: November 10, 2008      Corrective Action:  
Funds will be reprogrammed early in 2009 to Section 36 Park Project. Funds will be 
exhausted Prior to December 31, 2009. 

 
 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS ARE DUE TO KARRY L. RIETH, DIVISION MANAGER  
NO LATER THAN MONDAY DECEMBER 15, 2008 



 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT  
2008 REQUEST TO WAIVE RECAPTURE FORM 

 

 
 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current program year 
allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th).  To help 
comply with the regulation, the Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy 
allowing communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years.  Therefore, 
all unobligated 2006 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2008. 
 
A community may protect unobligated 2006 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver.  Submittal of the following information and a governing body 
resolution from the community requesting a one year deferral of recapture constitutes the 
Request to Waive Recapture.  A separate form must be submitted for each 2006 line 
item.  

 
Community Name: City of Troy 
 
Date request submitted: November 14, 2008 
 
2006 CDBG Project Title: Public Services 
 
Amount of funds to be retained: $35,023.05 
 
Description and Location of activity:  
Fund home chore program for approximately 80 income qualified seniors and persons with 
disabilities per Oakland County Guidelines. City Wide. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason for NOT completing project as specified on original 2006 application: 
Less snowfall than anticipated in 2006, therefore contractor for snow removal was not called 
out as many times as past years. Snow removal and lawn maintenance bid price submitted 
by contractors were lower than previous years. 
 
 
Provide a corrective action plan and specific project implementation plans scheduled for the 
next calendar year.  Projects must be completed by December 31, 2009 
 
Date: November 10, 2008    Corrective Action:  

 

WAIVER REQUESTS ARE DUE TO KARRY L. RIETH, DIVISION MANAGER  
NO LATER THAN MONDAY DECEMBER 15, 2008 



Funds will be applied to Fall 2008 yard cleanup and snow removal for Winter 2008 and early 
2009. 
 



campbellld
Text Box
F-13











 

 
 
October 28, 2008 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
     
SUBJECT: Contract Amendment:  Extended Warranty In-Car Video System 
 
 

Background 

 In October, 2006 and December 2007, City Council authorized the purchase of an In-car Digital Video 
System including cameras.  The system chosen is named VisionHawk and manufactured by International 
Police Technologies (IPT).  Resolution # (2006-10-392-F2 / 2007-12-359-E2 respectively)  

 The department initially purchased 40 units and the backbone of the system in FY 2006/07 and finished 
the project by purchasing (12) additional units the following FY 2007/08. 

 All units were fully warranted for one year from the date of installation.  The initial 40 units are now out of 
warranty.   

 IPT offers a schedule to purchase an extended warranty.  The warranty covers everything—parts, labor, 
and shipping.  The department incurs no additional cost for repairs. 

 The cost per unit for the first year out of warranty is $250.00, the second $300.00, the third $350.00, and 
the fourth $400.00.  By fiscal year, the warranty costs for the department would be $10,000 in FY 2008/09, 
$15,250 in FY 2009/10, $17,900 in FY 2010/11, $20,550 in FY 2011/12, and $5,200 in 2012/13.  The 
grand total over the lifetime of the warranty period is $68,900.00. 

 

Financial Considerations 

 Funding for the extended warranty is available in the Police Department operating account for Contractual 
Services General, #334.7802.070.  

 

Legal Considerations 

 The warranty gives the City specific legal rights and responsibilities of both parties.  
 

Policy Considerations 
 The health and safety of the community will be enhanced. (Outcome Statement I)   
 

Options 

 City management recommends City Council amend the contract with IPT and purchase the extended 
warranty program for the in-car digital cameras at an estimated total cost of $68,900.00 spread over five 
years.   

 
Wm/H:\Council Agenda Items\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 In Car Camera Extended Warranty Pricing.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-14



NO. OVH USB Current Warranty Installed Expiration 2nd year 3rd year 4th year 5th year
1 60711 50716 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
2 60712 50715 1 Yr Standard 2/15/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
3 60714 50717 1 Yr Standard 3/20/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
4 60715 50742 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
5 60739 50714 1 Yr Standard 2/15/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
6 60740 50713 1 Yr Standard 1/29/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
7 60713 50741 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
8 60751 50755 1 Yr Standard 1/31/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
9 60756 50758 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00

10 60754 50756 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
11 60752 50754 1 Yr Standard 1/31/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
12 60753 50753 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
13 60750 50752 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
14 60757 50762 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
15 60759 50765 1 Yr Standard 1/31/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
16 60758 50764 1 Yr Standard 1/31/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
17 60762 50760 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
18 60763 50761 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
19 60761 50759 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
20 60766 50767 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
21 60764 50768 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
22 60760 50766 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
23 60765 50763 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
24 60767 50769 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
25 60768 50771 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
26 60772 50774 1 Yr Standard 3/7/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
27 60771 50773 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
28 60769 50772 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
29 60774 50776 1 Yr Standard 3/7/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
30 60776 50770 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
31 60773 50775 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
32 60775 50777 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
33 60770 50778 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
34 60779 50783 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
35 60780 50780 1 Yr Standard 3/15/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
36 60777 50784 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
37 60782 50779 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
38 60778 50782 1 Yr Standard 3/20/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
39 60783 50785 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
40 60781 50781 1 Yr Standard 3/14/2007 4/1/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
41 61061 51064 1 Yr Standard Spare 8/17/2007 8/17/2008 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00

Troy Police Department Extended Warranty Pricing



42 61427 51424 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
43 61461 51451 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
44 61458 51453 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
45 61459 51454 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
46 61456 51455 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
47 61460 51458 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
48 61462 51456 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
49 61464 51459 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
50 61457 51452 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
51 61454 51460 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
52 61455 51461 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00
53 61463 51457 1 Yr Standard 4/24/2008 4/24/2009 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $400.00

GRAND TOTALS FOR YEAR END $68,900.00 $10,000.00 $15,250.00 $17,900.00 $20,550.00 $5,200.00
FY 2008/09 FY 2009/10 FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12 FY 2012/13

Grand Total to extend all VisionHawk System warranties for a five year period from expiration date $68,900.00
***Upon purchase of the extended warranties, the repairs that have been invoiced during the period of lapse will be credited to 
the department.



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  December 17, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That this resolution SHALL NOT preclude Nautical 
Mile Transportation from applying for additional vehicles, as long as the applications are 
submitted to the Troy Police Department, and that Nautical Mile Transportation can 
demonstrate ownership and satisfactory inspections for each such vehicle.  

  
Yes: All-7  

  
The meeting RECESSED at 8:57 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:05 PM. 
 
E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 

Appointments Made 
 
E-2  Bid Waiver – Purchase of Additional In-Car Video Systems 
  
Resolution #2007-12-359 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, On Monday, October 16, 2006, Troy City Council approved a contract to purchase 
digital in-car video systems from International Police Technologies at an estimated cost of 
$291,000.00 (CC Resolution #2006-10-392 – Item F-2);  
 
WHEREAS, Additional digital in-car video systems are needed to replace outdated technology 
to complete the final phase of the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, International Police Technologies has offered General Services Administration 
(GSA) contract pricing contained in GSA-FSS Contract GS-07-9906H for the equipment;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a contract to purchase twelve (12) additional digital in-car video 
systems including hardware and software from International Police Technologies for an 
estimated total cost of $67,068.00.   
 
Yes: All-7  
 
E-3  Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 28, 2007 
 
Resolution #2007-12-360 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
(a) Installation of NO PARKING/STOPPING/STANDING Signs on the East Side of Jack 

Street between the driveway of 2187 Lancer and the corner of Jack and Lancer 
Drive, and on Lancer between 2175 Lancer and Jack   

 



 

 
 
December 4, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Bid Waiver – Purchase of Additional In-Car Video Systems   
  
 
Background 
 
 On October 16, 2006, City Council authorized the purchase and installation of in-car digital 

cameras and associated hardware and software. (CC Resolution #2006-10-392 – Item F2).  The 
background behind the project has essentially remained the same, but in way of review the 
following is offered:   

o The new digital cameras have replaced outdated technology and captures evidence in 
all types of cases thereby reducing civil liability. 

o Police departments, City management and risk organizations highly recommend the use 
of in-car recording systems. 

o The new systems are more reliable and have reduced staff time in management of the 
system in all aspects. 

o Prior to purchase, an evaluation was conducted on many different systems.  It was 
determined that the VisionHawk system, manufactured by International Police 
Technologies, best fit the department’s needs. 

   
Financial Considerations 
 
 Funding for the final phase of the project is available in the Police Communications capital 

account #401325.7980.050.  
 International Police Technologies (IPT) holds a Federal GSA contract (GS-07F-9906H) for the 

equipment. 
 Approval to utilize the GSA Schedule for this purchase authorized by the State of Michigan 

Department of Management and Budget through the 1122 Counterdrug Program. 
 
 
 
 

1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



 
December 4, 2007 
 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Bid Waiver – In-Car Video System 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 IPT is a GSA contract holder and is extending federal pricing.  Therefore, City management 

requests a bid waiver. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 The purchase of the VisionHawk in-car recording system will increase the Police Departments’ 

efficiency through digital technology (Goals #2 – “Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City 
government” and #4 – “Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally”). 

 In addition, the system provides excellent evidence on a variety of criminal cases most notably, 
drunk driving and enables the department to reduce civil liability (Goal #1 – “Enhance the livability 
and safety of the community”). 

 
Options 
 
 City management recommends that formal bidding procedures be waived and City Council 

authorizes the purchase of twelve (12) in-car video systems from International Police 
Technologies at an estimated cost of $67,068.00 using GSA-FSS Contract GS-07F-9906H 
pricing.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Regular Business – Waiver InCar VideoSystem.doc 













 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk   
 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Lawrence Feld, 
 Secretary of the Benevolent Association of AFSCME – Local 574   
 
 
Background: 
 
 Attached is a request from Lawrence Feld, Secretary – The Benevolent Association of AFSCME 

Local 574, seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status for the purpose of obtaining a 
charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. It has been City Management’s practice to 
support the approval of such requests. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Recognizing established local associations as nonprofit organizations provide financial support 

and opportunities through their fundraising efforts to worthy causes and individuals throughout the 
community. (Outcome Statements I and II) 
 

Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Troy City Council approve the proposed resolution to approve the request 

from Lawrence Feld, Secretary – The Benevolent Association of AFSCME Local 574 asking that 
they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community for the purpose of 
obtaining a charitable gaming license. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

   

 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
F-15

















































campbellld
Text Box



campbellld
Text Box













 
 
DATE: October 21, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 Mark S. Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT: Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance   
 
Background: 
 

 This item will be considered at the November 24, 2008 City Council Regular meeting. 
 

 At the June 16, 2008 Regular meeting, City Council directed City Management to “investigate 
the possibility of expanding Chapter 61 – Transient Merchant(s) or a similar means to include 
a mobile service vehicle”.   
 

 City Management proposes to amend Chapter 61 – Transient Merchants to expand the uses 
regulated by this ordinance, including sidewalk sales and Christmas tree sales, which are 
presently regulated under Chapter 69.  The application procedure for applicants seeking a 
Temporary Merchant Business license is described.  Chapter 61 will be renamed Temporary 
Merchant Businesses. 
 

 Chapter 3 – Administrative Service will be amended to add Chapter 61 to the list of City Codes 
that are enforced by the Building Department (see page 10 of Chapter 3). 
 

 Chapter 60 Fees and Bonds Required will be amended to add fees for Temporary Indoor Uses 
and Temporary Outdoor Uses, and to delete reference to Transient Merchants (see pages 5-
6). 
 

 Chapter 69 – Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses will be amended to remove sidewalk sales 
and Christmas tree sales, since these uses will be regulated by Chapter 61. 
 

 Chapter 39 – Zoning Ordinance will need to be amended in the future, since it presently states 
that sidewalk sales are regulated by Chapter 69. 

 

 City Administration recommends approval of the proposed amendments. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 Special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve or deny the proposed amendments. 
 

 No City Council action until the November 24, 2008 City Council Regular meeting.   
 

 

 

 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Chapter 61 – Temporary Merchant Businesses (formerly Transient Merchants) proposed 

amendments. 
2. Chapter 3 – Administrative Service proposed amendments (excerpt). 
3. Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required proposed amendments (excerpt). 
4. Chapter 69 – Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses proposed amendments.  
5. Resolution from the June 16, 2008 City Council Regular meeting.  

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File  
 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CC Regular Meeting 11 10 08.doc 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 61 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 61 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 

 
CHAPTER 61 – TRANSIENT MERCHANTS TEMPORARY MERCHANT 

BUSINESSES 
 
1. License Required. 
 

 No person shall engage in a temporary business of selling goods, wares or merchandising 
at retail within the City from any lot, premises, building room or structure, including railroad 
cars, without first obtaining a license therefor.  No such license shall be granted except 
upon certification of the Police Chief and City Treasurer. License fees shall be in 
accordance with Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

 
 (Rev. 03-17-03) 
 

2. Temporary Business Defined. 
 

 Every person engaged in the  retail sale and delivery of goods, wares or merchandise, 
shall be deemed to be engaged in carrying on a temporary business unless his business 
establishment shall have been assessed for taxation in the City during the current year. 

 
7.63 Indebtedness to the City. 
 

 No license shall be granted to any person owing any personal property taxes or other 
indebtedness to the City, or who contemplates using any personal property on which 
personal property taxes are owing, in the operation of such business. 

 
7.65 Exemption. 

 Persons conducting a business licensed under another provision of this Code shall be 
exempt from the requirements of this Chapter. 

 
1. Definitions 

 
The following definitions shall apply to this Chapter: 

 

 Applicant means a person that submits an application for a Temporary 
Merchant Business License. 



2 
 

 

 Christmas Tree Sales means the retail sale of real Christmas trees. 
 

 Lot means a parcel of land occupied, or intended to be occupied, by a 
main building or a group of such buildings and accessory buildings, or 
utilized for the principal use and uses accessory thereto, together with 
such open spaces as are required under the provisions of Chapter 39. A 
lot may or may not be specifically designated as such on public records. 

 

 Person means any individual, firm, partnership, limited liability 
company, or corporation. 

 

 Sidewalk Sales means a promotional sales event conducted on the 
sidewalk or other hard surface along the front or side of the particular 
establishment in which such business is normally conducted.   

 

 Temporary means a business that operates for ninety (90) days or less. 
 

 Temporary Indoor Use means a person that engages in selling goods 
and wares or providing a service from any lot or premises indoors on a 
temporary basis.   

 

 Temporary Outdoor Use means a person that engages in selling goods 
and wares or providing a service from any lot or premises outdoors on 
a temporary basis, not including sidewalk sales or Christmas tree 
sales.  

 
2. License Required 

  
 No person shall operate a Temporary Merchant Business in the City of Troy 

without first obtaining a license pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter.  The 
following shall be considered Temporary Merchant Businesses: 

 
a. Temporary Indoor Uses;  

 
b. Temporary Outdoor Uses; 

 
c. Sidewalk Sales; 

 
d. Christmas Tree Sales. 

 
3. Application for Temporary Merchant Business License 

  
a. An applicant shall submit to the Clerk’s Office a fully completed application, 

on a form furnished by the City Clerk.   
 



3 
 

b. The application, at a minimum, shall include the following information: 
 

i. The full and complete name and current address of the 
applicant(s).  

 
1. If the applicant is a partnership, the name and address of each 

partner shall be listed, and a copy of any partnership agreement 
shall be attached to the application. 
 

2. If the applicant is a privately held corporation, the name and 
address of each corporate officer, member of the board of 
directors, and stockholder shall be listed, and a copy of the 
articles of incorporation shall be attached to the application. 

 
3. If the applicant is a publicly held corporation, the name and 

address of each corporate officer, member of the board of 
directors and stockholder who owns ten (10) percent or more of 
the corporate stock shall be listed on the application. 

 
4. If the applicant is a limited liability company, the name and 

address of each member, manager, or person with a 
membership interest shall be listed, and the articles of 
organization shall be attached to the application. 

 
ii. The complete name, permanent address, and telephone number of 

the proposed licensed business. 
 

iii. A written statement as to the applicant’s experience in operating 
similar businesses in Troy or other communities. 

 
iv. A concise statement as to the individual applicant’s past 

employment or business practice including identification of other 
communities where the proposed licensed was operated. 

 
v. Information related to the business’s operation, which includes the 

following:  
 

1. Requested length of license; 
 

2. Proposed use; 
 

3. The days and hours of operation. 
 

vi. Any other information pertinent to the applicant and the proposed 
business operation. 

 



4 
 

c. The applicant shall also attach a sketch plan, drawn to scale, which shows 
the following information: 
 

i. The parcel boundaries of the property where the proposed 
business will be located. 
 

ii. The footprint and dimensions of all existing and proposed buildings 
and structures on the subject property. 
 

iii. All curb cuts, drive aisles, and parking spaces on the property. 
 

iv. All sidewalks on the property. 
 

v. The exact location of the proposed Temporary Merchant Business, 
including the exact location of any and all of the following: signage, 
sales, display or service areas, staff and customer parking areas, 
required restroom facility, and other activities associated with the 
proposed Temporary Merchant Business. 

 
4. Licensing 

  
 Temporary Merchant Business Licenses shall also comply with the provisions of 

Chapter 59 of this Code. 
 

5. License Fees 
  
 The fee for a Temporary Merchant Business License application is listed in 

Chapter 60 of this Code. 
 

6. Application Review and Investigation 
 

a. After the City Clerk has received a completed Temporary Merchant Business 
application, said application shall be forwarded to the following City 
Departments for review and investigation: 

 
i. Police;  
 
ii. Fire; 

 
iii. Building Inspection; 

 
iv. Planning Department; 

 
v. Risk Management; 

 



5 
 

vi. Any additional City Department that the City Manager or his/her 
 designee deems necessary. 

 
b. During regular business hours or at another mutually agreeable time, City 

representatives shall be granted access onto the property to complete the 
necessary application investigation. 
 

c. The City Clerk shall be responsible for determining whether the application 
meets the standards for approval of this ordinance. 
 

7. Standards for Approval 
 
Each Temporary Merchant Business shall meet all of the following Standards for 
Approval: 
 
a. The proposed use is permitted as a principal use within the underlying zoning 

district, as set forth in the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39 of this 
Code.  The only exception is for licenses for Christmas tree sales within the 
B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts as well as locations licensed before 1993. 
 

b. The applicant has provided written evidence that he or she owns or leases 
the premises at which the applicant will operate, or the applicant has 
permission from the property owner to operate temporarily on the property.  
Any restrictions imposed by the property owner shall be clearly identified. 

 
c. The location of the proposed Temporary Merchant Business does not 

negatively impact public health, safety and welfare, including but not limited to 
traffic flow, pedestrian circulation, and off-street parking.  

 
d. Proposed signage complies with the provisions of Chapter 85 Signs. 

 
e. The applicant shall maintain insurance (demonstrated with a certificate of 

insurance), and shall name the City as an additional insured, for general 
liability insurance coverage in the amount of at least $1,000,000.00.  No 
cancellation or reduction in coverage may occur during the operation of the 
Temporary Merchant Business.   

 
f. The Temporary Merchant Business shall be located within 500 feet of a 

restroom that is accessible to employees and customers. 
 

8. Restrictions 
 

a. No license shall be issued to:   
 

i. An applicant whose previous Temporary Merchant Business 
License was revoked by the City of Troy for cause. 



6 
 

ii. An applicant who does not satisfy the current ordinance 
requirements, even if previously granted a license. 

 
iii. A co-partnership, unless all of the members of such co-partnership 

qualify to obtain a license. 
 

iv. A corporation if any officer, manager or director or a stock owner or 
stockholders owning more than five (5) percent of the stock of such 
corporation would not be eligible to receive a license. 
 

v. An applicant whose business is operated by a manager or agent, 
unless such manager or agent possesses qualifications similar to 
those required of the licensee. 
 

vi. An applicant who has been convicted or found responsible for a 
violation of any federal, state, or local law involving moral turpitude, 
fraud, theft, violence, or controlled substances. 
 

vii. An applicant who does not own the premises for which a license is 
sought or does not have a lease therefore for the full period for 
which the license is issued, or does not have permission to operate 
at the location. 

 
viii. An applicant who is in default to the City.  

 
b. The license shall expire after ninety (90) consecutive days in one calendar year.  

Licenses shall be renewable once per calendar year.  The total operational period 
per license shall not exceed one-hundred eighty (180) days per calendar year. 

 
c. The hours of operation shall be limited to the hours between 9 a.m. and 9 p.m. 

 
d. If the applicant operates a temporary outdoor use, the operation shall be broken 

down and removed entirely from the site every day.  No overnight storage of any 
kind shall be allowed.  This requirement shall not apply to approved Christmas 
Tree Sales or Sidewalk Sales. 

 
e. Sidewalk Sales are permitted only within B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts.  

Licenses for sidewalk sales shall not be issued more than once during any 
consecutive thirty (30) day period on any individual parcel or within any shopping 
center.  Each permit shall be valid for not more than seventy-two (72) hours.  The 
applicant shall certify to the City Clerk that he/she has notified all other commercial 
establishments within said shopping center at the time the application is submitted.  
Outdoor sales areas shall be designed in accordance  with accessibility 
requirements of the Michigan Building Code.  Outdoor sales areas shall occur and 
shall occupy that portion of the sidewalk that is immediately adjacent to the front of 
the business establishment.  Displays shall not extend beyond said sidewalk either 



7 
 

into a drive or parking lot or laterally beyond the limits of the establishment to which 
a license has been issued.  
 

9. Display of License 
 
 A Temporary Merchant Business License issued pursuant to this Chapter’s 

provisions shall be displayed in a prominent location visible to customers or 
clients at all times. 

 
10. Bond Required 

 
No license shall be issued until the applicant deposits a five hundred dollar 
($500.00) bond for each lot where the business will be operated.  Each bond 
shall be retained by the Clerk’s Office for a period of not less than ten (10) days 
after the date of expiration of the license.  Said bond shall then be returned to the 
applicant upon its release being approved by the Building Inspector certifying in 
writing that the licensed premises to which said bond was applicable is cleared of 
all left-over equipment, vehicles and debris. This clean up shall occur within ten 
(10) days or City shall cause such clean up to be completed, and shall charge 
costs back to the applicant.  The bond shall be used first to recoup these costs 
and additional amounts required shall be collected in any manner allowed by law.  
In the event that any licensee fails to clear the premises, the Building Inspector 
may cause the premises to be cleared and the cost thereof shall be deducted 
from the bond and the balance, if any, shall be returned to the licensee. 

 
11. Revocation and Suspension of License 

  
 The City Manager, or his or her designee, may immediately revoke or suspend a 

Temporary Merchant Business License if the applicant violates any of this 
Ordinance’s provisions, or for other good cause.  The procedure for the 
suspension and revocation of the license shall be governed by the provisions of 
Chapter 59 of this Code. 

 
12. Violations and Penalties 

 
a. A violation of any section of this Chapter is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject 

to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 

b. Each day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction 
violation.  Sanctions for each violation of said sections shall include a fine of 
not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized by 
Chapter 100. 

 
 
 
 



8 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on  
_________________. 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk   

 
 
 

G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\Draft Temporary Merchant Ordinance 10 16 08.doc                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

1 

CHAPTER 3 - ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICE 

 

1. Division of Administrative Service. The administrative service of the City shall be under the 

supervision and direction of the City Manager, except as otherwise provided by the City Charter, 

and shall be divided into the following offices and departments, each of which shall be the 

responsibility of and under the control of a head as listed opposite such office or department: 

  

 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS  

 

   Office or Department  Official Head 

 

   Office of Clerk    City Clerk 

   Office of Assessor   City Assessor 

   Office of Treasurer   City Treasurer 

   Department of Police   Police Chief 

   Department of Fire   Fire Chief 

   Department of Law   City Attorney 

 

 (Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.1. The following City employees shall be responsible for certain functions as provided in this Chapter 

but shall not be deemed administrative officers as the term is defined in section 3.9 of the Charter. 

 

  Office or Department   Official Head 

 

   Department of Finance  Finance Director 

  Department of Public Works  Director of Public Works 

  Department of Engineering  City Engineer 

   Department of Building  Director of Buildings and Inspections 

 

(Rev. 02-17-03) 

 

CLERK 

 

1.2. Office of Clerk. This office shall be headed by the City Clerk, who shall serve as Clerk of the 

Council and perform such other duties for the Council as may be required by it. He/she shall be 

responsible for the publication, filing, indexing and safe keeping of all proceedings of the Council. 

(Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.36. Election Records. He/she shall keep and maintain all election records and have custody of all 

property used in connection with elections. 

 

1.37. Other Duties. He/she shall publish all legal notices unless otherwise provided; collect all license 

fees required by ordinance or statute except as otherwise provided; be the custodian of the official 

seal; and notify the appointing authority of any board or commission thirty (30) days prior to the 

expiration of the term of office of any member thereof. 

 

 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

2 

DEPARTMENT OF ACCOUNTING 

 

1.40. Department of Finance. The Department of Finance shall be headed by the Finance Director as 

accountant for the City. He/she shall examine and audit all accounts against the City and promptly 

report to the City Council through the City Manager in writing any default or delinquency he/she 

may discover in the books, records or accounts of any City department. It shall be his duty to 

examine, verify and approve all accounts against the City. He/she shall not verify or approve for 

payment any voucher until he/she has verified the correctness of the account for which the same 

is issued, neither shall he/she approve for payment any account unless the money has been 

appropriated therefor, nor shall he/she verify or sign any warrant except in accordance with the 

provisions of the Charter. 

 

 (Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.41. Examination of Books. The Finance Director shall have access to all books, records and 

documents kept by any officer, employee or department of the City. Daily reports of all moneys 

collected and of the disposition thereof shall be made to the Finance Director by the department 

or person receiving the same. The books in all departments of the City shall be balanced each 

calendar month and a report thereon made by the Finance Director to the City Manager. 

 

(Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.42. Reports. The Finance Director shall present to the City Manager at the beginning of each quarter 

during the fiscal year and whenever required by the City Manager or the City Council at any other 

time, a detailed statement of the financial condition of the City. 

 

 (Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

ASSESSOR 

 

1.45. Office of Assessor. This office shall be headed by the City Assessor whose duty it shall be to 

perform all work in connection with the assessing of property and the preparation of all 

assessment and tax rolls and tax notices. 

 

TREASURER 

 

1.51. Office of Treasurer. This office shall be headed by the City Treasurer whose duty it shall be to: 

 

(a) Have the custody of all moneys of the City, any bond pertaining to the Clerk, and 

all evidences of indebtedness belonging to the City or held in trust by the City. 

 

(b) Collect all moneys of the City, the collection of which is not provided for elsewhere 

by Charter or ordinance. He/she shall receive from other officers and employees of 

the City all money belonging to and receivable by the City that may be collected by 

such officers and employees, including fines, license fees, taxes, assessments and 

all other charges. All money shall be turned over to the Treasurer after collection or 

receipt, and he/she shall in all cases give a receipt therefor and shall daily present 

an accounting of receipts to the Finance Director. 

 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

3 

(c) Keep and deposit all moneys or funds in such manner and only in such places as 

the Council may determine and shall report the same in detail to the Finance 

Director. 

(d) Disburse all City funds in accordance with the provisions of the City Charter and 

this Code. 

(e) Perform such other duties as may be prescribed for him by the Council or by the 

Finance Director. 

 

 (Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

1.70. Department of Police. The Department of Police shall be headed by the Police Chief, who shall be 

the commanding officer of the police force. He/she shall direct the police work of the City and be 

responsible for the enforcement of law and order. 

 

1.71. Functions of Police Department. The police work of the City shall consist of the following 

functions: 

 

(1) The operation of motor and foot patrol units for routine investigations and the 

general maintenance of law and order. 

 

(2) The maintenance of the central complaint desk at Central Police Headquarters, the 

maintaining and supervising of police records, criminal and non-criminal 

identification, property identification, custody of property and the operation of 

detention quarters. 

 

(3) The investigation of crimes, elimination of illegal liquor traffic and vice, and the 

preparation of evidence for the prosecution of criminal cases and offenses in 

violation of this Code. The Police Department shall enforce all provisions of this 

Code for which any penalty is provided, as well as all other laws applicable to and 

in force within the City. 

 

(4) The prevention and control of juvenile delinquency, the removal of crime hazards 

and the co-ordination of community agencies interested in crime prevention.  

    

(Rev. 02-05-01) 

 

(5) The control of traffic, traffic educational programs, school patrols, and co-

ordination of traffic violation prosecutions. 

    

(Rev. 02-05-01) 

 

1.72. Department Rules. The Police Chief may prescribe rules for the government of police officers of 

the City, subject to approval by the City Manager, which shall be entered in a book of Police 

Department rules and orders and may be amended or revoked by the Police Chief upon written 

notice to the City Manager. Such rules may establish one or more divisions within the Police 

Department, each of which divisions may be charged with performing one or more of the functions 

of the Police Department enumerated in Section. 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

4 

1.71. Any such divisions shall be supervised by an officer of the Police Department, who shall be 

responsible for the particular functions of the Police Department assigned to the particular division 

supervised by him. It shall be the duty of all members of the Police Force to comply with such 

rules and orders while effective. 

 

(Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.73. Acting Chief: In case of the absence from the City of the Police Chief, or his disability, or inability 

from any cause, to act as Police Chief, The City Manager shall designate and appoint some other 

member of the Police Department to act as Chief during such absence or disability. 

 

1.74. Delivery to Police Chief. When any person within the City of Troy finds any lost money or any lost 

personal property of any other nature having apparent value of ten dollars ($10.00) or more and 

the owner of said money or personal property is unknown to such finder, the finder shall, within 

seven (7) days, deliver the said money or personal property to the Police Chief. The said finder 

shall further, within thirty (30) days from the date of finding such money or personal property, 

cause notice to be published in a newspaper circulating within the City that such money or 

personal property has been found, which notice shall briefly describe the property found, and 

notify the owner that he/she may recover the same upon application to the Police Department 

making satisfactory identification of himself and the lost property and paying for the cost of the 

advertisement. If any finder shall fail to give notice of such finding, as herein required, within the 

time limited, he/she shall forfeit all claims to any property right in said found property which he/she 

might otherwise have upon termination of the custody of the Police Department under the 

provisions of this Chapter.  

 

(Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.75. Property Record. Whenever any such money or other property shall be received by the Police 

Chief, he/she shall cause a record of the same to be entered in a book kept for that purpose. 

Such book shall be a part of the public records of the City of Troy and shall be kept on file in the 

Police Department. 

 

(Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.76. Notice to Owner. If the identity of the owner shall be learned while such property is in the custody 

of the Police Department, the Department shall cause to be served upon such owner a written 

notice informing him that his property has been found and is in possession of the Police 

Department. Said notice shall advise the owner that unless he/she shall reclaim the property 

within twenty (20) days from the date of the service of such notice that he/she shall have forfeited 

any claim to the return of such money or property. Any person making a claim for the return of lost 

money or property shall establish his ownership to the satisfaction of the Police Chief and such 

money or property shall be returned to him upon payment of the cost of advertising by the finder 

or expenses of storage incurred by the Department. 

 

(Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

 

 

 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

5 

1.77. Return to Finder. After any lost money or lost personal property shall have been in the custody of 

the Police Department for sixty (60) days and the owner shall not have been found or has 

abandoned his claim to the property, and there being no claim of ownership pending against such 

property, the same may be returned by the Police Chief to the finder thereof, if said finder shall 

have complied with the provisions of this Chapter regarding lost property, in all respects. No 

employee of the City of Troy shall be eligible to acquire any property right in any lost money or lost 

personal property by reason of having found any such money or personal property.  

 

(Rev. 05-01-78) 

 

1.78. Unclaimed Property. As to any property remaining in the custody of the Police Department as to 

which there are no claims pending and no finder having any rights therein, the Police Chief shall 

cause said property, except money, to be sold at public auction, reserving the right to reject any or 

all bids, or to be sold by a system recommended by the City Manager and approved by resolution 

of City Council. If the unclaimed property is a bicycle, the Police Chief or his/ her designee may 

donate it to a state licensed charitable organization, or to the Oakland County Sheriff, in 

connection with any Sheriff operated recognized charitable program as provided in 1959 PA 54, 

MCL 434.171 et. seq. as amended. By written authorization of the City Manager, unclaimed 

property may be retained by the City for City use. Notice of the time and place of such sale shall 

be given by publishing notice thereof in a newspaper of general circulation with the City and 

posted for ten (10) days in three (3) of the most public places in the City. Such notice shall set 

forth a full description of said property. The Police Chief is hereby authorized to deliver and 

convey such property to the successful purchaser upon payment of the full purchase price without 

any warranty or representation as to title and with the understanding that in the event the rightful 

owner recovers such property in an action at law against such purchaser, that the liability of the 

City of Troy shall be limited to the amount paid by said purchaser for such property. The proceeds 

of all such sales and any money which shall have been held for sixty (60) days against which 

there is no claim pending either by any purported owner or by the finder thereof, shall be paid by 

the Police Chief to the City Treasurer to the credit of the General Fund. The City of Troy may 

purchase property at any such sale in the same manner as any other bidder. 

 

 (Rev. 04-21-08) 

 

1.79. Property to Which Inapplicable. The provisions of this Chapter as to lost property shall not apply to 

perishable articles which may be sold or destroyed within twelve (12) hours, if unclaimed. This 

Chapter shall not apply to abandoned vehicles, nor to firearms carried in violation of State Law, 

nor alcoholic beverages seized by the Department, all of which shall be disposed of in accord with 

the applicable Statutes. Other dangerous weapons shall be destroyed. 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

6 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

1.91. Department of Fire. The Department of Fire shall be headed by the Fire Chief, who shall be 

charged with the prevention and extinguishment of fires, the protection of life and property against 

fire, the removal of fire hazards, the performance of other public services of an emergency nature 

assigned to it, and the conducting of an educational fire prevention program. 

 

1.92. Department Rules. The Fire Chief shall adopt rules and regulations for the government of the 

Department, subject to the approval of the City Manager, which shall be entered in a book of Fire 

Department Rules and which may be changed and repealed by the Fire Chief upon notice to and 

approval by the City Manager. Such rules and regulations shall designate the chain of command 

for the Department so that in the absence or disability of the Chief, the responsibility for the 

operation of the Department shall immediately and automatically be vested in the next ranking 

officer or member of the Department present. 

 

1.93. Department Equipment. The Fire Chief shall be responsible for the maintenance and care of all 

property and equipment used by the Fire Department. 

 

1.94. Enforce Fire Laws. It shall be the duty of the Fire Chief to enforce all State laws and provisions of 

this Code governing  the following: 

 

(1) The prevention of fires. 

 

(2)  The storage and use of explosives and flammables. 

 

(3) The maintenance of fire alarm systems, both automatic and private, and all fire 

extinguishing equipment. 

 

(4) The maintenance and use of fire escapes. 

 

(5) The maintenance of fire protection and the elimination of fire hazards in all 

buildings and structures. 

 

(6) The maintenance and adequacy of fire exits from factories, schools, hotels, 

asylums, hospitals, churches, halls, theatres and all other places in which numbers 

of persons work or congregate for any purpose. 

 

(7) Structures erected and uses conducted on premises located within the fire limits. 

 

1.95. Other Duties. The Fire Chief shall perform the following duties: 

 

(1) Investigate the origin, cause and circumstances of all fires. 

 

(2) Issue all orders necessary for the enforcement of State laws and provisions of this 

Code. 

 

(3) Require and supervise from time to time fire drills from all schools and educational 

institutions as required by law. 

 

 

 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

7 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 

 

1.101. Department of Health. The Oakland County Health Department Shall be responsible for all health 

related matters. 

 

(Rev. 02-17-03)  

 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 

1.111. Department of Public Works. The Department of Public Works shall be headed by the Director of 

Public Works who shall be experienced in municipal engineering works and responsible to the 

Assistant City Manager for Services. The Department of Public Works shall include the Division of 

Streets, and the Division of Water Supply and Sewer Facilities. The Director of Public Works shall 

have charge of all such divisions. 

 

(Rev. 02-17-03) 

 

A. Division of Streets. The Division of Streets shall be under the direction of the Director of Public 

Works and shall be headed by the Superintendent of Streets. He/she shall be in charge of the 

maintenance of all improved and unimproved streets and surfaces, the cleaning of improved 

streets, the removal of snow and the construction and maintenance of sidewalks. 

 

(Rev. 02-17-03) 

 

B. Division of Water Supply and Sewer Facilities. The Division of Water Supply and Sewer 

Facilities shall be under the direction of the Director of Public Works and shall be headed by 

the Superintendent of Water Supply and Sewer Facilities. He/she shall have charge of the 

construction, operation and maintenance of the City sewage system and shall be responsible 

for the construction, operation and maintenance of City water mains and connections and 

other facilities pertaining to the water distribution system. He/she shall have charge of the 

pumping of the water into and through the City water distribution system. 

 

(Rev. 02-17-03)  

 

1.112. Department of Engineering. The Department of Engineering shall be headed by the City Engineer 

who, shall be headed by a competent civil engineer and responsible to the Assistant City Manager 

for Services. The Engineering Department shall include the Traffic Division. The City Engineer 

shall be responsible for all matters relating to construction of all the physical properties of the City 

except as provided elsewhere in this Code. The City Engineer shall also be responsible for 

planning in connection with such changing or improvements to the physical properties of the City 

as are consistent with and necessary to the future growth and development of the City. This 

department shall perform such engineering services for the City and for such other departments 

of the City as may be required. 

 

 (Rev. 02-17-03) 

 

 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

8 

DEPARTMENT OF LAW 

 

1.131.  Department of Law. This Department shall be headed by the City Attorney who shall be 

the legal advisor to the Council, the City Manager and to other departments and officers of 

the City through the City Manager. He/she shall represent the City in all legal proceedings 

or matters in which the City is interested. He/she shall attend the meetings of the City 

Council. 

 

  (Rev. 04-08-85) 

 

1.141(1)  A City of Troy Police Service Aide assigned to Road Patrol Duty shall have authority to 

issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of 

violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to 

believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the 

Troy City Code:  

 

Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish  

 

Chapter 26: Parks - General Regulations  

 

Chapter 29: Cemetery  

 

Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to the parking of vehicles)  

 

Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts  

 

Chapter 48: Litter  

 

Chapter 75: Pet Shops  

 

Chapter 88: Nuisances  

 

Chapter 90: Animals  

 

Chapter 98.07.01: Hunting  

 

Chapter 98-07.02 Trapping  

 

Chapter 106: Traffic (Provisions related to the parking of vehicles) 

 

(Rev. 03-01-06) 

 

1.141(2)  City of Troy Police Service Aide assigned to Lock-up shall have authority to issue and 

serve upon a person an appearance ticket if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that 

the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 

Code: 

 

Chapter 98.06.01:  Hinder, Obstruct or Resist Police 

 

Chapter 98.06.02:  Hinder Police by False Identification 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

9 

Chapter 98.06.03:  False Statement or Report to Police 

 

(Rev. 02-05-01) 

 

1.141(3)  A City of Troy Animal Control Officer shall have authority to issue and serve upon a 

person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, and/or a 

Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the 

person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 

Code:  

 

Chapter 26: Parks - General Regulations  

 

Chapter 75: Pet Shops  

 

Chapter 88: Nuisances  

 

Chapter 90: Animals  

 

Chapter 98.07.01: Hunting  

 

Chapter 98.07.02: Trapping  

 

Chapter 98.06.05: Willfully and knowingly torture, etc., any dog used by the City of Troy 

Police Department.  

  

Chapter 106 § 8 Stopping, Standing and Parking Violations 

 

(Rev. 03-01-06) 

 

1.141(5)  A City of Troy Water Division Inspector shall have the authority to issue and serve upon 

a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, and/or a 

Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the 

person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 

Code:  

 

Chapter 18: City Water Utility  

 

Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 

Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 

Chapter 33: Streets 

 

(Rev. 03-01-06) 

 

1.141(6)  A City of Troy Building Department Inspector shall have authority to issue and serve 

upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, 

and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that 

the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 

Code.  

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

10 

Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 

  

Chapter 13: Historic Preservation 

  

Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 

 

Chapter 18: City Water Utility 

 

Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 

Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 

Chapter 39: Zoning  

 

Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 

 

Chapter 48: Litter  

 

Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 

Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 

 

Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

 

Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 

 

Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 

 

Chapter 71: Auto Wash 

 

Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 

  

 Chapter 76: Adult Use Businesses Licenses (07-09-07) 

 

Chapter 77: Smoking Lounges (08-06-07) 

 

Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

 

Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations  

 

Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement  

 

Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings  

 

Chapter 83: Fences  

 

Chapter 85: Signs  

 

Chapter 88: Nuisances  

 

Chapter 93: Fire Prevention (provisions related to building codes)  

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

11 

Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 

  (Rev. 03-01-06) 

 

1.141(7)  A City of Troy Fire Department Staff Lieutenant, Division Assistant Chief or Chief shall 

have authority to issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil 

Infraction notice of violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has 

reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the 

following provisions of the Troy City Code:  

 

Chapter 2:  House Numbering and Street Naming  

 

Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 79: General Building Regulations (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 82-A. Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement (provisions related to 

fire safety)  

 

Chapter 82-B. Dangerous Buildings (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 84: Garbage, Rubbish, and Refuse Transfer Station (provisions related to fire 

safety)  

 

Chapter 88: Nuisances (provisions related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 93: Fire Prevention 

 

Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades (provisions 

related to fire safety)  

 

Chapter 106: Traffic (provisions related to fire safety) 

 

  (Rev. 03-01-06) 

 

 

1.141(8)  A City of Troy Engineering Inspector. Inspection Supervisor, Engineering Technician or 

Environmental Specialist shall have authority to issue and serve upon a person an  

 

Appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, and/or a Municipal Civil 

Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has 

committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code: 

 



Chapter 3 - Administrative Service 

12 

Chapter 17: Rubbish Fill Operation 

 

Chapter 34: Sidewalks 

 

Chapter 42: Flood Plain Management 

 

Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

 

Chapter 80: Soil Removal and Fill 

 

Chapter 86: Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

  

 (Rev. 03-01-06) 

 

1.141(9)  A City of Troy Foreman of Parks Maintenance Division, Superintendent of Public 

Grounds, or Director of Parks and Recreation shall have authority to issue and service 

upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of violation, 

and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that 

the person has committed a violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City 

Code:  

 

Chapter 28: Tree Regulations 

 

Chapter 29: Cemetery 

 

Chapter 39: Zoning (provisions related to landscaping) 

 

Chapter 41: Subdivision Control (provisions related to landscaping) 

 

  (Rev. 03-01-06) 

 

 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CHAPT003.doc 

 

 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 

 

60.03 Fee Schedule. 
 

 

Temporary Indoor Uses (Chapter 61) 

Per application $  100.00 

Per extension $  100.00 

 

Temporary Outdoor Use (Chapter 61) 

Per application $  100.00 

Per extension $  100.00 

 

Transient Merchant (Chapter 61) – Per week $   50.00 
 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on  _________________. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    

 
 

 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CHAPT060 Draft Amendments.doc 



 

 1 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 69 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 69 of the Code 
of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 

 
1. Sidewalk Sales. 
 

No person or business shall engage in the outdoor display of goods for sale without first 
obtaining a license therefore.  Such license shall issued by the City Clerk upon approval 
by the Fire and Building Departments. 

 (Rev. 06-16-97) 
 
2. Restrictions. 
 

Sidewalk Sales may be permitted only within B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts. No 
license for sidewalk sales shall be granted except upon certification of the Building 
Inspector and Fire Chief.  No licenses for sidewalk sales shall be issued more than once 
during any consecutive 30 day period within any shopping center or within 700 feet of any 
other commercial establishment during said 30 days, and each permit shall be valid for 
not more than 72 hours. The applicant shall certify to the City Clerk that he has notified all 
other commercial establishments within said shopping center of said 700 foot distance at 
the time application for the sidewalk sale is submitted.  Outdoor sales shall not block or 
obstruct more than one-half (l/2) the width of the sidewalk on which such sales shall occur 
and shall occupy that portion of the sidewalk (l/2 width) which is immediately adjacent to 
the front of the business establishment. Displays shall not extend beyond said sidewalk 
either into a drive or parking lot or laterally beyond the limits of the establishment to which 
a license has been issued. License fees shall be in accordance with Chapter 60, Fees 
and Bonds of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

 
 (Rev. 03-17-03) 
 
4. Christmas Tree Sales. 
 

No person shall engage in the business of selling Christmas trees at retail or operate or 
maintain a building or yard where Christmas trees are sold at retail without first obtaining 
a license.  No license shall be granted except upon certification of the Building Inspector 
and Fire Chief.  Applications for license shall be made in accordance with Chapter 59 of 
this Code and the fee shall be as prescribed in Chapter 60 of this Code. Christmas tree 
sales may be permitted within B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts, as well as at locations 
licensed for 1993. 



 

 2 

 
  (Rev. 08-08-94) 
 
 5. Cash Deposits. 
 

No license for the retail sale of Christmas trees shall be granted until the applicant 
shall make a clean-up deposit for each retail sales lot to be operated, said deposit 
to be retained by the City for a period of not less than ten (10) days after Christmas 
of the year in which the license was granted.  Said deposit shall then be returned 
to the applicant upon its release being approved by the Building Inspector 
certifying in writing that the licensed premises to which said deposit was applicable 
have, within ten (10) days after Christmas of the year for which the license was 
granted, been cleared of all left-over trees, branches, paper, waste and debris.  In 
the event that any licensee shall fail to so clear the premises, the Building 
Inspector may cause the premises to be cleared and the cost thereof shall be 
deducted from the deposit and the balance, if any, shall be returned to the 
licensee. 

 
  (Rev. 08-26-91) 
 

81. Registration of Dealers in Precious Metal, Gems and Items. 
 

81.1 Definitions as used in this section: 
 

 (a) "Agent or employee" means a person who, for compensation or valuable 
 consideration is employed either directly or indirectly by a dealer. 

 
 (b) "Dealer" means any person, corporation, partnership, or association, which, 

 in whole or in part, engages in the ordinary course of repeated and 
 recurrent transactions of buying or receiving precious items from the public 
 within this state. 

 
 (c) "Gold" means elemental gold having an atomic weight of 196.967 and the 

 chemical element symbol of Au, whether found by itself or in combination 
 with its alloys or any other metal. 

 
 (d) "Jewelry" means an ornamental item made of a material that includes a 

 precious gem. 
 
   (e) "Local police agency" means the police agency of the City of Troy. 
 

 (f) "Platinum" means elemental platinum having an atomic weight of 195.09 
 and the chemical element symbol of Pt, whether found by itself or in 
 combination with its  alloys or any other metal. 

 
 (g) "Precious gem" means a diamond, alexandrite, ruby, sapphire, opal, 

 amethyst, emerald, aquamarine, morganite, garnet, jadeite, topaz, 
 tourmaline, or pearl. 

 
 (h) "Precious item" means jewelry, a precious gem, or an item containing gold, 



 

 3 

silver,  or platinum.  Precious item does not include the following: 
 

 (i) Coins, commemorative medals, and tokens struck by, or in behalf of, 
 a government or private mint. 

 
   (ii) Bullion bars and discs of the type traded by banks and commodity  

   exchanges. 
 

 (iii) Items at the time they are purchased directly from a dealer registered 
 under this act, a manufacturer, or a wholesaler who purchased them 
 directly from a manufacturer. 

 
   (iv) Industrial machinery or equipment. 

 
 (v) An item being returned to or exchanged at the dealer where the item 

 was purchased and which is accompanied by a valid sales receipt. 
 

 (vi) An item which is received for alteration, redesign, or repair in a 
 manner that does not substantially change its use and returned 
 directly to the customer. 

 
 (vii) An item which does not have a jeweler's identifying mark or a serial 

 mark and which the dealer purchases for less than $5.00. 
 

 (viii) Scrap metal which contains incidental traces of gold, silver, or 
 platinum which are recoverable as a by-product. 

 
 (ix) Jewelry which a customer trades for other jewelry having a greater 

 value, and which difference in value is paid by the customer. 
 

(i) "Silver" means elemental silver having an atomic weight of 107.869 and the 
chemical element symbol of Ag, whether found by itself or in combination with its 
alloys or any other metal. 

 
  (Rev. 08-24-81) 
 
81.2 Administration of Ordinance. 
 

The Chief of Police for the City of Troy or his or her designee shall be responsible for 
reviewing all applications for a certificate of registration. 

 
81.3 Application by a Dealer 
 
 (a) A dealer who applies for a certificate of registration shall submit the following 

information on the form provided: 
 

(i) His or her name, home address, phone number, driver's license number, 
date of birth, and right thumb print (print to be affixed to the application by 
the police department).  Applications for more than one establishment shall 
be made on separate application forms. 



 

 4 

 
  (ii) The name, address, telephone number, and hours of the dealer's business. 

 If the dealer's business is a corporation, an updated copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation or a valid certified copy of the assumed name certificate from 
the Clerk of Oakland County must be provided. 

 
  (iii) The name, address, date of birth and right thumb print of each employee or 

agent of the dealer. 
 
 (b) The dealer shall also submit a signed statement indicating that he or she has read 

and understands the provisions of Act No. 95 of the Public Acts of 1981, as 
provided to him or her  by the Police Department, and further that said dealer has 
informed his or her agents or employees, and will immediately inform all new 
agents or employees, as to the provisions of said Public Act 95 of 1981.  

 
 (c) The dealer shall submit a signed statement that neither he or she, nor any of his or 

her agents or employees has been convicted of a felony under Act No. 95 of the 
Public Acts of 1981, or under section 535 of Act No. 328 of the Public Acts of 
1931, as amended, within the five year period preceding the date of the 
application, or convicted of a misdemeanor under said laws within a one year 
period preceding the date of this application. 

 
(d) The dealer shall submit proof of proper zoning or other special exception permits 

as required by the Zoning Board of Appeals and Planning Commission of the City 
of Troy. 

 
 (e) The dealer shall pay a fee for each licensed establishment in the City of Troy. 

License fees shall be in accordance with Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds of the City 
of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

   
 (Rev. 8-24-81) 

 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or 
abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any 
ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this 
penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and 
new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of 
this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 

 
 Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
 Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 



 

 5 

invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on  
_________________. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    

 

 

 

 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CHAPT069 Draft Amendments.doc 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL APRIL !7, 2008 

 

CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES  
Thursday, April 17, 2008 – 7 p.m. 

Conference Room C – Troy City Hall 
 
I.     Call to Order – 7:04 pm 
 
II.   Roll Call 

Present: 
Penny Marinos 
Kent Voigt 
Brian Wattles 
Lisa Martinico 
Tom Belian 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
Nancy Chin, Student 
Chi Song, Student 
 
Absent:  
Alan Manson 
 

III.  Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of January 16, 2008 
  Under Adjournment – Bryan Wattles should be Brian.  
  Moved by Penny Marinos, seconded by Lisa Martinico with corrections 
  

IV:  Correspondence: 
          Comcast – Channel Changes – March 21, 2008 

Brian Wattles comment – he has not received any recent correspondence  
about new channel line-up changes. Why don’t they come to subscribers 
via insert on bill, message on bill or messages via cable? Cindy will send e-
mail to Olivia Visperas. Kent does not receive notices via the TV from 
WOW. 
 

 Comcast – Channel Changes – February 28, 2008 
 

 WOW – Bundled Services Mailing – March 2008 - Do they offer tiered 
bandwidth? Yes and you can check speed. Comcast & WOW have 
different ways to measure. Kent read an article that Comcast is working to 
have rules to restrict bandwidth and what customers do with it.  

 
 WOW – Interruption of Services – March 26, 2008 

 Customers got e-mail and letter from WOW apologizing for interruption. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL APRIL !7, 2008 

 

V.  Articles 
 

FCC Preparing Public for Mandated Transition to Digital TV – Daily Tribune 
April 3, 2007  
Comment - UK is spending 10 times more on publicity than the US. This is 
upsetting a lot of people.  Brian Wattles has a lot of concerns with Comcast 
and will write to Olivia. Cindy has arranged for a speaker at the Senior 
Center to explain this to our senior citizens. 

 
Local Broadcasters Launch New Digital Channels for 2009 – 
www.broadcastingcable.com   March 11, 2008 
With 569 programming sources coming there is still “nothing on TV.” 

 
 

VI.  New Business 
       
 Blocking the BitTorrent protocol 

 
Brought forward by Chi Song - This affects the younger generation. 

 
File sharing – users share very large files (10 gigabytes) Comcast, Oct 07, 
started blocking the uploads, not downloads yet. First time a company has 
selectively block what users see. Students distribute music and TV 
productions. FCC is investigating Comcast (check BitTorrent.com) 
Comcast has negotiated a deal with BitTorrent. BitTorrent does affect 
bandwidth so that is a reason they want to control this. If their fear is 
copyright infringement, they will have many more holes to plug. There is a 
huge changing market. The consensus of the group should be to oppose 
this. Do we want to communicate this to Comcast? 
 
FCC held hearing on Howard campus. Comcast hired people to fill seats 
so the public could not get in and speak to topic. Tom would like to know 
what WOW feels about this topic. What is their position? 

Committee suggests sending a report to City Council on this topic. Cindy  
will prepare and get to council as a report on their next agenda. 
Comcast is a corporate giant and bottom line they are out to make a profit. 
Brian said we should put together a resolution dealing with topic of net  
neutral. Lisa said to remember our communities have no control over the 
Internet. Although the CAC and City has no control of community’s use of 
the Internet, we feel the need to inform City Council. KV leery of a 
resolution, would rather send them an informational piece. CAC is here to 
advise City Council,  make recommendations. 
 
Any committee member wishing to e-mail Cindy info for a recommendation, 
please do so by 4/24/08. She will compile for a memo for City Council’s 
next meeting. 
 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL APRIL !7, 2008 

 

VI.  Old Business 
    
    Report on Web Publications from members 

 Statistic from the National Cable & Telecommunication Assoc. 
• US TV households (9/2007) 112,275,000 
• Basic cable subscribers (12/2007) 64,800,000 
• Digital Cable customers 37,100,000 
• Revenue from customers (2008) $81, 910,000 
• Top ten program networks 

1. Discover 
2. TNT 
3. ESPN 
4. CNN 
5. USA Network 
6. Lifetime 
7. Nickelodeon 
8. TBS 
9. Weather Channel 
10. Learning Channel 

 
 
Tech Update – Consumer Electronic Trends for 2008 

• Blu-Ray HD-DVD Disc 
• Super Thin, Super Dark TV Sets Coming 
• Home Networking 
• New Services – Pro Women & Green 
• iPhone & iPod Touch inspire 
• Wireless World 

 
Kent would like to see this committee monitor more reports like this from 
schools, businesses, and cable industry in order to keep the city informed 
on new technology. 
 
Tom attended the National Association Broadcasters Conference saw new 
camera by JVC with microwave system and no need for cable trucks. 
 
2007 – ABC, CBS, NBC 23.1 million viewers for nightly news (6:30pm) 
2008 – down to 22 million – dropping each year by millions. 
 
People can get news on the Internet and the 6:30 pm news doesn’t fit with 
work schedules. Internet news available 24/7.  Will the quality suffer due to 
the immediacy? 

 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – FINAL APRIL !7, 2008 

 

VII.  Staff Report 
 

Alan Manson sent an e-mail last week that he was moved out of Troy and 
will send in his resignation. He thanked the City for allowing him to be part 
of committee.   The City is currently in the budget process.  We have been 
taping all the wonderful Library concerts and Museum lectures. 

 
 WTRY Cable Guide 
CAC Member Listing 
ICCA Meeting Notes – January 16, 2008 

 
 

Next Meeting: Thursday, July 17, 2008 
 
 

VIII.  Adjournment  -  
Motion by Lisa Martinico, Seconded by Penny Marinos to adjourn at 8:30 
 pm.  Approved. 

  
  
 

 
________________________________ 
Kent Voigt, Chairman 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison  



TROY BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY   July 15, 2008 
FINAL MEETING MINUTES                       

                                                         

 
The meeting was called to order at 3:03 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Council Boardroom by 
Chairman Bruce Wilberding.   
 
 
Members Present:  Jim Campbell 

Art Cotsonika (arrived @ 3:10 p.m.) 
Victor Lenivov  
Donald Schenk 
Robert Swartz (arrived @ 3:04 p.m.) 
Joseph Vassallo 
Bruce Wilberding (Chairman) 

 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
  
Also Present:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney (left at 5:05 pm)  

   Mark Miller, Planning Director (left at 4:45 pm)  
Patti Holland, Real Estate and Development Secretary 

 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
 
Resolution #  TBRA 08-10 
Moved by:  Wilberding 
Seconded by: Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, that the TBRA approve the minutes of March 20, 2008. 
 
Yeas:  Campbell, Cotsonika, Schenk, Swartz, Vassallo, Wilberding 
Nays:  Lenivov 
Absent: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



Resolution #  TBRA-08-11 
Moved by:  Wilberding 
Seconded by: Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, that the TBRA approve the minutes of March 31, 2008. 
 
Yeas:  Campbell, Cotsonika, Schenk, Swartz, Vassallo, Wilberding 
Nays:  Lenivov 
Absent: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
  
 
Resolution #   TBRA 08-12 
Moved by:   Wilberding  
Seconded by:  Vassallo   
 
RESOLVED, that the TBRA approve the minutes of April 15, 2008. 
 
Yeas:  Campbell, Cotsonika, Schenk, Swartz, Vassallo, Wilberding 
Nays:  Lenivov 
Absent: None 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Legal Update  
 
Lori Bluhm provided the board with a Reference Book and gave a presentation on 
the Freedom of Information Act and the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 
B. Revolving Loan Fund 
 
Mark Miller presented the Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund application. The 
TBRA discussed the October 2006 revision of the Local Site Remediation Revolving 
Fund, and asked that the item be brought back for further discussion and/or 
deliberation at the next TBRA meeting, and that any background information be sent 
out as soon as possible.   
 



 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 
Mr. Cotsonika requested member introductions, especially since there were three 
new members present. 
 
Mr. Lenivov requested the website to be updated and a live demonstration at the 
October meeting.  
 
Mr. Lenivov requested the following items be discussed at future TBRA meetings 

- Budget Format 
- Check list for any future plans 

 
Mr. Swartz expressed concern about the most recent Brownfield Plan, Brownfield 
Plan #5.  He asked whether need should be required for all future Brownfield Plans, 
and asked for the item to appear as a future agenda item.   
 
Mr. Schenk requested a procedural time line for future projects.   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 
 
The next meeting scheduled is October 21, 2008. 
 
 
 

Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 
 
 

Mark Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BRA Meeting Minutes   
07-15-08 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  AUGUST 26, 2008 

 

CALL TO ORDER              
 
A meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, 
August 26, 2008 at the Troy Community Center at 7:05 pm.  

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Members Present:  Mike Gonda 
    Bob Berk 

Sandy Macknis 
    Jeff Stewart 
    Dan O’Brien 

Alison Miller 
    Jim Hattan 
    Jeff Super 
    Bob Preston 
    Sarah Wunderlich, student 
             

City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 
    Bob Kowalski 
    Jeff Biegler 
    Tonya Perry 

 
Others:    Karen Hattan 
    Doris Schuchter 
    Poncho Massaini 
    Kat Davis 

Diana McKay 
Jeff Winiarski 
Lynne Clark 
Steve Wassef 

     
 
 
Additions/Deletions to Agenda 
None 
 
 
Approval of Minutes from July 22, 2008 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-08-23 
Motion by:  Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by:  Jeff Stewart 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  AUGUST 26, 2008 

 

RESOLVED, that the minutes of July 22, 2008 are approved as submitted  
MOTION CARRIED  
 
New Business 
 
a. Contract Updates –  
 
All information has been entered, purchase orders sent out.  Need to order straw  
bales.  City Council approved the fireworks and Police Explorer’s contracts on  
August 25, 2008.  The City of Madison Heights called and asked us to be aware  
that Mad Bomber shorted them shells this year.  Tonya Perry said the Fire  
Department would try to count shells.  They discovered a problem with other  
companies selling shells taken off current jobs. 
 
 
b. 2008 Event Updates –  
 
Car Dealers are coming in; will need orange fences.   
 
Cutest Toddler/Infant:  there are only 30 entries to date. 
 
Mike Conners, Boy Scout project was rejected (games for Kids Corner). 
 
Sandy reported she has 245 student volunteers from the high schools; she will 
go to Troy Youth Council to recruit a few more. 
 
Pickle Ball:  There is a request to have an event at Troy Daze, but they felt it was 
too soon to pull off the event.  Maybe next year. 
 
Balloons and brochure have been ordered. 
 
The EthniCity Tent is full.  All Talent Shows are full. 
 
Parade:  Do we need a parade meeting regarding traffic?  It’s the same 
route/similar groups, but the time has changed to 10 am.  The Grand Marshal 
has not been chosen yet.  Troy and Athens Marching Bands are all set.  The 
Troy High Football Team will carry the international flags.  There is a need for 5-6 
more adult volunteers to help the day of the parade.  Need to check with Danielle 
Cover to see if the Miss Troy winners will be on the float.  Need a six-seater for 
school board members.  Mayor and Council will ride on golf carts. 
 
Senior Sensation:  Lunch reservations are coming in.  It’s $3 per person this 
year.  The Beaumont Hospital Wellness Fair is set.  Margaret Julian and Diana 
Duluck are working on getting prizes for Bingo.  Coffee will be prepared by Gail 
Moran of the Troy School District. 
Sara Wunderlich, Student Rep, will be an assistant to Jeff Super for shuttles. 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  AUGUST 26, 2008 

 

 
Mike will pick up 15-20 fire extinguishers. 
 
Generator:  Mad Power is all set.  Jeff Winiarski is all set for electrical.  We are 
using the same diesel fuel provider as last year. 
 
Booths are full.  The Booth meeting will be held Wed, September 3 at 7 pm.  
Need overhead projector for his laptop presentation.  Bob and Lynn will be 
putting layout and packets together this week.  Called Health Department; Kathy 
Fraser will attend the Booth Meeting, if possible.  There is room also on the 
agenda for the Fire and Police Dept.  They will be strict on rules.  One parking 
pass per booth is provided; additional ones on sale.  Wear black shirts to Booth 
Meeting. 
 
Layout:  almost identical to 2007 except outdoor stage moved back (west) almost 
where old pavilion was.  Kids Corner Tents will form a “U” shape.  Entertainment 
Tent was 80x100 E-W, now 80x100 N-S. 
 
Drop Off Area for students is at the garbage dumpster off Northfield Pkwy.  There 
will be a student drop-off sign.  Mike will call Boulan Principal regarding turning 
on the school parking lot lights. 
 
Parking stickers are on sale now.  Cindy will send note to Tim McAvoy to include 
with school e-mail blast.  Fire Dept. will deliver lawn signs to all Fire Stations & 
the Fire-Police Training Center. 
 
Bob Matlick and Stu Redpath are new Operations Volunteers.  Operations 
working Friday, September 5, 8 am at Boulan Park.  Tents, storage trailers to 
arrive. 
 
Nino Salvaggio is donating fruit, cheese, veggie trays for volunteers on Friday.  
We’ll also have donuts, coffee and chips.  Water and pop are needed for 
volunteers.  50 cases of water; 25 cases of pop (10 regular, 10 diet and 5 clear 
pop).  Needs to be $5-6 a case. Mike and Dan O’Brien will work on this 
 
Sunday, September 7 at 8 am, need volunteers for more setup/signs. 
Monday, September 8, setup/operations starts at 8 am.  Jeff Super fixed and 
painted all the fences. Tuesday, September 9, setup again at 8 am. 
 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-08-24 
Motion by:  Mike Gonda 
Seconded by:  Alison Miller 
 
RESOLVED, that all Troy Daze Advisory Committee members and their 
immediate family members (spouses/children) as well as Troy Daze Committee 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  AUGUST 26, 2008 

 

Chairs and their immediate family members are not eligible to enter contests or 
win any monetary awards for Troy Daze related events or competitions. 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Photo Contest:  Steve Wassef introduced himself as assistant to Tom & Tammy 
Duszynski.  Entries are coming in. 
 
Northfield Pkwy will be closed on Saturday between 9:30-11:30 am for the 
Parade. 
 
Waffle Breakfast:  Jonathan Campion is all set.  Saturday and Sunday from  
9 am - 1 pm.  $5 waffle meal for adults/$4 kids meal. 
 
Diana McKay has a coin sorter for Alison to use for cutest infant/toddler contest. 
 
Opening Ceremony/New Citizen Naturalization combined will begin at 6 pm.   
 
Old Business 
 
Police and Fire Explorer contract was approved on August 25, 2008 by the City 
Council. 
 
Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION # TD-2008-08-25 
Moved by: Alison Miller 
Seconded by:  Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting is adjourned. 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:25 pm. 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     FINAL MINUTES                           September 2, 2008  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 
Minutes for Tuesday, September 2, 2008 

 
 

I. Call to Order 7:10 pm 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Michelle Haight 
    Karen Yelder 
    Kelly Jones 
       Mayada Fakhouri 
    Grigore Buia 
    Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
     
  Absent Cathy Francois 
    William Lawrence  
    Reuben Ellis 
    Lily Huang, Student rep 
    Tony Haddad 
 
  Visitors: Sushma Shrestha 

  
III. Approval of Minutes – August 12, 2008  

 
Motion to approve August 12, 2008 minutes by Karen Yelder, seconded by Kelly 
Jones. Approved unanimously.  
 

IV. Correspondence/ Articles 
Kelly will bring to the October meeting. 

 
 

V. Old Business 
a. Troy Daze Ethnicity 

 
  Poster Contest – Deadline is Sept. 8.  Judging is Sept. 11 in Room 404.  Remind 
  Tim McAvoy to send an e-blast.  Michelle is set with judges. 
   
  Ethnicity Booths Confirmed: 
   
  EIAB, Peru, Germany, Troy High Chinese Club, Bharatiya Temple, CAPA,  
  NAFFAA, African American Parent Support Group, Filipino American Community  
  Council. CAGD, Oriental Culture Association, Arab Chaldean & American Council.   
  Total 17 tables. 
 
  Cindy will get the trifold display board and bring the flags, pictures, Velcro, 
  tablecloths and skirts, passports from Mayada, flag stickers, pushpins, and world 
  map. Kelly and Karen will attend the Wed., Sept. 3 Booth Meeting. 
  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     FINAL MINUTES                           September 2, 2008  

 

 
 
b. African American Support Group – Next meeting is Monday, Sept. 8, 7:30 pm.  

Karen will attend.  ACT prep class starts on 9/13 at Troy High.  Math Prep class 
is Sept. 20-November at Baker.  Nadeen Brown is President.  There are plans 
to print a directory. 

 
c. Troy School District Updates 

 
Elementary school – Kelly finished her presentation for the PTO/PTA presidents.  It 
was sent to Michelle for editing.  She plans to discuss the EIAB mission and goals, 
resources, and demographics.  She will send to Tim McAvoy next for approval and 
to get a date for presentation.  Barnard Elementary School held their Kindergarten 
picnic and the Cultural Community Committee had a table there with information 
related to different ethnic groups as well as a cultural newsletter; highly 
recommended for other schools. 
 
High Schools – Mayada and Padma made a presentation on August 18 to 30 new 
Troy teachers.  It included an overview on EIAB, what they do, goals, upcoming 
events, resources and Troy Interfaith Group goals. 
 

 
VI. New Business 

a. Sterling Heights Diversity Dinner September 18th at Ike’s Family Dining on Van 
Dyke, Sterling Heights. $30/ticket.  
 

b. Cultural Brochures – On hold until after Troy Daze.  Plans to start with Arab, 
Indian, Chinese, and Eastern European.  Check CIA.gov for information. 

 
 

 
VII. Motion to adjourn 8:05 pm, by  Michelle Haight and seconded by Karen Yelder  

 
 

  Next Meeting Tuesday,   October 14, 2008 at 7 pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  SEPTEMBER 3, 2008 

 

CALL TO ORDER              
 
A meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held Wednesday, 
September 3, 2008 at the Troy Community Center at 8:43 pm.  

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Members Present:  Mike Gonda 
    Bob Berk 

Sandy Macknis 
    Jeff Stewart 
    Dan O’Brien 

Alison Miller 
    Jim Hattan 
    Jeff Super 
    Bob Preston 
    Sarah Wunderlich, student 
             

City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 
    Bob Kowalski 
    Tonya Perry 
    Mike Lyczkowski 

 
Others:    Karen Hattan   Doris Schuchter 
    Jeff Winiarski   Lynn Clark 

Bob Matlick 
 
 
Additions/Deletions to Agenda none 
 
New Business 
 
a. Event Updates –  
 
Move Cutest Toddler Board to Community Center. 
 
Shirt colors: 
Thursday – Gold 
Friday – Teal 
Saturday – California Blue 
Sunday – Birch/grey 
 
Senior Sensation – Al Lindsay will have ice there. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES FINAL  SEPTEMBER 3, 2008 

 

EthniCity – How many outlets?  Let Jeff Winiarski know. 
 
Kids Corner – Needs one outlet for games/tent. 
 
Senior Sensation – Last year we needed a picnic table or folding chairs in 
parking lot while they wait for shuttle.  Do same this year – 10 chairs. 
 
Operations – Set up large Entertainment Tent; Outdoor Stage; Vendor Tent &  
Trailers delivered Friday.  Headquarters set up.  EthniCity Tent and Photo- 
Student Art to be delivered Saturday.  Sunday at 8 am – set up for rest of tents. 
 
Dan O’Brien got a deal on pop & water and Jeff Winiarski offered to pay for this. 
 
Work Schedule: 
Monday, 8 am – 4 pm   Tuesday, 8 am – 5/6 pm 
Wednesday, 8 am – 8 pm   Thursday we begin. 
Friday, 8 am - close   
  
Need someone to pick up cleaning supplies and fire extinguishers.  Clean 
banners.  Laminate Friday afternoon at the Community Center. 
 
Make 10 car dealer passes. 
 
Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION # TD-2008-09-26 
Moved by: Alison Miller 
Seconded by:  Jim Hattan 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting is adjourned. 
Yes: All 
No: None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:01 pm. 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - FINAL September 11, 2008 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday, September 11, 
2008, in the Conference Room of the Troy Pubic Library.  Kul Gauri, Chairman, called 
the meeting to order at 7:31 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Kul Gauri 
   Lynne Gregory 

   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Joel Xu, Student Representative 
             
   Barbara Schaich, Head of Adult Services 

 
Guests: None 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given, followed by a moment of silence in 
interfaith silent prayer in honor of September 11th, 2001. 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-09-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That  Minutes of May 8, 2008 be approved. 
 
Yes: 5—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2008-09-02 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be amended to include “Summer LAB meetings” 
under New Business, Item D. 
 
Yes: 5—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Wheeler informed the LAB that Jim Fowler passed away.  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



 2 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
The LAB members requested that a generic announcement “Library Advisory Board 
meetings are held the 2nd Thursday of the month at 7:30 p.m.” be included in future 
issues of Troy Today, on the Boards & Commissions page and on the cover banner 
page of the Library/Museum section.  
 
Gauri announced that that MLA conference has special sessions for library trustees on 
Wednesday, October 22.  
 
Gauri would like to add “drive up drop box” to the October LAB meeting.  
 
Does the Library Director submit an annual report to the city? 
 
The LAB members would like to include a discussion of their roles and responsibilities 
to the agenda of the upcoming special meeting about the library café space.  
 
The LAB members would like a copy of the City Attorney’s presentation about the Open 
Meetings Act.  
 
The LAB members would like additional copies of Chapter 9, which discusses the 
Library Advisory Board.  
 
The LAB would like to know future dates of SLC Board meetings. 
 
Could Dollar-Store paper bags be distributed for patrons to use? What are other bag 
options? Are the Friends of TPL pursuing this?  
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS 
Joel is a senior at Troy High School. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no Postponed Items. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
There was no Old Business 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Welcome to New Library Advisory Board Student Representative Joel Xu. 
 

B. Statistics 2007-2008 fiscal year, July-August 2008 
The LAB would like the current year’s statistics as well as statistics from the 
previous 3 years, in future reports.  

 
C. Tour of Adult Services area—postponed until October meeting 

 
D. Summer Library Advisory Board meetings 

   
Resolution #LB-2008-09-03 



 3 

Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board hold 12 meetings per year  
 
Yes: 2—Gauri, Wheeler 
No: 3—Duggan, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
 
MOTION FAILED. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report   
 
Resolution #LB-2008-09-04 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Library Advisory Board receive and file the Director’s 
Report for September   
 
Yes: 5—Duggan, Gauri, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
   
Suburban Library Cooperative--Gregory 
The SLC will have a new delivery service, the Trinity Delivery Service. SLC is 
conducting a search for a new director. The search has been narrowed to 2 finalists. 
Larry Neal reported to the SLC board about the annual in-service that was held for 
member library staff September 4 & 5. Alliance is the SLC’s new investment service. 
The October SLC Board meeting will be Gregory’s last meeting as a board 
representative, as TPL’s term on the board ends at the end of October.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library 
No Report 
 
Gifts. 
The library received 4 donations from June-August: 

 $100 Troy Garden Club, Troy (proceeds from Troy Garden Walk) 

 $  25 Piety Hill Chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution, 
Birmingham 

 $  35 Evening Primrose Garden Club, Troy 

 $  33.63 June McPherson, Troy 
 
Informational Items. 
Website address for Troy Public Library calendar:  
http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


 4 

70 written comments from the public, received from May-August were reviewed.  
 
Adjournment   
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 9 P.M. 
 
 

 
 
 

      _____________________________________ 
Kul Gauri 
Chairman 
 
 

Barbara Schaich 
Recording Secretary 



 

1 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM  
PLANNING BOARD ACTION ITEMS 

OF WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2008 
 

Item 
 

Page 

      
Opportunities for Collaboration 
 
      Resolution by Mr. Vleck 
And seconded that the City of Troy and the City of Birmingham explore 
creating a Joint Planning Commission as it relates to the proposed Troy-
Birmingham Transit Center.  
 
Resolution carried unanimously. 
 
 
      Resolution by Mr. Tagle 
Seconded by Mr. Strat to excuse the absent members of the Troy 
Planning Commission for personal reasons. 
 
Resolution carried unanimously. 
 

 
7 
 

7 
 
 
 
 

8 
 
 

8 
 
 
 

8 

            

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



 

1 

 
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE BIRMINGHAM PLANNING BOARD 
AND 

TROY PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2008 

 

 
 
Minutes of the joint meeting of the Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning 
Commission held September 22, 2008.  Chairman Robin Boyle convened the meeting 
at 5:33 p.m. 
 
Birmingham Planning Board 
 
Present: Chairman Robin Boyle (left at 6:30 p.m.); Board Members Brian Blaesing, 

Sam Haberman, Gillian Lazar, Mark Nickita, Janelle Whipple-Boyce  
 
Absent:  Board Member Bryan Williams; Student Representative Cole Fredrick 
 
Birmingham Administration: Matthew Baka, Planning Intern 

Sheila Bashiri, City Planner 
Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
Tara Maguire, GIS Coordinator 

 Jill Robinson, City Planner 
 Carole Salutes, Recording Secretary 
 
Birmingham/Bloomfield  John Roberts, Chairman 
Chamber of Commerce: Alicia Green 
 Carrie Zarotney, President 
 
Troy Planning Commission 
 
Present: Chairman Robert Schultz; Commission Members Michael Hutson, Philip 

Sanzica, Thomas Strat, John Tagle, Mark Vleck (arrived at 5:40 p.m.) 
 
Absent: Commission Members Mark Maxwell, Lon Ullmann, Wayne Wright 
 
Troy Administration: Zak Branigan, Planning Consultant 
    Chris Forsyth, City Attorney 
    Mark Miller, Planning Director 
    R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
Troy Chamber of Commerce: Michelle Hodges, President 

John Daily 
Ted Wilson 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

2 

09-182-08 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S COMMENTS AND INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS 
 
Chairman Robin Boyle welcomed the audience and everyone around the table 
introduced themselves. 
 

09-183-08 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (no changes) 
 

09-184-08 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (no one 
spoke) 
 

09-185-08 
 

DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED TROY-BIRMINGHAM TRANSIT CENTER 
 
 Status of Transit Center Development 

 
Ms. Jana Ecker gave a PowerPoint presentation which went over the reason for this 
meeting and why it is felt the Transit Center is needed in Birmingham and Troy.  There 
has been an increase in demand for public transportation both nationally and locally 
with the price of gas going up, along with a resurgence in demand for urban living.  This 
region needs to recognize these trends and plan for the future in terms of coordinating 
existing services.  They think that a multi-modal Transit Center would be an excellent 
way to do that by coordinating AMTRAK, the existing bus lines, sedan service, taxi 
service, and some airport linkages.  It allows connection in the future with any other 
types of transit services that might come to this area. 
 
The City of Troy entered into a Consent Agreement in 2000 with the developer of the 
Midtown Shopping Center, which stipulated that if the City started construction on a 
transit center by 2010 then the developer would donate the land.  It would come with a 
large parking lot already developed. 
 
It has been determined that a critical part of this project must be the pedestrian tunnel 
that would run between Troy and Birmingham.  The railroad companies will not allow 
any type of above-grade crossing.  The only way to access the AMTRAK platform is 
from the Birmingham side. Therefore, since the land is on the Troy side, there is a need 
for an underground pedestrian tunnel to connect both sides. 
 
 Existing planning efforts 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

3 

o Proposed Troy Transit Center area – density, height, current land uses 
 
Mr. Mark Miller said that Troy city staff along with the Planning Commission have 
prepared a Master Plan that specifically identifies a Transit Center District.  The Master 
Plan moves this area away from traditional suburban development and allows for 
increased intensity in a livable urban environment.  The Planning Commission must still 
approve the Master Plan in order to have a Transit Center designation in this location.  
Then they can start on regulations to implement it. 
 

o Birmingham Rail District – density, height, current land uses 
 
Ms. Ecker summarized that on the Birmingham side there is already the type of 
walkable community that one would generally like to see around a Transit Center.  The 
Rail District has a Master Plan that sets up the type of development that encourages 
multiple stories, a mix of uses, moving the buildings up to the street, and making it 
pedestrian friendly.  Further to the west in the Triangle District, a Master Plan has been 
completed that goes for the same thing and creates the type of environment that people 
want to live in.  Troy has done a good job in identifying and defining the boundaries of 
the area they perceive to be most impacted by the development of the Transit Center 
and Birmingham needs to consider doing that as well. 
 
 Area context 

 
The Transit Center will be located on the Troy side immediately behind the Kroger retail 
store.  Vehicular access will be down Doyle Dr., south of Maple Rd.  There has been 
some discussion about providing five or ten parking spaces on the Birmingham side.  
The tunnel will be located a couple of blocks south of the existing platform is currently.  
Ms. Michelle Hodges voiced her concern for something to be underway prior to the 
2010 deadline. 
 

o GIS Data 
 
Ms. Tara Maguire went through a series of maps that outlined some of the existing 
conditions in the proposed Transit Center area. 
 

o Demographics  
 
Ms. Maguire noted that the 2000 census data has been projected to 2007: 

- The area in and around the Rail District has lower population numbers than 
some of the outlying areas but is growing; 

- Median age of the population around the Transit Center is younger. 
- Fewer housing units around the Transit Center than further away; 
- Within one mile there are 4447 parcels; 
- Traffic volumes on the roads will decrease as people start to use the Transit 

Center; and 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

4 

- Median household income in and around the Transit Center is low to middle 
for the area. 

 
o Future build-out potential 

 
Chairman Boyle pointed out this is not just an opportunity to provide an alternative 
transportation system, but it is also an opportunity to see how additional development 
may be attracted to this area, particularly to vicinities that are presently somewhat lower 
in density.   
 
 Transit oriented development 
 

Transportation becomes a focal point, not only for the quality of life, but it also drives a 
different form of urban development that is somewhat higher in density and has a 
mixed-use component.  So the twin goals are not just the transit, but the future that both 
cities envision for this particular area. 
 
Mr. Sam Haberman thought the shared taxi concept should be incorporated into the 
existing services of the Transit Center.  If there is no one to take people to their jobs, the 
Transit Center will not be used as much as it could be. 
 
Mr. Brian Blaesing said it is obvious to him that the two planning bodies have to work 
together in light of the fact the Transit Center will not happen without the joint efforts of 
the two cities.  Secondly, this will not happen unless the funding is established.  Ms. 
Ecker said the Birmingham/Bloomfield Chamber of Commerce, Troy Chamber of 
Commerce, City of Troy, and City of Birmingham are working on funding.  Most recently 
they have gone to all of the different legislators in the area to promote the Transit 
Center and to seek funding for it.  Also they are looking at different groups that would be 
willing to support the transit center, so that when they make a formal request to the 
legislators, that support will be behind them.  The budget for the project is in the 
neighborhood of $5.6 million for the building and the tunnel.  Funding in place is: 
$1.5 Million donation of land; 
$1.2 Million from City of Troy; 
$300 Thousand from City of Birmingham; and 
$350 Thousand from the State of Michigan for the conceptual design renderings. 
 
Mr. Miller noted that the City of Troy has identified that trailways will be part of the 
Transit Center.  They are currently in the process of sending out an RFQ to hire a non-
motorized path system consultant.  Ms. Ecker said Birmingham envisions a linear park 
that would run alongside the rail track to promote pedestrian circulation within the 
district. 
 
Chairman Boyle felt that as part of these deliberations they would like to know a little bit 
more about how folks are getting to work. 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

5 

Mr. Miller explained that the concept that Troy proposes along Big Beaver will not work 
in the suburban mode of driving from place to place.  There needs to be a connection 
along Big Beaver down to the Transit Center. 
 
Mr. Thomas Strat added that a link to Somerset is very important.  They are trying to get 
mixed occupancy and are rehabbing a lot of the light industrial.  The airport is an 
important link.  Several cab companies are interested in becoming a part of the plan. 
 
Mr. Mark Vleck said the group needs to take a look at the other destinations along the 
way. 
 
Mr. Mark Nickita inquired how the Troy plan for that area will correlate with what 
Birmingham has done with the Rail District.  Mr. Miller answered their Master Plan is a 
draft plan at this time.  If it is adopted by the City it encompasses new infill development, 
allows for multi-modal transportation, and creates walkability.  The two planning bodies 
must decide if they want to work together to create a common district that is in two 
cities; and  further, whether they want to create common regulations for that area. 
 
Mr. Philip Sanzica asked about any income that may be generated at the site.  Ms. 
Ecker said there has been discussion about having concessions within the building that 
would produce a monthly income that would at least cover the maintenance costs.  Mr. 
Chris Forsyth did not think the Consent Judgment would prohibit some types of 
concessions. 
 
Mr. Vleck said the chances of success are dramatically increased if the cities combine 
together as a team and work on the Transit Center together.  This is an area that 
definitely needs additional forms of mass transportation.   
 
Chairman Boyle echoed those thoughts.  It behooves the two planning bodies to come 
together in such a way as to make this Transit Center work. 
 
The chairman took comments from members of the public at 6:25 p.m. 
 
Mr. Richard Rosenbaum, resident of the area, said that by dividing the daily AMTRAK 
ridership of 27 people into the $6.5 million figure it comes out to be the most expensive 
train station on the planet.  Secondly, the piece of donated property that is worth $1.5 
million sounds to him like a $1.5 million tax write-off for an individual who gave many 
other donations.  The reason trains in Europe travel so quickly between cities is 
because they don’t have many stops.  Therefore, one might ask about two major train 
stations between Birmingham and Royal Oak about three miles apart. 
 
Mr. Frank Carnovale, architect in Birmingham, said the two fundamental issues that 
need to be addressed immediately are how much this is going to cost and where the 
money is coming from; and secondly, is there enough time to coordinate these two city 
bodies and bore a pipe underneath an active railroad that neither City owns.  He thinks 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

6 

that ridership will increase in consideration of rising fuel costs.  Therefore, this is 
something that should be seriously pursued and pursued quickly. 
 
Ms. Dorothy Conrad, 2252 Yorkshire, said she would like to see a map of proposed 
destinations and employment opportunities along the line.   
 
Mr. Larry Bertollini who lives in the area wanted to know how much the building is going 
to cost out of the $5.6 million.  Also, what is the purpose of the parking at the site and 
how many spots would be provided.  Ms. Ecker explained the bulk of the cost is due to 
the tunnel and the earth work that would be necessary for it.  She does not have a 
figure on the building at this time.  Mr. Miller said 40 parking spaces have been set 
aside. 
 
Ms. Alice Thimm from Birmingham wanted to know what is necessary to get this project 
underway.  Ms. Ecker advised the City of Birmingham is trying to move this along as 
best they can but they have to rely on the City of Troy to work out the details of the 
Consent Agreement. 
 
Chairman Boyle left the meeting at 6:30 p.m. and Chairman Robert Schultz took over. 
 
Ms. Pam Brady from Troy asked if the Transit Center is part of the Brownfield 
Development Authority area, and if it is and it reverts, will Troy lose tax money if other 
establishments are put there instead of the Transit Center.  Mr. Miller advised it is part 
of Brownfield Plan No. 1.  He said the City of Troy has paid off the eligible legal fees, 
testing and cleanup of the site along with other expenses to Grand Sakwa. The tax 
increment is now being stored and will be available for the Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority to grant loans.  If the property reverts to City ownership he will have to find out 
what happens to the increments from the property because it would then be tax exempt. 
 
Ms. Michelle Hodges, President of the Troy Chamber of Commerce, said even if the 
Transit Center never materializes the communities are now working collaboratively and 
they are better off because of that.  The Troy Chamber is committed to this effort and is 
pleased to be working with such a great team.  From a regional standpoint, they are 
also working with SEMCOG as well as Detroit Regional Mass Transit.  They also have 
reached out to Aerotropolis to develop some sort of reciprocal support for this so that it 
is part of a regional plan.  Additionally, the Oakland County Business Roundtable for 
Transit has provided a letter of support. 
 
Ms. Hodges suggested some potential action items.  Lawrence Tech University has 
recommended a transit-oriented development district as well.  The respective bodies 
could also pass resolutions of support.  Individuals should be writing letters of support 
too.  Each of the communities need to have policies that are supportive of transit-
oriented development.  One of the most significant things the communities could do 
would be to hire a project manager because it is an aggressive timeline.  If they remove 
as many obstacles as possible from the decision making process they will be more 
successful. 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

7 

Mr. Richard Rosenbaum inquired about who would pay for the staffing of the building.  
Ms. Ecker said it is premature to determine what concession stands will be allowed.  
The Michigan Dept. of Transit, SMART, and AMTRAK may offer some funding. 
 
Mr. John Roberts, Board Chair of the Birmingham/Bloomfield Chamber of Commerce, 
pointed out this area is unique in its lack of regional mass transit.  This has to change. 
 
 Opportunities for Collaboration 

 
Mr. Brent Savidant gave a slide summary of potential state statutes that create tools to 
permit intergovernmental cooperation.  He discussed the Joint Municipal Planning Act, 
created in December 2003, that allows the legislative bodies of two or more 
municipalities to establish a joint planning commission.  The joint planning commission 
can have any or all of the powers that are provided the planning bodies under the 
Zoning Enabling Act. 
 
Assuming there is an affirmative nod from both boards this evening, the next step would 
be to determine the district that the planning commission would have jurisdiction over 
and to put together a list of the joint planning commission’s powers and duties. 
 
Chairman Schultz believed it would be in the best interest of getting the project 
consummated to have a joint body overseeing the site that will contain the structure, the 
parking spaces, and the tunnel.   
 
Resolution by Mr. Vleck 
And seconded that the City of Troy and the City of Birmingham explore creating a 
joint planning commission as it relates to the proposed Troy-Birmingham Transit 
Center. 
 
Mr. Blaesing thought it is important to proceed in this direction.  The two most critical 
elements are the short time frame to do something, and getting the money in place.  
The joint body could reinforce to City, County, State, and Federal funding bodies that 
this is being taken seriously by the two communities.  Secondly, in the end when they 
come up against deadlines, having the joint body in place would prove to be a good 
indication to Grand Sakwa that progress is being made.  If more time is needed the 
cities may be able to negotiate it because of this effort.   
 
Mr. Sanzica concurred that the cities must work together.  When going for grants, 
congress wants to see cooperation between the communities.  If there is any dissention, 
the project will fail. 
 
Mr. Nickita thought that given the timeline it is important to show solidarity.  This is a 
good avenue to continue discussion to a higher level. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

8 

Birmingham Planning Board 
Yeas:  Blaesing, Lazar, Haberman, Nickita, Whipple-Boyce 
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Boyle, Williams 
 
Troy Planning Commission 
Yeas:  Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Maxwell, Ullmann, Wright 
 
Resolution carried unanimously. 
 
Resolution by Mr. Tagle 
Seconded by Mr. Strat to excuse the absent members of the Troy Planning 
Commission for personal reasons. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
 
Troy Planning Commission 
Yeas:  Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
Nays:  None 
Absent:  Maxwell, Ullmann, Wright 
 
Resolution carried unanimously. 
 
Messrs. Sanzica and Vleck indicated they are looking forward to the exciting potential of 
the two cities working together. 
 

o Definition (not discussed) 
 

o Case studies (not discussed) 
 

09-186-08 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Chairman Schultz opened the meeting for public comments at 6:55 p.m. 
 
Mr. Larry Bertolini asked if the plan for the Transit Center has been finalized.  Ms. Ecker 
advised there is an outside consulting firm that was hired with the State money that is 
working with the cities of Troy and Birmingham in the joint effort.  The plan has not yet 
been finalized. 
 
Ms. Ericka Knoll asked if traffic flow studies have been completed.  Ms. Ecker replied 
that no studies have been finalized. 



Birmingham-Troy Planning Proceedings 
September 22, 2008 

 

 

 

9 

Mr. Frank Carnovale inquired if the City of Birmingham owns the property necessary to 
accommodate this connection.  Mr. Ecker said they do not, but have been working 
toward an effort in that regard with a multitude of property owners there. 
 

09-187-08 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
No further business being evident, meeting adjourned at 7 p.m. 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 Jana Ecker 

 Planning Director 
 City of Birmingham 
 
 
 
 Mark Miller 
 Planning Director 
 City of Troy 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 24, 2008  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on September 24, 2008 at 7:00 PM 
at Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Jason Lee and Neil Shaw called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Willa Adamo 

Disha Bora  
Geon Woo Kim  
Jason Lee (Co-chair) 
Jennifer Liang 
Joseph Niemiec  
Vikram Prasad (Secretary) 
Shaina Sekhri  
Neil Shaw (Co chair) 
Rachita Singh 
Emily Wang 
David Wylie 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Sevita Rama  
VISITORS: Nancy Morrison and Nick Donabedian - Teens Taking Action 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2008-9-14 
 
 Moved by   Sekhri 

  Seconded by  Adamo 
   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of August 27, 2008 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 11 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  2 – Rama, Wylie   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitors    
  Nancy Morrison and Nick Donabedian – Teens Taking Action 
   Presented information regarding TTA. 
    TTA established in 1998 
    Provide leadership training 
    Teens against tobacco use (TABU) 
    Involved in Jam Fest 
    Spring break Troy style 
    7 habits of highly effective teens 
    Anyone can attend meetings 
    Walked through demonstrations 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   September 24, 2008  
 

 2

5. Teens Taking Action  
No Update 

 
6. Troy Daze 

Some did not have the opportunity to volunteer due to weather.  3 members 
are in need of volunteer forms. 

 
   

7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  
 
No Motion 

 Resolution # TY-2008- 
  Moved by    
  Seconded by   

  
RESOLVED that  

  Yes:   0  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   0   
 
       
8. Youth Council Comments – None  

 
9. Public Comments  –  None    

 
 

10. Adjournment –   7:40 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jason Lee, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: October 22 at 7:00 P.M.  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, October 1, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES- MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 3, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 3, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  PAUL DETERS, METRO DETROIT SIGNS, 5505 
CORPORATE, for relief of Chapter 85 to install two (2) additional ground signs each 
measuring 50 square feet in area. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to install two 
additional ground signs.  This site currently has a 192 square foot ground sign.  Chapter 
85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one ground sign for each building in accordance with table 
85.02.05 and one additional ground sign for each building, not to exceed thirty-six 
square feet in area.  The site plan submitted indicates that the new signs would each be 
50 square feet in area. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of September 3, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to consider the possibility of reducing his variance 
request. 
 
Revised plans have been submitted deleting one of the signs.  However they are still 
requesting a variance to allow this sign to be 50 square feet in area where the 
ordinance limits this sign to 36 square feet. 
 
Mr. Paul Deters of Metro Detroit Signs was present.  Mr. Deters indicated that they had 
decided to eliminate the sign that would have been erected along New King.  The new  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
sign will be constructed along the entrance drive on Corporate.  There is no signage on 
the building and the owners do not have any plans to add signage.  Mr. Deters stated 
that this sign will have the address on it as well as six major tenants.  Each of the six (6) 
major tenants will have an identification sign that is one square foot in area. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the configuration of the sign made this variance necessary. 
 
Mr. Deters said that was correct and reiterated that the owner wanted the address of the 
building as well as the names of the major tenants in the building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about the existing sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the 192 square foot existing sign does not identify the building, it 
identifies the complex.  If that sign was not on the site the proposed sign would be 
allowed. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he was hoping the petitioner had found additional information in 
requesting this variance.  This complex has two (2) isolated entrances as well as a large 
retention pond in the front.  The building sits quite far back on the property and the signs 
would provide the identification needed for both the building name and the parking.  Mr. 
Kessler also hoped that the petitioner would have presented the correct verbiage 
regarding the hardships involved with this site.  Mr. Kessler also stated that he would 
like something concrete that will state that the existing sign that identifies Baluster Park 
will not be used to identify the building. 
 
Mr. Deters said that he had misinterpreted what the Board was asking for. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked the petitioner if he felt that this site would meet any of the variables 
brought up by Mr. Kessler. 
 
Mr. Deters stated he could definitely state that no tenants would be listed on the existing 
sign that identifies Baluster Park.  This is a unique site with two (2) separate driveways.  
Mr. Deters said that they are trying to work with the Board. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how many tenants would be listed on the sign. 
 
Mr. Deters said that due to the configuration of the sign, they would only allow 
identification for six (6) of the major tenants.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how large these tenant signs would be. 
 
Mr. Deters said that they are 1’ x 4’. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked how large a sign would be permitted if the 192 square foot was not 
there. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that depending on the setback, a maximum size of 200 square feet 
would be allowed. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked about the location of the 192 square foot existing sign. 
 
Mr. Evans said that in August 2005, this Board granted a variance on the setback to the 
front property line for the location of that sign based on the location of the pond and also 
the slope of the land. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Paul Deters, Metro Detroit Signs, 5505 Corporate relief of Chapter 85 
to install two (2) additional ground signs each measuring 50 square feet. 
 

• No tenant names will be listed on the 192 square foot office park sign. 
• Any changes to the 192 square foot office park sign, including face changes, will 

require approval by the Building Code Board of Appeals. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RALPH GARABEDIAN, 2644-2648 
LOVINGTON, for relief of the dwelling unit separation wall in the attic of a two family 
dwelling required by Section 317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code.   
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is the owner of a two-family dwelling originally 
constructed in 1969.  Recently the home was inspected as part of a property 
maintenance issues at the property.  It was discovered that the fire resistance rated wall 
separating the two dwelling units did not extend through the attic of the units.  Section 
317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code requires that this wall extend to the underside of 
the roof sheathing.  Upon being cited for this deficiency, the petitioner filled application 
for appeal of this item. 
 
This item appeared before this Board at the meeting of September 3, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to look into other options that would 
provide the same equivalent level of fire safety. 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that he had a telephone conversation with Mr. 
Garabedian who indicated that he was looking at replacing the roof and stated that he 
would put the fire separation walls in at that time.  Mr. Stimac also stated that he had 
not received anything in writing, and although a Building Permit is not required for re-
roofing, due to the structural changes a Building Permit would be required in this case. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if he had given Mr. Stimac a time frame. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he had indicated that it would be done before this winter. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Ralph Garabedian, 2644-2648 Lovington, for relief 
of the dwelling unit separation wall in the attic of a two-family dwelling required by 
Section 317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code until the meeting of November 5, 2008. 
 

• To allow Building Department Staff to contact Mr. Garabedian regarding his 
intentions on this property. 

 
Yeas:   All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 5, 
2008 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DALE B. SCHMIDT, 6768 MERRICK DR., for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high aluminum fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
48” high fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has a 40’ minimum front 
yard setback along both Merrick and Kimberly.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in 
front setbacks to a maximum height of 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates this 4’ 
high fence setback 30’ from the property line along Kimberly.  
 
Mr. Dale Schmidt was present and stated that if they comply with the Ordinance the 
proposed fence would be constructed right in the middle of the existing brick pavers.  
Mr. Schmidt has a riding mower and in order to get it in the back yard he needs a 
double gate and felt that this type of fencing would be more convenient and more 
cosmetically pleasing.  Mr. Schmidt brought in pictures, which we passed out to the 
Board members showing the pavers and his back yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how much the fence would have to be moved in order to leave the 
pavers they way they are now. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that the pavers are 7’ wide and lead to the patio.  He would need a 
minimum of 4’ out and the existing landscaping would also have to be moved.   
Mr. Dziurman asked how far back the fence needed to go from the property line. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that in order to stay out of the setback, this fence would need to be 
erected 40’ from the property line.  The petitioner is proposing to put this fence 30’ from 
the property line. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the 14’-9” shown on the site plan was the distance from the corner 
of the property to the house. 
 
Mr. Stimac said he thought that it was the distance from the corner of the house to the 
corner of the fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak informed the petitioner that in the past this Board has asked for extra 
landscaping on these types of requests.  The landscaping helps to shield the fence from 
the neighbors as well as traffic going down the street.  Mr. Richnak asked if the 
petitioner had considered running the fence through the landscaping so that visibility 
would be decreased. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that he probably could do that the only problem would be that there 
are three shrubs that are together and at least one or two of them would have to be 
moved. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that if the sole reason for this type of fence was to get the lawn mower 
into the back yard, a regular gate could be put on this side of the house a larger gate on 
the other side of the house. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that he could do this but the fence would still run through the middle of 
the pavers. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he had gone by this property and the landscaping is very nice.  Mr. 
Kessler asked what the minimum setback would be for going into the paver area. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that he is trying to have the fence blend with the landscaping and 
thinks that there would be approximately 2’ before the pavers. 
 
Mr. Kessler suggested that the petitioner maintain the landscaping inside the fence 
area.  Mr. Kessler also asked if the petitioner had thought of putting up a fence at the 
time he had his patio and landscaping done. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that they wanted a fence all along, but waited until they had the funds 
to purchase it.  They also have recently acquired a dog and they would like to be able to  
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
let it out without worrying about it running away.  Mr. Schmidt also said that there are 
three children next door and he is worried about them coming onto his property. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if this was a colored fence. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that it was a dark brown color. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are four (4) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Schmidt asked what the people were objecting to. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that basically they want the petitioner to follow the guidelines set 
forth in the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he was concerned about the relationship of this proposed fence to 
the property at the back of this home and how much the fence would be encroaching 
into the front setback along Kimberly. 
 
Mr. Schmidt stated that it was right along the property line.  When they first moved into 
this home the neighbors had a picket fence that was deteriorating.  The neighbors are 
planning to remove that fence and Mr. Schmidt does not believe his fence will have any 
impact on them. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner had looked into the option of starting the fence at the 
rear of the patio and bringing it back to the required setback.  The majority of the fence 
would be behind landscaping. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that he could explore that possibility but thought that they would still 
have to come out about 9’. 
 
Mr. Richnak suggested following the line of the existing pavers. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that he had thought of that, but was not sure how good that would 
look. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the Board is trying to provide some direction.  The Board needs 
a hardship that runs with the land to allow a variance.  This is a new home on a corner 
and the pavers could be modified.  The yard is beautiful but there should be a hardship 
that is unique to this lot.  Mr. Kessler stated that he feels the Board can either postpone 
this request so that the petitioner could look into other options, or deny the request as 
the petitioner has not demonstrated a hardship. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Schmidt said that if the fence is put in the location that would comply with the 
Ordinance, he would also have to re-do the patio. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the petitioner that it would be extremely helpful to the Board if the 
petitioner were to show the exact location of the pavers on the plans or the location of 
the proposed fence on the site.  The petitioner could also stake out the location of the 
fence that would comply with the Ordinance.  Documentation in this case would be very 
helpful. 
 
Mr. Dziurman suggested that this request be postponed to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to designate these areas and give the Board another opportunity to look at 
the property to see what part of the landscaping would be affected.  The petitioner 
would also be able to re-do the site plan and show more detail, which would point out 
what the hardship is. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that pictures would be very helpful. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Dale Schmidt, 6768 Merrick Drive for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a 48” high aluminum fence until the meeting of November 5, 2008. 
 

• To allow the petitioner to re-submit a more detailed site plan. 
• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to stake out the property showing both the 

proposed location of the fence, and the location of the fence that would comply 
with the Ordinance. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL NOVEMBER 5, 2008 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  NANCY PETERS, 1981 KRISTIN DR., for relief 
of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high non-obscuring fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high picket style fence setback 30’ and parallel to the front property line along Kristin.  
This fence is proposed to replace an existing two-rail split rail fence in this location.  
Chapter 83 limits the height of fences to 30” in required front setbacks. 
 
Mrs. Peters’ daughter, Lindsay Warren was present representing her mother.  Ms. 
Warren stated that this home was constructed in 1976 and this fence was put in at the 
same time.  It is now in a state of disrepair and needs to either be replaced or taken 
down.  Ms. Warren also stated that her mother likes the looks of the new fence and it  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
would only be used to designate the sidewalk leading to the front door.  The placement 
of the fence will remain the same as the existing fence; the difference will be the fact 
that this is a picket fence rather than a split rail and will be taller. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why the petitioner wanted this height of fence. 
 
Ms. Warren stated that this fence runs in 48” sections. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the purpose of this fence was. 
 
Ms. Warren stated that it is strictly decorative and will follow the walkway to the front 
door.  They do not plan to add any type of gate and it will not be enclosed. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they plan to maintain landscaping along the fence. 
 
Ms. Warren stated that her mother takes great pride in the way her property looks and 
hires a professional landscaper.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak expressed concern about visibility along the window lines of the property.   
 
Ms. Warren stated that they had put a sample piece of this fencing against the windows 
and did not believe it would create any type of problem.  Ms. Warren also stated that if 
this variance is not approved the existing fence would still be taken down. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that if the installation is done correctly it will give this home a “country 
look” that would be very appealing.  Mr. Kessler also said that he would like to see 
shrubbery maintained at a 12” height to make the fence appear shorter. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what type of shrubbery was around the existing fence. 
 
Ms. Warren stated that she did not know, but said the landscaper cut it back every year. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that based upon the pictures submitted the existing shrubs were hostas. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if there was a way to put in a shorter fence.   
 
A representative from Anderson Installations was present and stated that a shorter 
fence was not available in this style. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Nancy Peters, 1981 Kristin Dr., relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high non-obscuring fence. 
 

• A combination of soil and shrubs, 12” in height, will be maintained along the 
street side of the fence line. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  CHUCK TRUZA, 2972 STRAWBERRY HILL, 
for relief of Section 85.01.05 B, of chapter 85 (The Sign Ordinance) of the Troy City 
Code. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is the President of the Strawberry Hill Park 
Homeowners Association and is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to erect a new 
subdivision entrance sign.  Section 85.01.05 B of the Sign Ordinance states that no sign 
shall exceed 30” in height when located within the 25’ corner clearance triangle at the 
intersection of two public streets.  The site plan submitted for the new subdivision 
entrance sign at the northeast corner of Strawberry Hill and Adams shows that the sign, 
within the corner clearance triangle, is proposed to be 45” tall. 
 
Mr. Stimac also informed the Board that the sidewalk along Adams was not installed in 
the typical location.  Mr. Stimac believes this was done due to the large amount of 
existing vegetation along Adams.  The Engineering Department had informed Mr. 
Stimac that the chances of Adams Road being widened were “slim to none”.  The west 
side of Adams road is Bloomfield Hills and if the road were widened a large amount of 
the existing mature vegetation would be lost. 
 
Mr. Chuck Truza and Mr. William Kendall were present to represent the Strawberry Hill 
Park Homeowners Association.  Mr. Kendall stated that they need a variance on the 
height of this sign due to the fact that there is a deep hollow and if the sign were to 
conform to the Ordinance it would appear sunken.  Visibility is very important and 
conformance would make this visibility very difficult. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the petitioners removing two existing evergreen trees. 
 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kendall said that they have received approval from Oakland County, who owns part 
of this property to remove two (2) existing pine trees and also approval to place the sign 
on their property.  Mr. Kendall also stated that the entire area will be re-landscaped. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what type of landscaping they are proposing.  Evergreen trees would 
affect visibility. 
 
Mr. Truza stated that they have contacted a landscaping company and are planning to 
put in at least $1,800.00 to $2,000.00 of landscaping.  The Homeowners Associations is 
planning to spend approximately $9,000.00 for the sign and landscaping.  They have 
drawn up preliminary plans but do not have anything definite at this time. 
 
Mr. Richnak looked at the preliminary plan and stated that they are showing Day Lilies 
and Hostas, which would not restrict visibility. 
 
Mr. Truza said that they have also installed a sprinkler system so that they can keep this 
landscaping looking fresh. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
No one wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if either Mr. Truza or Mr. Kendall lived in the home that was involved 
in this request. 
 
Mr. Truza stated that the homeowner was not present, but they have made 
arrangements to compensate them for the lawn sprinkling and also for the electricity for 
the low voltage lighting they are planning to install. 
 
Mr. Kessler was concerned as it impacts this homeowner the most and also because 
they will lose some of their existing vegetation. 
 
Mr. Kendall said that they are not really changing any of the vegetation along their 
driveway.  The two trees that they are planning to remove are near the down slope of 
the hollow. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the homeowner had been involved with the planning of this sign. 
 
Mr. Kendall stated that there was a stop sign on the south side of Strawberry and 
people drive past the sign.  If they cannot put in the higher sign visibility will be limited.   
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Truza said that the placement of the sign will be behind the existing stop sign and 
will be setback quite a bit from the corner. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he thought the existing sign was located a car length and one-
half from Adams Road. 
 
Mr. Kessler suggested that the petitioners could remove the trees and level the area 
which would allow them to put up a sign that was 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the grade by the Sign Ordinance is established at the center line 
of the road and the 30” height is measured from the center line of the road.  Mr. Stimac 
also stated that they are proposing the new sign to be 45” above the centerline of the 
road. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the proposed sign would be placed farther back from the road. 
 
Mr. Truza said that the site line to the left approaching Adams is not any different than 
the existing site line. 
 
Mr. Richnak agreed that the site line would not be changed from the existing site line. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the variance would make an improvement to what is there, but is 
not sure that this Board has the expertise to make this decision.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked if Mr. Kessler thought this proposal should be presented to the 
Transportation Engineer. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he does believe that is what should be done. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he had spoken to Bill Houtari in the City’s Engineering 
Department regarding this request but has not given him the paperwork that was 
submitted.  The corner clearance is also to provide protection for pedestrians, or 
joggers, or bicyclists using the sidewalk.  People traveling along Adams Road have to 
slow down in order to navigate the sidewalk crossing Strawberry and it is highly unlikely 
that Adams Road will be widened.   
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Chuck Truza, 2972 Strawberry Hills, relief of Section 85.01.05 B, of 
Chapter 85 (The Sign Ordinance) of the Troy City Code to install a subdivision entrance 
sign that is 45” tall, where Section 85.01.05 B of the Sign Ordinance states that no sign 
shall exceed 30” in height when located within the 25’ corner clearance triangle at the 
intersection of two public streets. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                             OCTOBER 1, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 

• Pending approval of location by the Transportation Engineer. 
• If Adams Road is widened, the Subdivision Sign will be A) removed at the cost of 

the petitioner; or B) Subject to Building code Board of Appeals Review. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATIONS CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:55 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     DRAFT MINUTES                           October 14, 2008  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

Minutes for Tuesday, October 14, 2008 
 
 

I. Call to Order 7:06 pm 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

  Present Michelle Haight 
    Veena Rao 
    Kelly Jones 
       Mayada Fakhouri 
    Grigore Buia 
    Aries Tao, Student Representative 
    Lily Huang, Student Representative 
    Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
     
  Absent John Witt 
    Karen Yelder  
    Cathy Francois 
    Reuben Ellis 
     
  Guest:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
  

III. Approval of Minutes – September 2, 2008  
 
Motion to approve September 2, 2008 minutes by Michelle Haight, seconded by 
Mayada Fakhouri.  Approved unanimously.  
 

IV. New Business 
a. Introduction of new members: 
- Veena Rao has been a resident since 1996 and is a lawyer with Michigan 
Protection and Advocacy Service. She represents children with disabilities.  She 
came from India at age 13 and has two children, ages 7 and 9, at Troy Union 
Elementary School. 
- Aries Tao, Student Representative, is a senior at Troy High School.  She has 
lived here since fifth grade.  She is involved in Future Problem Solvers and is an 
Environmental Activist.  She attended Chinese School and plays piano. 
 
b. Legal Update:  City Attorney Lori Bluhm shared her goal to provide Open 
Meetings Act guidelines to all City Boards and Committees.  Lori passed out a 
reference book to all members.  The book contains their mission and goals as well 
as information on the Michigan Sunshine Laws/Open Meetings Act & FOIA.  
Michigan adopted “sunshine legislation” as early as 1895.   
 
She noted that “Public Body” applies when there is a quorum of Board Members 
and it can apply to a sub-committee.  This applies to meetings, telephone 
conference calls or emails when you “reply to all.”  The City liaison can send items 
“to all,” but Board members cannot. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     DRAFT MINUTES                           October 14, 2008  

 

 
“Open to the Public” means anyone can attend the meetings, tape or televise the 
proceedings.  Keep the door to the meeting room open, and if you have to close 
the door due to outside noise, place a sign on the door.  Regarding public 
comments, the EIAB can limit speakers based on time limits for the meeting.  All 
meetings must be posted. 
 
Board/Committee minutes must be kept with date, place, time, members present 
and absent.  If a member is absent for long periods of time, the chair can talk to 
them regarding their absence.  Council can replace members. 
 
Every Public Body must comply with the Open Meetings Act because a person 
challenging this could take them to court.  Intentional violations of the OMA are 
misdemeanors. 
 
Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) – Any documents in possession of a 
governmental body are open to FOIA.  Emails, minutes, etc., are public 
documents. 
 
c.  Correspondence/Articles 
 
America’s “whites” will become a minority by 2042, according to the Census 
Bureau – August 15, 2008. 
 
“A Journey of Hope:  Michigan’s Immigrant Experience” is September 27-
November 23, 2008 at Macomb Community College. 
 
- Teaching Tolerance Magazine – An article in the Fall 2008 edition has an article, 
“I Didn’t Know there were Cities in Africa,” that deals with the stereotypes on Africa 
and the Continent.  There is a website:  teachingtolerance.org. 

 
 

V. Old Business 
a. African American Support Group – Karen is attending this meeting tonight and 

will report on the meeting at the November meeting. 
 

b. Troy School District Updates – EIAB is working on opening dialogue with the 
School district.  Kelly put together a proposal and sent it to Tim McAvoy.  The 
proposal is to talk to PTOs/PTAs to encourage diversity within the PTO/PTA 
Boards.  Next month Kelly will report on progress.  Kelly is scheduled to speak 
at the Costello Board next month. 
 

c. Cultural Brochures – Information brochures regarding Arab, Indian, Chinese and 
Slovak immigrants will be highlighted initially.  Regarding stores, specialty 
shops, cultural and religious holidays, there is a concern with accuracy.  
Michelle will send info to Cindy to disseminate to EIAB for input.  Kelly had 
talked to the Sterling Heights liaison for the Diversity Board.  Sterling Heights 
produces informational brochures to help teach tolerance and understanding  
and to celebrate our differences.   

 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD     DRAFT MINUTES                           October 14, 2008  

 

 
d. Diversity Workshop - Padma Kuppa (Troy Interfaith Group) and Michelle Haight 

(EIAB) to present to all Troy administrators. Cultural Connections is four 
workshops beginning October 22 at Bharatyia Temple.  “Arab and Indian Voice” 
speaking on their background, cultural traditions, addressing students needs.  In 
December, at Shir Tikvah is “Chinese and Jewish Voice.”  In March 2009, 
African American and Muslim voice is scheduled. 
 
EIAB has done a lot related to diversity, but they feel there is so much more to 
do.  They feel good about the relationship with the EIAB and Troy Schools. 
 
 
Staff Report:  Thanks to EIAB for all of your support for Troy Daze.  The 
weather was a complete disappointment.  Cindy and Kelly sent thank you letters 
to all EthniCity participants.  The subject of Troy Daze EthniCity will be on the 
November agenda to discuss the work involved and if EIAB can handle it in the 
future.  The discussion will include a breakdown of responsibilities/duties 
expected of Board members. 

 
VI. Public Comment – none 

 
VII. Member Comment 

a. “Iqbal” by Francesco D’Adamo was assigned to be read by the entire Baker 
Middle School student body and parents were also encouraged to read it.  The 
school then did projects related to child labor, equality and fair treatment.  
Michelle recommends the book to the EIAB. 

 
b. Kelly received a call from Willie Dechavez regarding the CAPA dinner on 

October 25.  She will represent the EIAB at the dinner.   
 

 
 

VIII. Motion to adjourn 8:20 pm.  
 
 

  Next Meeting Tuesday, November 11, 2008 at 7 pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Jones, EIAB Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIAB Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 14, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Mark Maxwell Wayne Wright 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 

Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-116 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Sanzica and Wright are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Wright  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson suggested to reverse Agenda items #5 and #6. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-117 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. MINUTES – September 22, 2008 Special Joint Meeting (Birmingham Planning 

Board and Troy Planning Commission) and October 7, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 
 
Mr. Miller suggested to postpone approval on the Special Joint Meeting minutes of 
September 22, 2008.  It is preferable to act on the minutes at a future joint meeting 
with the City of Birmingham Planning Board. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-118 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone approval of the September 22, 2008 Special Joint 
Meeting minutes to a future joint meeting with the City of Birmingham Planning 
Board. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-119 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 7, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 
as submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 362) – ABC Warehouse, Auto 

Repair Facility, West Side of John R, North of 14 Mile Road (637 John R), Section 
35, B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and preliminary site plan review, and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the application as submitted. 
 
James Meinershagen of 4657 Heatherbrook, Troy, was present to represent ABC 
Warehouse.  He addressed the truckwell and car stereo equipment installation. 
 
Members Maxwell and Strat posed questions relating to the proposed landscaping. 
 
Ron Kachman, project landscape architect of The Design & Construction Group, 
330 E. Maple Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Kachman addressed the scope of the 
proposed landscape plan. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-120 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 22.30.06 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed ABC Warehouse Auto Repair Facility, located on the west side of John R, 
north of 14 Mile, in Section 35, within the B-3 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

MASTER PLAN 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – 2008 City of Troy Master 
Plan 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the agenda item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

Messrs. Miller and Savidant expressed their enthusiasm in the forward thinking that 
went into the creation of what they believe is a cutting edge document. 
 
Chair Schultz commented on the fairly quick timeframe taken to complete the 
document. 
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates gave an overall review of the 
proposed Master Plan.  He specifically addressed the extensive public input that 
went into the completion of the document. 
 
Chair Schultz advised the audience of the Public Hearing ground rules. 
 
Mr. Hutson explained the intent and function of a Master Plan.  The document 
incorporates the vision of future improvement within the City and is a guideline used 
by the Planning Commission for future land use and community development.  Mr. 
Hutson stated that existing zoning of all property would remain the same and 
approval of the Master Plan would not change zoning classifications. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 

Present to speak were: 
Neil Fletcher of 1120 Jefferson, Troy 
Frank Kilcullen of 1222 W. Wattles, Troy 
Trevor Babi of 4067 Penrose, Troy 
Tom Duff of 1102 Jefferson, Troy 
Tonia Babi of 4067 Penrose, Troy 
Amar Majjhoo of 1084 Jefferson, Troy 
David Donnellon of 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy 

 
Mr. Miller addressed the specific neighborhood node of Crooks and Wattles, and 
read the paragraph in the proposed Master Plan that correlates to that specific 
node.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented positively on the recent development within walking distance 
from his home.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed the need for walkability within the City. 
 
Discussion followed specifically on the wording on page 93 of the proposed Master 
Plan relating to the Crooks and Wattles neighborhood node:  “Industrial uses and 
single-family residential will not be permitted in the Neighborhood Nodes.” 
 
Mr. Branigan explained how the Master Plan is created with layers and addressed 
the general character of the Master Plan.  He assured that nothing in the Plan would 
prohibit property to be used as it is currently zoned. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Hutson addressed the flyer distributed to residents living in the Crooks and 
Wattles area with a warning that the intersection would become commercial with the 
adoption of the Master Plan.  He asked the author of the flyer to step forward and 
express publicly his/her concerns. 
 
No one stepped forward. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the paragraph in question could be modified or if the words 
“single-family residential” could be omitted without implication. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates said it would do no harm to take 
out the “single-family residential” wording.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed his vision of a neighborhood node. 
 
Mr. Tagle encouraged residents to read the entire document so they can envision 
the big picture. 
 
Chair Schultz agreed, and stated that the Master Plan is available on the City’s 
website. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-121 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Municipal Planning Enabling Act, PA 33 of 2008, provides that a 
municipal planning commission shall make and approve a Master Plan for the 
physical development of the community; and   
 

WHEREAS, A Master Plan is a long-range, broad policy document used to guide 
decision-making related to land use and community development; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that it would be in the public 
interest to adopt a new Master Plan for land use; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission notified each municipality contiguous to the 
City, the County planning commission, each public utility company and railroad 
company owning or operating a public utility or railroad within the City, for purposes 
of notification, of its intent to adopt a new Master Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, Relying upon public input, the City’s Planning Commission, Planning 
Department staff, and the City’s Planning consultant developed the proposed City of 
Troy 2008 Master Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission encouraged public participation during the 
planning process including hosting a Master Plan Workshop on June 21, 2007 and 
a Master Plan Open House on February 26, 2008; and 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

WHEREAS, The proposed City of Troy 2008 Master Plan was submitted to City 
Council, which authorized distribution of the proposed plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed City of Troy 2008 Master Plan was distributed to each 
municipality contiguous to the City, the County planning Commission, each public 
utility company and railroad company owning or operating a public utility or railroad 
within the City, for purposes of notification, for review and comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission received comment in reference to the 
proposed Master Plan from several of these entities; and 
 
WHEREAS, On September 9, 2008 the Oakland County Coordinating Zoning 
Committee voted to endorse the proposed City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, finding 
that the proposed Plan is not inconsistent with the Plan of any surrounding 
communities; and  
 
WHEREAS, On October 14, 2008, after proper public notice, the Planning 
Commission held a public hearing on the proposed Master Plan, during which 
members of the public were given the opportunity to comment on the proposed 
Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that the draft City of Troy 
2008 Master Plan represents the long-range vision of the City of Troy. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Troy Planning Commission hereby 
approves and adopts the City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, “September 30, 2008 Draft 
for Distribution”, as per the requirements of the Municipal Planning Enabling Act, PA 
33 of 2008, with the following modification: 
 

On page 93, in the top right paragraph, the statement “and single-family 
residential” shall be removed. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Big Beaver Corridor Study shall be considered 
an integrated component of this Master Plan, and is also adopted as part of the 
Master Plan adoption process. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That within the next five years, the Planning 
Commission shall review the City of Troy 2008 Master Plan and determine whether 
or not to commence the procedure to amend the Plan or adopt a new Plan. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

7 
 

Mr. Carlisle expressed his appreciation to the Planning Commission and Planning 
staff for the opportunity to work on the Master Plan.  He said there are plenty of 
congratulations to spread around. 
 
Chair Schultz shared the positive reaction received from fellow planning 
professionals and planning commissioners when the Master Plan was presented at 
the MAP conference. 
 
Mr. Miller informed those present in the audience that they can contact the Planning 
Department for digital copies of the Master Plan or with any questions they might 
have. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There were positive comments around the table relating to the newly adopted 
Master Plan.   
 
Mr. Miller addressed the following: 

 October 15, 2008 Downtown Development Authority (DDA) meeting. 

 October 29, 2008 Special Joint Meeting with the City of Birmingham Planning 
Board.  

 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:03 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\10-14-08 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 14, 2008, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Philip Sanzica 
Mark Maxwell Wayne Wright 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck 
 

Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-116 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Sanzica and Wright are excused from attendance at 
this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent:  Sanzica, Wright  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Hutson suggested to reverse Agenda items #5 and #6. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-117 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

2 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. MINUTES – September 22, 2008 Special Joint Meeting (Birmingham Planning 

Board and Troy Planning Commission) and October 7, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 
 
Mr. Miller suggested to postpone approval on the Special Joint Meeting minutes of 
September 22, 2008.  It is preferable to act on the minutes at a future joint meeting 
with the City of Birmingham Planning Board. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-118 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone approval of the September 22, 2008 Special Joint 
Meeting minutes to a future joint meeting with the City of Birmingham Planning 
Board. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-119 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 7, 2008 Special/Study Meeting 
as submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

3 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 362) – ABC Warehouse, Auto 

Repair Facility, West Side of John R, North of 14 Mile Road (637 John R), Section 
35, B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and preliminary site plan review, and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the application as submitted. 
 
James Meinershagen of 4657 Heatherbrook, Troy, was present to represent ABC 
Warehouse.  He addressed the truckwell and car stereo equipment installation. 
 
Members Maxwell and Strat posed questions relating to the proposed landscaping. 
 
Ron Kachman, project landscape architect of The Design & Construction Group, 
330 E. Maple Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Kachman addressed the scope of the 
proposed landscape plan. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-120 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 22.30.06 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed ABC Warehouse Auto Repair Facility, located on the west side of John R, 
north of 14 Mile, in Section 35, within the B-3 zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

MASTER PLAN 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN – 2008 City of Troy Master 
Plan 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the agenda item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

4 
 

Messrs. Miller and Savidant expressed their enthusiasm in the forward thinking that 
went into the creation of what they believe is a cutting edge document. 
 
Chair Schultz commented on the fairly quick timeframe taken to complete the 
document. 
 
Zak Branigan of Carlisle/Wortman Associates gave an overall review of the 
proposed Master Plan.  He specifically addressed the extensive public input that 
went into the completion of the document. 
 
Chair Schultz advised the audience of the Public Hearing ground rules. 
 
Mr. Hutson explained the intent and function of a Master Plan.  The document 
incorporates the vision of future improvement within the City and is a guideline used 
by the Planning Commission for future land use and community development.  Mr. 
Hutson stated that existing zoning of all property would remain the same and 
approval of the Master Plan would not change zoning classifications. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 

Present to speak were: 
Neil Fletcher of 1120 Jefferson, Troy 
Frank Kilcullen of 1222 W. Wattles, Troy 
Trevor Babi of 4067 Penrose, Troy 
Tom Duff of 1102 Jefferson, Troy 
Tonia Babi of 4067 Penrose, Troy 
Amar Majjhoo of 1084 Jefferson, Troy 
David Donnellon of 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy 

 
Mr. Miller addressed the specific neighborhood node of Crooks and Wattles, and 
read the paragraph in the proposed Master Plan that correlates to that specific 
node.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented positively on the recent development within walking distance 
from his home.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed the need for walkability within the City. 
 
Discussion followed specifically on the wording on page 93 of the proposed Master 
Plan relating to the Crooks and Wattles neighborhood node:  “Industrial uses and 
single-family residential will not be permitted in the Neighborhood Nodes.” 
 
Mr. Branigan explained how the Master Plan is created with layers and addressed 
the general character of the Master Plan.  He assured that nothing in the Plan would 
prohibit property to be used as it is currently zoned. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

5 
 

Mr. Hutson addressed the flyer distributed to residents living in the Crooks and 
Wattles area with a warning that the intersection would become commercial with the 
adoption of the Master Plan.  He asked the author of the flyer to step forward and 
express publicly his/her concerns. 
 
No one stepped forward. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the paragraph in question could be modified or if the words 
“single-family residential” could be omitted without implication. 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates said it would do no harm to take 
out the “single-family residential” wording.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed his vision of a neighborhood node. 
 
Mr. Tagle encouraged residents to read the entire document so they can envision 
the big picture. 
 
Chair Schultz agreed, and stated that the Master Plan is available on the City’s 
website. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-121 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The Municipal Planning Enabling Act, PA 33 of 2008, provides that a 
municipal planning commission shall make and approve a Master Plan for the 
physical development of the community; and   
 

WHEREAS, A Master Plan is a long-range, broad policy document used to guide 
decision-making related to land use and community development; and,  
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that it would be in the public 
interest to adopt a new Master Plan for land use; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission notified each municipality contiguous to the 
City, the County planning commission, each public utility company and railroad 
company owning or operating a public utility or railroad within the City, for purposes 
of notification, of its intent to adopt a new Master Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, Relying upon public input, the City’s Planning Commission, Planning 
Department staff, and the City’s Planning consultant developed the proposed City of 
Troy 2008 Master Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission encouraged public participation during the 
planning process including hosting a Master Plan Workshop on June 21, 2007 and 
a Master Plan Open House on February 26, 2008; and 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 14, 2008 
  

 
 

6 
 

WHEREAS, The proposed City of Troy 2008 Master Plan was submitted to City 
Council, which authorized distribution of the proposed plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed City of Troy 2008 Master Plan was distributed to each 
municipality contiguous to the City, the County planning Commission, each public 
utility company and railroad company owning or operating a public utility or railroad 
within the City, for purposes of notification, for review and comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission received comment in reference to the 
proposed Master Plan from several of these entities; and 
 
WHEREAS, On September 9, 2008 the Oakland County Coordinating Zoning 
Committee voted to endorse the proposed City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, finding 
that the proposed Plan is not inconsistent with the Plan of any surrounding 
communities; and  
 
WHEREAS, On October 14, 2008, after proper public notice, the Planning 
Commission held a public hearing on the proposed Master Plan, during which 
members of the public were given the opportunity to comment on the proposed 
Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission has determined that the draft City of Troy 
2008 Master Plan represents the long-range vision of the City of Troy. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The City of Troy Planning Commission hereby 
approves and adopts the City of Troy 2008 Master Plan, “September 30, 2008 Draft 
for Distribution”, as per the requirements of the Municipal Planning Enabling Act, PA 
33 of 2008, with the following modification: 
 

On page 93, in the top right paragraph, the statement “and single-family 
residential” shall be removed. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Big Beaver Corridor Study shall be considered 
an integrated component of this Master Plan, and is also adopted as part of the 
Master Plan adoption process. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That within the next five years, the Planning 
Commission shall review the City of Troy 2008 Master Plan and determine whether 
or not to commence the procedure to amend the Plan or adopt a new Plan. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 





TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER !6, 2008 

CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES  
Thursday, October 16, 2008 – 7 p.m. 
Conference Room C – Troy City Hall 

 
I.     Call to Order – 7:00 pm 
 
II.   Roll Call 

           Present: 
           Penny Marinos 
  Kent Voigt 
  Brian Wattles 
  Padma Kuppa 
  Tom Belian 
  Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
  Nancy Chin, Student 
  Chi Song, Student 
   
  Absent:  
  Lisa Martinico 
  Mark Gunn 
 
  Guest: Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
III. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting of April 17, 2008 

Motion by Tom Belian to approve the April 17, 2008 minutes, seconded by 
Brian Wattles.  Approved unanimously. 

 
   
IV.  Intro of New Members 

 
Padma Kuppa – a 10-year Troy resident with two children at Baker and 
Costello. Padma has been involved in many community organizations and 
City Boards. 

 
V.  Correspondence: 

 
      Comcast Begins Bandwidth Limits Today, Free Press, 10/1/08 
      According to an email from WOW to a member - WOW doubled  
      bandwidth for customers at no additional cost 
 
     Comcast’s Challenge, Time Magazine, 10/9/08 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER !6, 2008 

 
VI.  New Business 
 

a. The Future of the Cable Advisory Committee -  
Kent and Brian had a discussion on the cable industry related to all the 
changes over the past six years. Cable Advisory Committee was formed in 
1982 which was a good idea at that time since there were so many 
questions about technology, cable infrastructure needs, potential disruption 
to public and private city operations, possible costs to the City to oversee 
this new technology and financial and practical implications for citizens. 
 
The City Council was kept up to date on issues through CAC and City 
Liaison.  A few years ago, with the concerted effort by AT&T and existing 
cable companies, they succeeded in having franchise provisions removed 
from local municipal control and placed in the hands of the MPSC. It 
absolved cable operators from having to negotiate individual franchises 
with local government units. State and local agencies no longer have the 
ability to control the nature and scope of cable services. Additionally Cable 
television operators, building on new technologies, now offer services such 
as phone and Internet that are not covered in existing cable franchise 
agreements.  
  
Brian and Kent asked if there is a reason for this committee to exist in light 
of these issues. Open for discussion, what is the future of the Cable 
Advisory Committee? 
 
City Attorney Lori Bluhm, has been visiting boards and committees to 
inform them on Sunshine Laws, Open Meetings Act, and FOIA. Lori did 
research on the formation of the CATV Advisory Committee. Committee 
formed by a resolution on Oct. 18, 1982. If committee feels they are no 
longer needed they can give a recommendation to the City Council. 
Nationally, cable gets a lot of publicity with FCC, preemption, but not many 
issues in Michigan.  Basically providers get what they want and there is not 
a lot we can do about it. Recently Dearborn and Meridian Twp. took cable 
to court. Judge ruled PEG is preempted by law.  
 
On another note, the ICCA preempts the City’s involvement since the 
Consortium oversees the cable companies.  Do we try to look for another 
mechanism to “fight” the cable companies?  As a member for many years, 
our responsibilities have lessened. Pseudo regulatory functions are 
lessened and we know we have no authority Are phone and Internet 
services under City jurisdiction since they were not in initial resolution? 
 
Lori responded that with Internet and phone we have no power, no 
meaningful opposition.  If you want to be an educational component, it’s in 
your purview. But very little or no binding decisions or things you can 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER !6, 2008 

influence, just as Council cannot influence cable companies.  Advisory 
boards can only pass recommendations to Council.  The communities do 
have ICCA, NATOA, and PROTEC to inform, educate, and advise. 
 
Kent – The function we might exert is nil. One role to monitor the cable 
industry and report to Council, ICCA also does this. If we can’t touch the 
telephone piece and Internet is questionable, and those are the future, 
what is our role? As an advisory body, we only make recommendations to 
Council. 
 
Tom – Looking at committees there is a very minimal cost to having these 
committees. How much exposure do we have in the community as a 
committee? We could be outreaching to the community related to cable.  
 
Kent – Historic District Commission and others have a legal role unlike this 
committee. All we can do is make recommendations to Council. We are 
informational. 
 
Kent – What do we want to do? We have not met since April because 
there has not been much to meet about. 
 
Lori – There are boards who only meet on an as needed basis (Act 78, 
EDC, Charter Revision Committee, etc.) 
 
Brian – We could recommend one meeting per year and special meetings 
on an as needed basis. There could be some potential benefits. 
 
Lori – There are no bylaws or rules but you should send your decision to 
Council in case you want to apply for other boards. Continue as a 
committee meeting once a year or more if needed as an informational 
committee.  Members could be assigned to research topics in the field. 
 
Tom – More input provided the better. We meet as needed, take on tasks 
on a voluntary basis. Looking for the evolution of this group.  
 
Kent – Our students will be going forward into this technology. What are 
your views? 
 
Nancy – We have had fewer issues to talk about since she was first 
appointed as a student rep.  
 
Future issues – PEG channels moved to higher channels and increased 
bandwidth. Free reign related to education issues. City has little control 
over cable and the CAC has no control over the City.  CAC can be 
educational/informational and meet quarterly or once a year. 

 



TROY CABLE ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT OCTOBER !6, 2008 

 
Motion made by Brian Wattles, seconded by Padma Kuppa: Given the changes 
to the legal landscape of cable on state, federal and local levels, the role of the 
Cable Advisory Committee has been diminished over the years. Resolved that 
the Cable Advisory Committee meets on an as needed basis for special 
topics/issues or as requested by the Chair. 
 
Motion Approved Unanimously 
 
 
b. Legal Update – Lori Bluhm 
The Cable Advisory Committee is a public body – meetings are open to the 
public. Meetings could include e-mail correspondence and because of this 
members cannot use the reply to all. No deliberation can be held outside of the 
posted meeting location.  Cindy can e-mail the Committee information but do not 
reply to all. This would be a violation of the open meetings act. Meetings have to 
be posted at City Hall and on the web site 18 hours in advance (when building 
open). 

 
VII. Staff Report 
 
Community Media Network (CMN) will hold their 25th Anniversary Open House 
on Thursday, November 13, from 6-9 pm 
  
VIII. Member Comment 
  
Tom has observed that many people fill training sessions at CMN but don’t come 
back to produce programs. Pam Brady, LOWV, asked CMV to help her produce 
a political program turned away and sent to a volunteer. A person from Oakland 
County LOWV was not turned away. All requests should be turned over to 
volunteer community members unless CMN is paid to produce the program. 
CMN is at fault if they don’t get more volunteers involved.  Penny said that 
maybe those volunteers get trained then feel it was not what they wanted. Tom 
asked Jay why the two people were not treated equally.  Kent asked Cindy to 
look into this. 
   
 
IX.  Adjournment  
 
 
Motion to by the Chair to adjourn at 8:45 pm.  Meeting adjourned. 
 

________________________________ 
Kent Voigt, Chairman 
 
________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison  



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   October 22, 2008  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on October 22, 2008 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois.  Jason Lee called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Willa Adamo (Secretary) 

Disha Bora  
Jason Lee (Chair) 
Vikram Prasad  
Sevita Rama 
Shaina Sekhri  
Emily Wang 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Geon Woo Kim, Jennifer Liang, Joseph Niemiec, Neil Shaw 
Rachita Singh, David Wylie 

VISITORS: Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Resolution # TY-2008-10-15 
 
 Moved by   Sekhri 

  Seconded by  Prasad 
   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 24, 2008 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 7 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  6 – Kim, Liang, Niemiec, Shaw, Singh, Wylie   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Report reviewed by council members, no comments.   
 

4.   Visitors    
  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Presented information regarding: 
    City attorney’s office 
    History of Troy Youth Council 
    Open Meetings Act 
    Meeting Rules 
    Sunshine Laws 
    FOIA 
     
5. Teens Taking Action  

No Update 
 
6. Troy Daze 

No Update 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   October 22, 2008  
 

 2

   
7. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provide d Advance Notification  

 
No Motion 

 Resolution # TY-2008-10-16 
  Moved by  Bora   
  Seconded by  Wang 

  
RESOLVED that Liang, Niemiec, Shaw and Singh are excused. 

  Yes:   7  
            No:        0 
  Absent:   6 -  Kim, Liang, Niemiec, Shaw, Singh, Wylie 
 
       
8. Youth Council Comments – None  

 
9. Public Comments  –  None    

 
 

10. Adjournment –   8:10 p.m. 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jason Lee, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: November 19 at 7:00 P.M.  



 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
    Loraine M. Campbell, Museum Manager 
     
SUBJECT:   Troy Historical Museum Annual Report 2007-2008 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In an effort to keep City Council members updated on the many programs and activities offered 

by the Troy Historical Museum, the Library Director and Museum Manager respectfully submit the 
Troy Historical Museum’s Annual Report, for the year 2007-2008.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This recommendation addresses the following Outcome Statements: 

Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 
venues. 
Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world.  

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends that the Troy Historical Museum’s Annual Report for 2007-2008 

be received and filed.  
 
 
CR/THMannualreport2008.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



Troy Museum and Historic Village 
Annual Report 

FY 2007-08 
 
Introduction 
The year began with thoughtful discussion on the comments and suggestions 
highlighted in the Museum Assessment Report prepared by Dr. Charles Watkins, 
an evaluator for the American Association of Museum’s MAP (Museum 
Assessment Program.) During the next twelve months, the staff and volunteers 
worked to improve and expand the quantity and quality of mission-focused 
museum education and enrichment programs.  
 
In partnership with the Troy Historical Society’s Heritage Campaign, staff 
continued to plan for the expansion of the Troy Museum to serve future residents 
in Troy and the region. 
   
Museum Administration 
The following staffing changes and additions occurred during FY2007-08: 
 
Date Change 

September 2007  Virginia Czerwinski was hired to fill the position left vacant by 
Cindianne Johnson. 
 

June 2008 
 

Kathrin Schwietale Jaeger resigned to return to Germany. 
Laura Bunting assumed Kathrin’s duties as  the Archive 
Technician. 

 
The Troy Museum & Historic Village utilized three undergraduate interns during 
the year. The following is a description of the interns and their projects: 
 

Term Intern  School Project 

Winter 
2007  

Cathryn 
Eccleston 

WSU Scanned photos in the Troy Fire 
Department Collection. Some of 
these images will be used to illustrate 
a book on the history of the 
department. 
 

Winter 
2007 
 

Victoria Baldwin CMU Cleaned and catalogued artifacts 
collected from the preliminary 
archeological dig at the original site 
of the Parsonage (Square Lake and 
Livernois) 
 

Summer 
2008 

Sarah Hardman OU Served as a public program assistant 
for daily activities and events 



 
Exhibits 
Due to increased space constraints and poor accessibility, the upper level gallery 
was transformed into work stations and a conference room for staff, interns and 
volunteers. Greater effort was made to rotate temporary exhibits in the lower 
level lobby and to use the frosted glass panels in the lobby for poster-style 
interpretation. 
 
The interior furnishings of the print shop were improved to create a more 
authentic and functional site. The collections staff also began interior restorations 
in the General Store. 
 
Education Programs 
There was no significant change in school group numbers and the total number 
of groups served (245) remained the same. This reflects continued use of 98% of 
available field trip slots. However the percentage of Troy School District 
participation increased 5% and revenues increased 5% to a high of $42,870. In 
2008/09, the museum will be open on Mondays, which will add 38 field trip days 
to the museum calendar. 
 
Once again, Troy Public Schools purchased copies of Our Community, a history 
of Troy and Troy Township for children.  This book is used as a curriculum 
supplement for second graders. 
 
In 2007 the interpretive staff piloted a new field day option. “Life 100 Years Ago” 
is taught in the Parsonage. Children explore the lifestyle of a turn-of-the-century 
farming family. 
 
School group visitation statistics are attached. 
 
Public Programs 
The Troy Historical Society continued to support all weekend and evening 
enrichment programs, lectures and day trips. A number of new programs, 
including monthly tours of the three homes in the village, were introduced and 
popular outreach programs like the pre-school story hour were continued. 
 
The staff also evaluated the time and funds expended on major events. 
Attendance on these days is always weather dependant.  However, there are 
many other nice days when no specific activities or programs have been 
scheduled. To provide greater customer service and increase casual walk-in 
visitation, the staff promoted simple, low-cost, daily activities, demonstrations, 
tours and programs during the summer of 2007and advertised that there is 
something happening at the museum everyday. Daily attendance increased and 
offset poor attendance at three special events that were held on days when the 
weather was inclement.  
 



Total public and school group attendance at the Museum was 25,016. Details 
regarding school group and public attendance are attached. 
 
Archive and Collections    
See the attached Collections Report. 
 
Projects and Staff Assignments: 
 
Editorial and Publications Team 
Retired members of the Troy Fire Department developed a proposal to compile a 
book on the history or their volunteer organization. The group offered to gather 
old photos and information; raise funds to print the book; and donate all proceeds 
from sales of the publication to the Troy Heritage Campaign. They asked that the 
museum staff assist with writing and layout.  The text will be finalized in the fall of 
2008 and the group anticipates that the book will be printed by spring 2009. 
  
 WEB Team 
Debra Newby was appointed to the Web Support Team coordinated by the IT 
Department. The museum continues to improve and expand its WEB access. 
 
Grants 
The Michigan Council for the Humanities awarded $1,925 to subsidize 
performer’s fees for the summer 2007 concert series entitled “There’s Music in 
the Air.” Ameriprise Financial contributed $3,000 of additional corporate support. 
 
Troy Historical Society 
The Historical Society approved a resolution to operate the Museum Gift Shop as 
a Standing Committee that will report to the Board of Trustees Quarterly. 

Revenues from Gift Shop Sales will be reinvested in new merchandise, or 
transferred to either museum Public Programs, the heritage Campaign or the 
Endowment Fund. 
 

Troy Heritage Campaign 
The Campaign completed the following significant steps in FY 2007/08: 

 Hopkins Burns Design Studios of Ann Arbor were retained to develop the 
site plan and provide architectural services for the proposed expansion. 
 

 Two Public Classrooms were held with Hopkins Burns to include members 
of the public in the site planning process. 
 

 The Heritage Campaign was designated the recipient of all proceeds from 
the Troy Traffic jam, a new, larger car show organized by businesses in 
the Big Beaver Corridor. The first show will be held on August 10, 2008. 
 



 The Troy Historical Society is partnering with the Troy Coalition Against 
Drug and Alcohol Abuse in Art Unhinged, a fundraiser that will auction art 
created from old doors salvaged from the Kmart Headquarters building. 

 
Volunteers: 
The Troy Historical Society, Troy Garden Club, Evening Primrose Garden Club, 
Troy High School students in Project LEAD and the National Honor Society, Boy 
Scouts in Troop 1701 and member of the Museum Guild of Volunteers 
contributed at total of 2,500 hours of service to the museum. Assistance was 
provided for the four main public events; to prepare activities materials for school 
groups; and to provide assistance in research, clerical duties, garden 
maintenance, and exhibits. Finally the Troy heritage Campaign volunteers 
continued their efforts to raise funds for the museum expansion. 
 
Physical Maintenance and Buildings 
The following capital improvements were made in compliance with the priorities 
outlined in the Physical Maintenance and Conservation Plan.  
 
Main Museum Building 

None 
 
Log Cabin 

None 
 
Caswell 

The UV filters installed last year were shown to be ineffective in reducing 
the total infiltration of UV light. Permanent filters were not installed. 
 

Poppleton School 
 None 
 
General Store 

The bid to strip and stain the building was released. The contract will be 
awarded in August 2008. 

 
Print Shop 
            None 
  
Wagon Shop 

The deteriorated foundation members and siding were replaced or 
repaired. The deteriorated windows were restored. The interior of the 
building was cleaned and reorganized to improve work space and visitor 
access. 
  
Draft specifications to remove old lead paint on the exterior and stain the 
building were developed. 



 
Troy Hall 
           None 
 
Gazebo 

None 
 

Parsonage 
A wainscoting of Lincrustra wall board was added to the front parlor of the 
house. 
 

Church 
 A damaged underground electrical conduit was repaired to stop water 
 from leaking into the L Box in the basement. Damaged wiring was 
 repaired and switched from three-phase to one-phase. 
Village: 

Signs for the ABC Garden were made and installed by members of the 
Troy Garden Club. Volunteers from Holiday Inn planted over 50 trees, 
shrubs and perennials in different landscape beds. 
 

 



Comparison of Education Program 
FY 20006/07 and FY 2007/08 

 
Date # Prgms. # Attnd Troy Groups  # Staff Prg Fee 

Sep 2006 7 303 3 13 1,171.50 

Oct 2006 31 1407 0 47 $5,044.00 

Nov 2006 28 1,182 6 44 $4,404.00 

Dec 2006 11 718 5 27 $3,033.00 

Jan 2007 12 905 1 36 $4,175.00 

Feb 2007 11 806 1 27 $3,622.00 

Mar 2007 26 1590 3 58 $6,825.00 

Apr 2007 41 1236 31 49 $3,650.00 

May 2007 68 2176 47 76 $6,130.00 

Jun 2007 10 661 1 14 $2,754.00 

  Total 245 10,984 98 391 $40,808.50 

Sep 2007 5 325 0 7 $1,258.00 

Oct 2007 31 1,553 8 51 $5,347.00 

Nov 2007 21 997 2 38 $4,244.00 

Dec 2007 13 734 5 29 $3,645.00 

Jan 2008 17 1258 2 45 $5,460.00 

Feb 2008 12 759 0 35 $3,643.00 

Mar 2008 12 956 2 35 $4,063.00 

Apr 2008 48 1878 25 62 $6,392.00 

May 2008 80 2432 54 57 $6,769.00 

Jun 2008 6 443 6 15 $2,049.00 

  Total 245 11,035 103 373 $42,870.00 

 
Number of field trips provided:   No change 
 
Number of students and chaperones served Within 1% of 2006/07 
 
Number of Troy groups    +5% 
 
Number of staff used for programs  -5% 
 
Revenue     +5%



Comparison of Public Visitation 
FY 2006/07 and FY 2007/08 

 
Date Walk-In #Attending 

Programs 
Meetings/ 

Facilities Rentals 
Rentals Fees Total Visitors 

Jul 2006 702 2,003 4 $350.00 2,705 

Aug 2006 878 1,033 8 $1,050.00 1,911 

Sep 2006 425 664 12 $700.00 1,089 

Oct 2006 511 881 11 $700.00 1,392 

Nov 2006 586 664 10 $700.00 1,250 

Dec 2006 425 1,132 6 $350.00 1,551 

Jan 2007 377 292 6 $25.00 669 

Feb 2007 235 140 4 0 375 

Mar 2007 329 178 7 0 507 

Apr 2007 491 212 7 $350.00 703 

May 2007 494 327 10 $400.00 821 

Jun 2007 742 147 16  889 

Total 6,195 7,673 101 $4,625.00 13,862 

Jul 2007 971 1,532 6 $950.00 2,503 

Aug 2007 898 574 9 $975.00 1,472 

Sep 2007 363 977 5 $750.00 1,340 

Oct 2007 701 945 9 $350.00 1,646 

Nov 2007 422 315 9 $800.00 737 

Dec 2007 332 862 2 0 1,194 

Jan 2008 341 375 10 $350.00 716 

Feb 2008 374 274 5 0 648 

Mar 2008 348 374 5 $350.00 722 

Apr 2008 425 418 15 $250.00 843 

May 2008 402 589 15 $350.00 991 

Jun 2008 537 632 16 $1,300.00 1149 

Total 6,114 7,867 90 $6,425.00 13,981 

 

Comparisons 2006 and 2007: 

 

Walk-in attendance: -1%   Total Attendance: within 1% of 2006/07 

 

Program attendance: +2%   Facilities Rental Income: +39%



8 

Public Events FY 2006/07 

Event Date Attendance 

Motoring Memories Car Show July 2006 570 

Harvest Home Festival Sept 2006 271 

Trick or Treating on the Green Oct 2006 400 

Hanging of the Greens Dec 2006 908 

Total  2,149 

 

Public Events FY 2007/08 

Event Date Attendance 

Motoring Memories Car Show July 2007 346 

Fall Farm Festival Sept 2007 640 

Trick or Treating on the Green  Oct 2007 580 

Hanging of the Greens Dec 2007 750 

Total  2,316 

 

Comparative Attendance Statistics  

Total FY 2006-07 FY 2007-08 Change 

School Group attendance 10,984 11,035 <1% 

Walk-in attendance  6,195 6,114 -1% 

Program attendance  7,673 7,867 +2% 

Public Events attendance 2,149 2,316 +7.7% 

Total Public attendance 13,862 13,981 <1% 

Total Museum visitation                
(Schools + public) 

24,846 25,016 

 

-<1% 

Meetings and facilities rentals  101 90 -10.9% 

Revenue from Education Programs $40,808.50 $42,870.00 5% 

Revenues from facilities rentals  $4,625 $6,425 +39% 

Total revenues (schools + facilities) $45,433 $49,295 +8.5% 

 



9 

Museum Collections Report: 

Fiscal Year 2007-2008 

Notable Activities, Projects & Events: 

 General Store – reorganization of exhibit space; purchase of reproduction 

artifacts; inventory and conservation of artifacts 

 Print Shop – volunteer (Glen Marshall) has been working in the shop on a regular 

basis; volunteer work includes keeping usable presses and equipment in good 

order and providing interaction with the public 

 Wagon Shop – prepared shop for repairs by moving equipment and providing 

access to all portions; monitored and photographed structural repairs by 

contractor; cleaned and reorganized shop prior to reopening 

 Parsonage – prepared front room for installation of Lincrusta by a contractor; 

monitored Lincrusta installation; refurnished room and reopened building 

 Uninstalled main exhibit: “Troy 50th Anniversary”; exhibit gallery now used as 

work space 

 Series of mini-exhibits in the main hall exhibit case and Pioneer Room: 

“Toys”;”Got Milk?”; “Candles”; “Lighting” 

 Provided artifacts and installation assistance for offsite 2-day exhibit of museum 

quilts at the Cameo Quilters quilt show 

 Collections and Village tour and presentation to Oakland University archaeology 

students 

 Collections and Village tour and presentation to Citizens Academy 

 Continued work on scanning Troy Fire Department photos and documents for 

Troy Fire Department book 

 Provided support and assistance to educational programs and other museum 

staff and projects as needed 

 Provided Photoshop support for a variety of general Troy museum publications 

 Provided support to special events as needed 

 Intern from CMU (Vicki Baldwin) cleaned and processed 380 artifacts from the 

Church & Parsonage archaeological project into the PastPerfect database during 

a 4.5 month internship 



10 

 Intern from Wayne State (Cathryn Eccleston) scanned 197 Troy Fire Department 

images during a 40-hour internship 

 Archive Assistant Kathrin Schwietale-Jäger resigned her position to return to 

Germany 

 Laura Bunting began working as Archive Assistant 

 

Collection & Archive Holdings: 

Accession records: 3542 (vs. 4628 for 2006-2007) – Decrease of 1086 items 

Each donation is identified by a unique Accession Number regardless of the number of 

items in the donation. The number of accession records dropped substantially this year 

as expected. The number may continue to slightly decline over the next 2-3 years 

before stabilizing, as old SNAP records are reconciled with PastPerfect and the 

accession database streamlined. 

 

Collection records: 8658 (vs. 7610 for 2006-2007) – Increase of 1048 items 

Each item in the collection receives a unique Object ID Number as its permanent 

tracking number. Although Object ID Numbers usually represent a single piece, 

numbering conventions sometimes require multiple items receive the same number 

(e.g., a document collection would receive a single Object ID Number and organized 

with a folder finding guide rather than each page being numbered). Due to Object ID 

numbering conventions the number of collection records provides a general 

representation of the Collection and is not a completely accurate count of the number of 

actual pieces in the Museum Collection. However, tracking collections by number and 

type is a useful organizational tool and these are the numbers generally given when 

asked to define the Collection by size and composition. PastPerfect divides the 

collection records into 4 linked databases. Overall the record numbers in each group 

are expected to grow annually and represent actual items in the Collection. Over the 

next 2-3 years, as PastPerfect data continues to be reconciled and streamlined, items 

are moved between the 4 databases. Therefore, the record numbers in each group may 

change up or down and may not be fully indicative of actual material added to the 

Collection: 

 Archive records: 1362 (vs. 1267 for 2006-2007) – Increase of 95 items 



11 

 Library records: 367 (vs. 347 for 2006-2007) – Increase of 20 items 

 Object records: 5314 (vs. 4612 for 2006-2007) – Increase of 702 items 

 Photo records:  1615 (vs. 1384 for 2006-2007) – Increase of 231  

items 

 Total Records: 8658 (vs. 7610 for 2006-2007) – Increase of 1048 items 

 

42 individuals, families or organizations donated accessionable artifacts to the museum 

during fiscal year 2007-2008 (vs. 27 during fiscal year 2006-2007): 

 8 single item donations 

 34 multiple item donations 

 

Donations of notable Troy importance during fiscal year 2007-2008 included: 

 Collection of material from the estate (Shirley A. Hersey) of the last direct 

descendent of Marvin Castle Beach; items include photo album (c.1860s-1890s), 

doll c.1870, coverlet c.1850, silver spoons, furniture, documents, and misc 

material; Brooks family material also included with donation due to donor’s 

Brooks family descent as well. 

 2 chairs from Civil War veteran Clark Harris (directly from the Harris family) 

 Big Beaver Airport stationery (c.1950s-1980s) 

 1855 map of southern Michigan 

 Barnard and Niles family artifacts including George Niles’ 1838 Michigan State 

Militia certificate, flail from Johnson Niles, WW II ration book, and misc 

documents and ephemera 

 1951 Troy Township Building Code Booklet 

 

Artifact purchases for the Collection during fiscal year 2007-2008: 

 Reproduction food cans for General Store Exhibit ($986.00) 

 Suitcase for program use ($10.00) 

 



12 

Donations during fiscal year 2007-2008 increased the volume of stored materials by the 

following: 

 Document & photo storage: ~8 linear feet (on 16” deep shelves) {all material in 

archive} 

 3-Dimensional artifacts: ~125 cu. ft. 

 

21 donations were declined during fiscal year 2007-2008 (vs. 32 in 2006-2007) – 

artifacts did not fit within the collections policy or were otherwise unacceptable due to 

storage limitations or other considerations. Items declined included but were not limited 

to: 

 Books (c.1900s-1990s); 6 sewing machines (c1870s-1900); doll collection 

(c.1970s-1980s);clothing collection (c.1880s-1960s); camera collection; bottle 

collection; newspapers and clippings; 2 beds and a piano. 

 

The following material was transferred to the Troy Nature Center for use in educational 

programs: 2 corn knives, 1 potato planter, 1 draw knife, 1 scythe, and 1 corn planter. All 

material transferred was found in the Collection, but none of the material has any known 

donation form or Object ID # associated with it. All items are believed to have been 

dropped anonymously at the museum between 1996 and 1999. The museum Collection 

has multiple examples of each of the items transferred to the Nature Center. 

 

No part of the Troy Museum Collection was de-accessioned during fiscal year 2007-

2008. 

 

Research Activities & Collections Use: 

 9 unique user Archive and Collections specific research & reproduction requests 

(requests may include multiple visits): 

 2 – General public 

 0 – Press/media/commercial 

 7 – City of Troy (6 Community Affairs; 1 Building Inspection) 

 Research request: Troy streets & maps 1960 [general public] 

 Research request: Boulan Park area maps pre-1963 [general public] 



13 

 Research request: Council Packets c.1970s [City of Troy Building Inspection] 

 Photo request: 6 requests [City of Troy Community Affairs] 

 Continuous internal research projects for programs and exhibits by staff, 

volunteers, and interns 

 Occasional behind the scenes tours for special groups and other guests 

 Resource Room research files and books continue to see heavy use by walk-in 

visitors and staff, but actual numbers are not tracked due to the utilitarian nature 

of the Resource Room. 

 

Outgoing Loans: 

 Agricultural tools for educational program [Nature Center] 

 13 Quilts and 4 dress forms for an offsite exhibit at a Troy quilt show [Cameo 

Quilters] 

 

Primary goals for fiscal year 2008-2009: 

 Complete Collections Operating Manual and update forms 

 Continue PastPerfect corrections and streamlining 

 Continue inventory and stabilization of the general collection 

 Continue transfer of artifacts from General Store basement so waterproofing 

repairs can be made 

 Update Virtual Exhibit contents to reflect new donations 

 



 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
    Cathleen A. Russ, Library Director 
     
SUBJECT:   Troy Public Library Annual Report 2007-2008 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In an effort to keep City Council members updated on the many collections, programs and 

services offered by the Troy Public Library, the Library Director respectfully submits this Troy 
Public Library Annual Report, for the year 2007-2008.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This recommendation addresses the following Outcome Statements: 

Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 
venues. 
Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world.  

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends that the Troy Public Library’s Annual Report for 2007-2008 be 

received and filed.  
 
 
 
CR/annualreport2008.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



1 

Troy Public Library  
Annual Report 

FY 2007-08 
 
Introduction 
The fiscal year that began July 1, 2007, could be characterized as a year of new 
beginnings, of re-evaluation of “the way we’ve always done things,” as well as a 
year that changes in several areas were implemented.  
 
Library Staffing and Administration 
Cathleen Russ replaced Brian Stoutenburg as Library Director in June 2007. 
Changes to TPL’s staffing structure included eliminating the two Assistant 
Director positions, and implementing Department Heads in all of the library’s 
service areas, resulting in a savings of approximately $20,000. This change was 
made in order to increase accountability of, and provide structure for, library staff, 
as well as distributing responsibility for creating new programs and services.  
 
Additional staff changes were also made, including consolidating open Library 
Assistant positions into Library Aide positions, resulting in cost savings as well as 
increased efficiency. The number of library staff positions decreased from 16 full-
time positions to15; the number of part-time positions decreased from 99 to 92, 
for a total of 107 staff members.  
 
Two undergraduate students from Oakland Community College’s Library 
Technology program interned at TPL this year. These interns assisted in all 
departments of the library for 12-week periods, and wrote favorable reports about 
their experiences at TPL. Many students in library science programs at the 
University of Michigan and Wayne State University chose TPL as the subject of 
their “Observation of a Busy Public Library” assignment.   
 
Needs Assessment/Feasibility Study 
The major project for the year was the completion of the Needs 
Assessment/Feasibility study, which was undertaken to study the need for a new 
or renovated library facility. A Request for Proposals was sent out in late August 
to solicit bids for this study. Fanning/Howey Associates, Inc, was the company 
selected to perform the study. Members of Fanning/Howey staff, led by principal 
architect Jim Mumby, studied the physical building, usage statistics, and 
comments from patrons, as well as conducted focus groups and interviews with 
library staff, city staff, and library patrons. The final report was presented to the 
City Council in early February. The study recommended that the Troy Public 
Library be expanded, or a new library constructed, with space needs of 115,000 
square feet. Estimated cost to build or renovate on this scale was approximately 
$37 million. Several Community Forums were held on this topic. The Friends of 
the Library funded a community survey to gauge the level of support for this 
project. Survey results indicated that approximately one-third of the Troy 
community would support the sale of bonds needed to fund this project. Based 
on the survey results and on the current economic climate, the decision was 
made not to proceed further with the project at the present time.  



2 

 
Collections 
The Special Needs Collection was introduced in October 2007, with a Grand 
Opening/Open House. This collection is the first of its kind in any public library in 
Michigan, and was initiated at the request of the Friends of the Troy Public 
Library. The original collection of 166 books, games, interactive toys, DVDs and 
tapes, and 2 magazine subscriptions, was funded with seed money donated by 
the Friends. This collection has proved very popular with the library’s patrons, 
and is considered a success. At least four other libraries in Michigan have 
inquired about this collection with a view to starting a similar collection in their 
libraries, which is a significant compliment.  
 
Another project that took place was the weeding and eventual elimination of the 
VHS (video) collection. Videos are no longer being produced and the items in the 
existing collections were taking up a great deal of needed space. Additionally, 
most items in this collection had not circulated in over three years.  
 
The print reference collection was analyzed and items that were duplicated by 
the library’s electronic references were eliminated, in another measure of cost- 
and space savings. 
 

Downloadable movies (MyLibraryDV) and books in an MP3 format (Playaways) 
were introduced and are growing in usage.   
 

Services 
Self service holds for patrons debuted to great acclaim. Patrons found it easy to 
retrieve their own holds and the Circulation Department made use of the extra 
space in their work area due to this change. In tandem with self service holds, 
the library also implemented self-checkout stations in all public service areas of 
the library. Self-checkout transactions currently account for 4% of all circulation.  
 

Exhibits 
The Troy Public Library’s galleries are popular places for local artists to display 
their work. Over the last year, 39 exhibits were held, displaying 1,057 pieces of 
art, photography, or other types of artifacts.  
 
Programs 
The library offers programs on a variety of topics, to inform, entertain, educate 
and enrich the community. Topics for adults range from travel to poetry to 
concerts to explorations of different cultures. Gaming programs for teens were 
introduced this year, as well as college workshops and writing programs. 
Children’s programs included story times, crafts, holiday celebrations and much 
more.  In 2007-2008, 1,178 programs were offered, breaking down as follows: 
 

 482 adult programs offered, 9,523 total attendance 

 39 teen programs offered, 538 total attendance 

 657 programs offered, 17,662 total attendance 
 



3 

In addition, the library offered its popular Summer Reading Program for Adults, 
Children, and Teens. This year, the program extended also to library staff 
members. 144 adults participated in the Adult Summer Reading Program; over 
40 teens participated in the Teen Summer Reading Program; and over 1,100 
children participated in the Children’s Summer Reading Program. The inaugural 
Staff Summer Reading Program attracted 23 library staff members.  
 
 Library and City Websites 
Phillip Kwik was appointed to the Web Support Team coordinated by the IT 
Department, to make recommendations about the city’s website. In addition, a 
committee of representatives from all library departments was formed to redesign 
the library’s website.  
 
Grants 
The Troy Public Library received $2,400 from the ACMP Foundation and $3,000 
from the Target Community Grant Foundation, to fund the 2007 Youth Chamber 
Music Institute. The library was also the recipient of the “We the People” 
Bookshelf award, which consisted of 16 books for children and teens on the 
theme of “Created Equal.” This grant was received from a joint program 
sponsored by the American Library Association and the National Endowment for 
the Humanities.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library  
The Friends of the Library continue to support the Troy Public Library by funding 
the library’s programs. In addition, the Friends fund the annual Summer Reading 
programs, the five book discussion groups, and the very popular Spice of Life 
Humanities Discussion group. 
 

The Friends reached a fundraising milestone this year, when sales from the 
Friends Book Shop totaled over $100,000.  
 
Volunteers 
Over 100 volunteers contributed 13,706 volunteer hours to the Troy Public 
Library and Friends of the Library during this year. A celebration to honor these 
volunteers was held in the library in October.  
 
Partnerships with the Troy Museum and other organizations (I/ACT) 
In an effort to foster a closer partnership between the Troy Public Library and the 
Troy Historical Museum, the library director and museum manager have been 
working on coordinating program offerings and brainstorming ways to cross-
promote the two organizations.  
 
The Image/Arts Council of Troy, a revisioning of the former Troy Arts Council, 
began meeting monthly at the Troy Public Library. The goal of I/ACT is to bring 
public art to the City of Troy. I/ACT will be working with community groups on 
projects that will increase awareness of public art in Troy. The library’s art 
galleries are one of the few places in Troy where public art is exhibited, so the 
library takes an active interest in the work of this new organization.  



4 

 
Physical Maintenance and Buildings 
Renovations to the library’s public and staff restrooms were completed this year.  
In addition, three of the library’s HVAC units were replaced this year, to complete 
the replacement of all rooftop units.  
 
Usage Statistics and Interpretation 
 

TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL 
STATISTICS 

  July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008 
  

    

Total Circulation 1,510,904  
  

# of new Library cards 6,130  
  

Total # of Cardholders 48,414  
  

# of hold placed/filled 157,066  
  

Items in Transit to TPL (Items borrowed) 182,893  
  

Items in Transit from TPL (Items loaned) 173,388  
  

Total # of Items in Collection 316,450  
  

Items added 23,218  
  

Items deleted 16,923  
  

Program attendance 27,723  
  

# of Programs 1,178  
  

Total # of patron visits  673,528  
  

Total # of Web Page Hits 672,464  
  

     
 



5 

The above statistics illustrate the current trend in library usage. While overall 
circulation of materials increased almost 100,000 from last year, the number of 
patron visits to the library decreased. Also, the number of visitors to the library’s 
website is almost equal to the number of people who visited the library in person, 
which demonstrates the popularity of electronic services, and the “do it yourself” 
nature of electronic/Internet service that is becoming more prevalent. The huge 
numbers of holds being placed, as well as the number of items in transit to and 
from the Troy Public Library, also show that patrons are placing their own holds 
online, frequently from their home computers. With a collection of over 300,000 
items, the Troy Public Library has one of the largest collections of libraries its 
size, in southeast Michigan, and the number of holds being placed on these 
items indicate that the collections are serving the needs of the Troy community. 
Program attendance has remained steady, with many great programs offered for 
adults, teens and children.  
 
Conclusion and Goals for 2008-2009 
While the Needs Assessment study indicated that a new library facility would 
enhance and improve the collections, programs and services offered by the Troy 
Public Library, the economic climate is not conducive to such a project at this 
time. Therefore, it is important to make the best use of the space that the library 
currently occupies. To that end, goals for 2008-2009 include: 
 
--Evaluating spatial and collection needs 
 
--Making necessary changes to create usable space 
 
--Eliminating redundancy of resources whenever possible   
 
--Evaluating staffing levels and reassigning responsibilities as needed 
 
The Troy Public Library continues to be a very busy, very popular, and well-used 
community resource. Open 65 hours per week, Sunday-Saturday, the library truly 
offers something for everyone.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box
J-03f



campbellld
Text Box
J-03g



 

 
 
DATE: October 15, 2008 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: City of Troy Master Plan  
 
 
Background: 
 

 On July 7, 2008 City Council approved distribution of the draft City of Troy Master Plan. 
 

 The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on October 14, 2008.  At that 
meeting the Planning Commission adopted the City of Troy Master Plan. 
 

 Hard copies of the Master Plan will be distributed to Council upon printing. 
 

 There are no financial or legal considerations at this time.  In addition, no action is necessary. 
  
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1, 2008 Special Council meeting: 

 
I. Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
 
Prepared by: MFM & PPB 

 
G:\Master Plan\City Council\City Council memo 11 10 08.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting 
Final Minutes September 18, 2008 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Present: Leonette Ciepielowski, Robin Beltramini, George Zielinski, Nancy Piotrowski, Jeanne 
Stine, Ann Comiskey, Charlene Krupitzer, Dale Zygnowicz, Daniella Youhan, Paul Scobie. 
 
Call to order: Leonette called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. All rose for the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  
                         
Minutes:  Nancy moved to approve the minutes of August 21, 2008. Robin B seconded; with one 
correction – Charlene Krupitzer was present at August meeting, so moved.  
 
Treasurer’s Report: George Zielinski:  
 

• George presented August 2008 Treasurers Report.. Ann moved to approve report. Jeanne 
seconded; so moved.  

 
Communications:  

 
• Tomorrow, September 19, 2008 is Senior Job and Volunteer Expo at the Troy Community 

Center—Paul to attend. 
• Leonette will accept a check on behalf of TYA from City of Troy / Casual for a Cause at City 

Council meeting on Monday, October 6. 
 
Caseworker’s Report: 
             

 NEW VOLUNTEER ORIENTATION-The TYA Executive Committee is actively working 
toward providing an orientation/overview for potential new volunteers in October. There are 
two confirmed prospective individuals who have expressed interest. If you know of persons 
with additional interest, please speak with Leonette, Nancy, or myself as soon as possible.  

 SENIOR EXPO-On Friday, September 19, I will be providing coverage for TYA at the City of 
Troy’s Senior Job Fair and Volunteer Expo. This takes place from 9:30 AM until 12:00 noon 
at the Troy Community Center and is an opportunity for us to reach out to seniors seeking 
meaningful volunteer opportunities.  

 DR. WILLIAM POLLACK-I have the flyers available for the OCYA presentations on boys 
and young men to be given by Dr. William Pollack of Harvard University on November 3 and 
4. Please see me if you are interested; feel free to make copies to share with other potential 
individuals or groups. 

 CASEWORK-During August, four new referrals came into TYA-all from police sources. Our 
caseload as of August 31, 2008 stood at 45-27 boys and 18 girls. 

 
Executive Committee Report: 
 

• Robin B reports that plans are underway for an October Volunteer Orientation event. Also, 
Annual Breakfast is coming along nicely; Wendy Underwood to be honored at the event. 
Following the Annual Meeting, members will sit down to finalize layout for a new TYA 
banner.  

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 
Committee Reports: 
  
       A.   Camp/Skill Building:  

• Paul reported that 2008 Summer Camp season went well. Awaiting invoice from CYO 
for residential campers.  

B.   Family Education:  
• Charlene shares that Active Parenting Now series began on September 11 and that 

registration is beginning for September 30th  presentation “Kids Who Want Everything 
And Think They Should Get It.” 

       C. Fundraising- Vacant: 
 
       D. Mentors Plus-Bruce Baxter: 

• No report 
E. Membership- Nancy to report later in meeting. 

 
       F. Publicity- Amy Johnson:  

• Paul indicates we have had good exposure for programs through Troy School District 
thanks to Tim McAvoy’s assistance and via Troy Chamber of Commerce.   

E. Youth Involvement-  
• No Report 

       H. Youth Recognition-Committee 
• 2009 event scheduled for Wednesday April 22, 2009 at Athens High School. 

School Reports:  
• We are very happy to welcome Daniella Youhon as this year’s Student Representative 

from Athens High. Daniella reports that Homecoming at Athens is scheduled for 
October 11.  

Old Business:  
• Work is ongoing in follow up with persons identified previously as possible new 

volunteers. We will attempt to invite these individuals our upcoming Annual Breakfast 
as our guests so that they can be “hosted” and get a fuller picture of what TYA is all 
about. 

New Business: 
• TYA Banner and Annual Breakfast Meeting discussed previously.  

Community Information From Organization/Agencies Liaisons: 
• Ann reports that the Troy Community Coalition is bringing in John Underwood on 

September 22 to present,” The Life of an Athlete,” a look at how communities and 
schools can work together to insure safe, sound competition in alcohol and drug free 
ways. 

• Robin B reports that much of Troy Daze was canceled due to heavy rain last week 
and reminded everyone that October 6 is final day to register to vote.  

 
Adjourned:  7:05 p.m. 
 

Next meeting will be October 16, 2008 @ 6:00 p.m. 
     



G:\MY DOCUMENTS\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\Word Files\11.10.08 - Inter-Modal Transit Facility Project Scope - Concept and Preliminary Eng Design Services to Construction.doc 

  

 

 
 
November 5, 2008 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:                      Inter-Modal Transit Facility Project Scope - Concept and Preliminary 

Engineering Design Services to Construction 
                       
                        

Background 

 
 The City of Troy has contracted with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) 

for the planning and design of a new rail passenger inter-modal transit facility along the 
existing Amtrak route between the borders of Troy and Birmingham. 

 On November 10, 2006, statements of qualifications (SOQ) were received to provide 
conceptual and preliminary engineering /design services for an inter-modal transit facility in 
accordance with the Scope of Services developed by city staff. 

 Troy and Birmingham city staffs participated in the review of consultant qualifications, 
consultant interviews and the selection of a consultant for this project.  

 On April 16, 2007 a contract for Concept and Preliminary Engineering Design Services was 
awarded to Wendel Duchscherer of Amherst, New York by Troy City council. 

 On June 30, 2007 a contract was executed with Wendel Duchscherer for design services 
based on their Project Approach (see attached copy) in substantial compliance with the 
scope of services determined by the City of Troy. 

 City staff and representatives from the City of Birmingham have been working with Wendel 
Duchscherer to develop a series of design plans for the Transit Center. 

 The most recent option, presented to Troy City Council on October 6, 2008 addresses a 
number of site improvement and safety issues, and provides a plan that minimizes future 
operating costs.   

 A tunnel connecting Birmingham with Troy is a key element for the project to succeed, as 
the Amtrak line runs on the west track and an at-grade crossing or overhead bridge 
crossing, for various reasons, are not available options. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



G:\MY DOCUMENTS\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\Word Files\11.10.08 - Inter-Modal Transit Facility Project Scope - Concept and Preliminary Eng Design Services to Construction.doc 

  

 The Transit Center building can be built as a distinct phase of the project and would be 
placed at the south end of the east ramp in Troy.  Analysis by Wendel Duchscherer 
suggests that the initial building envelop will likely total 3,000 to 3,500 square feet. 

 Estimates for the Transit Center have been developed by the consultant for each of the 
proposed designs. As of this writing, the estimate for the Transit Center is $6 million. The 
estimate is driven in large part by the need for the tunnel. 

 

Consultant Deliverables Received to Date 

 
 Traffic Impact Study 
 Environmental Site Assessment Report 
 Major Considerations and design Criteria 
 Alternate Conceptual Plans and Cost Estimates 

 

Inter-Modal Transit Facility Project Objectives 
 
The facility is intended to improve the attractiveness, reliability, safety and economic efficiency of 
rail passenger service and will provide passenger facilities that are designed to encourage 
increased rail travel and expanded Inter-modal transit coordination and integration with other 
transit/para-transit modes. 
 
City staff will incorporate all planning documents and generate the project to meet at least three 
objectives for the future.  The objectives are as follows: 
 

Objective 1 - Construct the proposed transit center to serve rail customers, and as a transfer 
point for bus and taxi users and other private and personal modes of transit.  Construction of the 
center will provide a connection point for commuters to and from various areas in the general 
vicinity of Troy.  Should uncertainty of fossil fuel supplies and pricing continue, more and more 
commuters will look at travel options other than the passenger car.  
 

Objective 2 - Ties to the Big Beaver Corridor development.  One of the goals of the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study is to make the corridor more urbane with high density mixed use developments 
and to make the corridor more pedestrian friendly.  The proposed Transit Center could be a 
logical tie to access and egress from the transit center for office worker commuters to offices or 
other service functions along the Big Beaver Corridor.  Using a form of mass transit could also 
reduce the amount of vehicular traffic which would meet one of the primary goals of the Big 
Beaver Study.  Capital construction of wide pedestrian walkways that could also be used as 
transit-ways would be eligible for federal funding.  Other positive aspects of the project would be 
the reduction of vehicular traffic on Big Beaver that would result in lower fuel consumption and 
greatly reduced carbon dioxide emissions into the atmosphere. 
 
The proposed transit center could also be a tie to the Troy Airport by fulfilling the needs of 
business commuters with ties to rail, taxi, or shuttle services. 



G:\MY DOCUMENTS\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\Word Files\11.10.08 - Inter-Modal Transit Facility Project Scope - Concept and Preliminary Eng Design Services to Construction.doc 

  

Objective 3 – Encourage economic growth and development.  A study completed by the 
University of Michigan for the Urban Land Institute entitled the Troy/Birmingham Transit Center 
Strategic & Implementation Plan identifies the market potential for future development, 
transportation options and complimentary land uses near the proposed Transit Center.  The study 
indicates that there is 715,353 square feet (both walkable and drivable) of local retail demand 
over the next five years.  The study goes on to state that “While the for sale housing market is 
struggling, there is sufficient demand for as many as 300 attached residential rental units within 
the Transit Center District in the next five years.”  There are over 4,400 properties within a one 
mile radius of the proposed Transit Center.   
 
The study indicates a proposed development area located along Maple Road immediately east of 
the rail line.  By locating the proposed transit center into this area, there are possibilities of 
producing a dynamic mix of uses and enhancing the area’s potential walkable character.  The 
proposed transit center could also act as a catalyst for upgrading the Maple Corridor. 
 
As previously indicated, two significant portions of the population do not want to own or care for 
property and want to live in higher density mixed use areas.  The two age groups want to be able 
to walk or use mass transit to get to their destinations.  By changing the physical face of the area 
to higher density, and in some cases upscale apartments or condominiums and building the 
developments as transit oriented would make the area, including the Big Beaver and Maple 
corridors more interesting to the development community. 
 
The City’s Master Plan utilizes the findings of the “Troy Futures Report” that states that Troy 
should be looking at a “Villaging” concept, or the establishment of activity nodes with a connected 
sense of place, centered on a range of different concepts or themes.  These areas would be 
compact, walkable, and would provide a mix of uses to contribute to an atmosphere of vitality and 
diversity.  The proposed Master Plan indicates that “The Villaging concept can be achieved by 
following the principles of Transit Oriented Development or TOD.  The TOD principles are 
centered on the basic idea that mixed-use, walkable, compact development surrounding transit 
stations contributes to the health of the community and helps support the transit itself.”   
 

Financing and Phasing Options: 

Total capital cost of the Transit Center as proposed is estimated around $6 million dollars.  The 
capital project can be viewed as two distinct elements: the tunnel and the building.  The tunnel 
and the building can be built simultaneously, or separately.  Certain site improvements likely could 
be undertaken in a third phase, if needed.  That said, there are economies of scale that staff will 
want to consider when developing a phasing stage. 

The estimated cost for the tunnel, and associated ramps/stairway, is $1.8 million.  The consultant 
estimates that the construction work would take approximately 150 days, weather permitting. 

Wendel Duchscherer estimates that the building and canopy work should total $2.0 million.  The 
work for this phase would take approximately 160 days, after designs are completed and bids 
received. 



G:\MY DOCUMENTS\AGENDA ITEMS\2008\Word Files\11.10.08 - Inter-Modal Transit Facility Project Scope - Concept and Preliminary Eng Design Services to Construction.doc 

  

The balance of the budget is for site improvements, including roadway improvements, additional 
utility work, and the platform improvements.  It is anticipated that the site improvements will 
accommodate multiple forms of public (SMART, Amtrak) and private (sedan, taxi) transit, as well 
as anticipated need for park and ride users, car rental agency, and non-motorized transit 
(pedestrian, bicycle) needs.  The work should take approximately 260 days to complete. 

Not included in the estimate are the land costs on the west side of the tracks.  The City of 
Birmingham has been in on-going discussions with DTE and other land owners in this regard.  It 
appears that the parties are working toward a solution.  Wendel Duchscherer, in developing the 
cost estimates, indicates that costs for storm water and environmental clean up are yet 
determined on the west side of the tracks. 

To date, the City of Troy has set aside $1.3 million in capital reserves for the project.  The City of 
Birmingham has committed $300,000 toward project costs.  For the project to move forward, the 
cities of Troy and Birmingham will need to secure about $5 million from other sources.   

As stated in the October 2
nd

 report, city staff and our partners have been meeting with key State 
and Federal officials in order to secure grants and other forms of funding for the Transit Center.  
The City of Birmingham is conducting final interviews for an outside “project manager” on 
November 10

th
.  It is likely that a cost sharing agreement will come before City Council in the near 

future, for your review and consideration. 

That is not to say that we are solely focusing efforts on securing public funds.  Some of the private 
sector providers expressed an early interest in acting as possible partners in the project.  City staff 
is currently exploring those possibilities, both from a capital and operating perspective. 

Much of what happens depends on the timing of funds for the project.  It is highly likely that the 
project will need to be built in phases.  In light of the election results, the financial picture on Wall 
Street, and the sunset of SAFETY-LU, it is likely that the project will phase as follows:    

 BUILDING: The building could be constructed utilizing available reserve funds from Troy 

and committed funds from Birmingham, as city staff and the project manager seek other 

funding for future phases.   

 TUNNEL: The second phase of the project could be the construction of the tunnel.  Grants 

for the construction phase, and possibly the shuttle service until such time as the tunnel is 

constructed, will be explored with the Federal Highway Administration, the State of 

Michigan, and our public and private partners. 

 

Phasing the project, using reserve funds, would allow the City to meet the terms of the consent 

agreement between the City and Grand Sakwa.  The center would initially focus on bus riders and 

taxi patrons, and a shuttle system could be employed to take rail riders to and from the 

Birmingham side of the tracks.  Operational funds for shuttle system will need to be secured. 



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
Troy Unofficial Results

campbellld
Text Box
J-08













 

 
 
November 5, 2008                             
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Preliminary Discussion of the 2009/10 Budget 
 
 
City management wishes to open a dialogue with Council regarding upcoming budgetary matters. 
The following three areas will be discussed:   
 
Preliminary Budget Projections 
 
Staff has provided a summary of General Fund revenues and a projection of expenditures for 
discussion with Council. 
 
Fund Balance 
 
Staff has provided a summary of fund balance utilization for discussion with Council. 
 
City Council Deficit Reduction Survey 
 
Fashioned after a survey that the City of Sterling Heights prepared for their Council’s review, City 
management has prepared a list of possible ways to generate additional revenue and some potential 
cuts to expenditures.  Where possible, a dollar amount has been estimated for the potential new 
revenue or cost savings ideas. 
 
City management requests that Council review these suggestions and indicate on the survey forms 
whether each idea should be considered for implementation.  We ask that Council please complete 
the survey and return to Mary Redden by Friday, November 21, 2008. 
 
If there are any questions, please feel free to contact us. 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA\2008\11.10.08 – Preliminary Discussion of the 2009/10 Budget  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01




































	AGENDA: November 10, 2008
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (September), Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director will present a check in the amount of $520.00 to Michael Silverstein for Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence
	America Recycles 2008 Proclamation Presented to Pam Brady
	MML Education Award Presented by Mayor Schilling to Council Member Mary Kerwin


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2009 Application

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; and Troy Daze C...
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations: Planning Commission (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Historic District Study Committee; and Parks & Recreation Board
	E-3 Acceptance of Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program:  Arts and Culture General Support Grant of $40,000.00
	E-4 Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive Programs
	E-5 Proposed 2009 City Council Meetings
	E-6 Donation of the Old Stone School Property to the City of Troy – Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-101-001

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a)  America Recycles 2008

	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Troy Hall of Justice HVAC Upgrade of Major Mechanical Systems

	F-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #59 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-044 – ALIF Corporation
	F-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #28 – Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026 – Dennis E. Bushon and Mary Josephine B...
	F-7 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #1 – Sidwell #88-20-23-303-001 – Rochester Development Group, LLC
	F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #45 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043 – Gordon P. Meldrum and Carol A. Meldrum
	F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #27 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-018 – Trombly Investment Company
	F-10 Request from Smith Middle School to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions
	F-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement
	F-12 2008 Request to Waive Recapture Form
	F-13 Private Agreement for Tim Horton’s – Project No. 08.915.3
	F-14 Contract Amendment:  Extended Warranty In-Car Video System
	F-15 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Lawrence Feld, Secretary of the Benevolent Association of AFSCME – Local 574

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Scheduled
	G-2 Memorandums:
	Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance – November 24, 2008


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Cable Advisory Committee/Final – April 17, 2008
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 15, 2008
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – August 26, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – September 2, 2008
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – September 3, 2008
	Library Advisory Board/Final – September 11, 2008
	Special Joint Meeting Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning Commission – September 22, 2008
	Youth Council/Final – September 24, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 1, 2008
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 14, 2008
	Planning Commission/Draft – October 14, 2008
	Planning Commission/Final – October 14, 2008
	Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 16, 2008
	Youth Council/Draft – October 22, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Troy Historical Museum Annual Report 2007-2008
	Troy Public Library Annual Report 2007-2008

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from Michael Farrug Commending the Professionalism of Officer Christina Giovannoni
	Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from Dale Dawkins Regarding the Support of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise
	Letter to Jennifer Lawson from SEMCOG Regarding Participation with the Low Impact Development (LID) Manual
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft and Staff for Participation in the CREST Radiation Exercise
	Letter of Appreciation to Chief Gary Mayer from Terry Nerbonne Regarding the Assistance with the Ferris State University Criminal Justice Summer 2008 Internship Program
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from the Royal Oak Police Department Regarding the Support of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise
	Letter of Thanks to Officers Rockafellow and Raymer from Denise Geromette

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None
	J-5  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding the City of Troy Master Plan
	J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes – September 18, 2008
	J-7 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Inter-Modal Transit Facility Project Scope – Concept and Preliminary Engineering Design Services to Construction
	J-8  Unofficial Results – November 4, 2008 Election

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Preliminary Discussion of the 2009/10 Budget

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



